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Corporate Information
REVEF

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)

Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman) 88S

Non-executive Director
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

Mr. Chong Ming Yu "ot

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER
Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman 8a8s
Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose (Chairman)
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Mr. Chong Ming Yu Mot

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann (Chairman)
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny

Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

Mr. Chong Ming Yu Mot

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

Mr. Chong Ming Yu "ot

Note: Mr. Chong Ming Yu will cease to act as an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, and Ms.
Hon Hong Lun, Jackie (formerly known as Hon Heung Mui, Jackie)
has been appointed in place of him both with effect from 1 April
2024.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman 8BS
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HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS ON HONG KONG LAWS

lu, Lai & Li

LEGAL ADVISERS ON BERMUDA LAWS

Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

United Overseas Bank Limited

Public Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Canada)
The Toronto-Dominion Bank

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT IN BERMUDA

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Tengis Limited

17/F., Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

Units 1003-04A, 10/F.

Tower 1, Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00487

WEBSITE

Wwww.successug.com

Corporate Information (Continued)

NEAEF &

HITZEG
BBRITE (ZR)
B ITE s eE

%S Em

BB g SEHABRAE
BAHEGTED

BB EEER
PKEL 1R EMIT
BREXEEHERM
Conyers Dill & Pearman
FEFKREIT
RERTHEREAE
KRBT (B BRAE
RDRITHEREAE

B EIRITHE R AT
FETERIT (IMEKX)
The Toronto-Dominion Bank

BRERMDBRELRE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

EERMBPRERDE
BEBRERBREAE
HHEERBIE 165
ERETRAO0T7IE

M EE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

MMERREEEF A

EBERBE 18I
BEROE
10181003-04AF

Rip EHER
EBMERGMMBRAT
RAD L3R - 00487

A3

Www.successug.com

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &R

03



04

OUR

VISION

& A 1
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b

The Group strives to fortify its business portfolio by leveraging
on its experience in entertainment and tourist-related industries
as well as property investment, strengthening its competitiveness
and staying agile by exploring new investment opportunities. We
endeavor to create long-term value for all of our stakeholders
through the balanced and diversified business portfolio, while
adhering to a high standard of corporate governance.

FEBRNBEERERIREEBITEURYERENL
SRICSR HEFBE S WA BMAMRERBREARF N RRF
REEM -RARNBBHIERZTIEZEFES BE
FEGSRREER PARETEKFHNEEER-

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Group Structure
ST

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and a Hong Kong listed company)

(Stock Code: 00487)

EEIRKEBR AT
(REREZEZMN L ZERAE
R—REEE EHAE)
(12 X3 - 00487)

PROPERTY FLAGSHIP

BI";‘:\\I’EES"S INVESTMENT INVESTMENT
o BUSINESS PROJECT

AN MERERH AR EIRE

Jade Travel Ltd.
(Incorporated in Canada Hong Kong

Ponte 16 Integrated

T ¢ g Casino-entertainment
with limited liability) Commercial Buildings Resort

Jade Travel Ltd. EHEEE
(RINEA AL 1T 2 B IRAE) = HAEA A 1R S B B A
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Operational Highlights
E S

Revenue was approximately HK$101.9 million and
gross profit increased by approximately 35% to
approximately HK$16.8 million for 2023

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$169.3 million. The turnaround
from loss to profit for 2023 was mainly attributable
to (i) the Group's share of a substantial profit of
the associates relating to Ponte 16, the flagship
investment project of the Group (the "Associates”),
of approximately HK$143.7 million; and (ii) the
recognition of a substantial fair value gain on
the Group’s overseas listed equity securities of
approximately HK$95.4 million

Revenue of the travel business segment decreased
by approximately 12% to approximately HK$99.2
million, while gross profit margin increased from
approximately 8.7% to approximately 14.2%. Profit
of approximately HK$4.3 million was recorded in this
segment, including a reversal of impairment loss on
intangible assets of approximately HK$2.0 million

Revenue of the property investment business
amounted to approximately HK$2.7 million; segment
loss was approximately HK$14.2 million which was
mainly due to the recognition of a fair value loss on
investment properties and a write-down of carrying
amount of the Group’s stock of properties in the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$19.0 million

The Group's shared profit of the Associates was
approximately HK$143.7 million, representing a
turnaround from share of loss in 2022. An Adjusted
EBITDA* of approximately HK$334.1 million was
recorded

Adjusted EBITDA. Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation
and Amortisation (and excluded interest income from bank
deposit)

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Financial Highlights

AT
RESULTS e
Year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=1+—HLEE
2023 2022 2021
—E-= =2 g2 —
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T BT T
Revenue &
Travel s 99,229 112,139 147,856
Property investment MERKRE 2,668 2,639 3,274
101,897 114,778 151,130
Gain/(loss) on change BAFERIERYER
in fair value of financial ZHBEEEATFE
assets as fair value through ~ EBIFFES 2 Wm
profit or loss (E518) 95,390 (174,113) 87,725
Share of results of associates — FE{L /A T 2E4& 143,717 (42,133) (48,654)
Profit/(loss) for the year EEEREF (FE) 169,301 (287,072) 4,859
Profit/(loss) attributable to 7/ E] R EH FE(E
owners of the Company w7 (B518) 169,301 (287,072) 4,859
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FEMBRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 December
BW+=-B=+—H
2023 2022 2021
—E-= —E-= S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T BT T
Total assets BEMSE 1,388,555 1,271,157 1,388,830
Total liabilities BERE 501,191 551,792 381,185
Net assets BERE 887,364 719,365 1,007,645

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 ¥R



Chairman’s Statement
FEHRS

THE GROUP TRUSTS THAT OUR

PERSEVERANCE
& RESILIENCE

WILL BRING US THROUGH HEADWINDS
AND LAY AN EVEN STRONGER
FOUNDATION FOR A LONG-TERM AND
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT.

A

FRBES - WMIEIN P -
] SRR 2 S ) B
AT FFECER 4T R I LR -
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Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Success Universe
Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to present the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

2023 witnessed a robust recovery in the entertainment
and hospitality industries in Macau, as well as for the
Group's business. With the receding of the COVID-19
pandemic, global economic activities and cross-country
travel resumed, playing a vital role in revitalising both
international and domestic tourism. Driven by the
reopening of borders with Mainland China and Hong
Kong, Macau experienced a substantial boost in its
entertainment and hospitality sectors, leading to a strong
return to nearly pre-pandemic levels.

Notably, in recent years, Macau has transformed into an
unparalleled travel destination, offering an extraordinary
array of entertainment options. This transformation has
been facilitated by the visionary measures implemented by
the Macau government to position the city as a premier
World Center of Tourism and Leisure. These measures
have laid a solid foundation for businesses and contributed
to the thriving development of Macau. The Group is
delighted to witness this remarkable post-pandemic
rebound and has demonstrated its well-diversified business
composition continued to seize the opportunities arising
from the recovery.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS

HNEENRR:

RANERAREBERIKBRLQA (A2
B ERENBABSMEIAER)) B
EFEREFRDBE_ZS_=ZF+_H
=+—BLFENFER-

CTE - FRBERMMNIRETES X
LB PRSI A ERER BT K
E20198RFEFHEIEHR IR
SN BIEREEE R 5 ik E B R A
NIREREEEAE - THENPEAM
REBEMBER BFAMNBRELBEET
EIRRBE RRABIRBIDEHERIKF-

RV FEARENA—EE —E_N
miﬂ% RH— %%ﬁﬁh&%ﬁ%
BEIE o RPIEE A PRSI BIIOR
FIBAETRIESREBIEE R E
MEMUASTERNEFRRFEARB R LB
LEHEEABETHETREER  HE
BPIEHER - AEEMARFZILER
&%WEAW% EBEHEZTIEZER

HEHEESHMBERT RIS

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 ¥R

09



10

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ERERE (&

UNLEASHING POTENTIALS TO CAPTURE
OPPORTUNITIES

The entertainment and hospitality industries in Macau
emerged with a remarkable resurgence in 2023 after
three years of the pandemic. Macau's gross gaming
revenue surged by approximately 334% year-on-year
in 2023, surpassing market expectations and reaching
approximately MOP183.1 billion, while the visitor
number reached a new post-pandemic record high of
approximately 28.2 million. In alignment with Macau'’s
continuous drive to rejuvenate its tourism appeal, Macau
set off waves of world-class events and concerts and drew
a significant influx of visitors from both Mainland China
and international locales in 2023. Ponte 16, our flagship
investment project, further enhanced its hospitality and
entertainment offerings to cater to the needs of its
valued tourists and guests. Moreover, Ponte 16 actively
supported initiatives that promote local art and cultural
events, contributing to the Macau's community. Ponte 16
also collaborated closely with the Macau government to
organise various relevant events that further contribute to
the development of Macau’s tourism industry.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

BET - BERE

ERE=-FEEER BFIZRENEEL
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Thanks to the Macau government’s dedicated efforts
to enhance its infrastructure network and improve
accessibility for tourists from various regions, Macau now
offers diverse transportation options, including the Hong
Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge and cross-boundary direct bus
services connecting to Hong Kong International Airport.
Furthermore, Macau is actively promoting “tourism+"
cross-sector integration and crafting innovative “multi-
stop” thematic tourism routes in collaboration with
other regions. These initiatives, including offering tourists
discounted transportation fares to travel between Macau
and nearby cities, have been effectively attracting more
visitors to the region. Ponte 16 benefits from its strategic
location that connects the cities seamlessly through
multiple border crossings, and provides convenient
experiences for Mainland China and Hong Kong tourists
visiting Macau.

Additionally, Macau stands out for its unique blend of
cultural heritage, and the government is proactively
working with concessionaires to revitalise old districts.
Ponte 16, strategically situated in the Inner Harbour area,
is deeply engaged in the local urban renewal plans, and
is in discussions with the Macau government regarding its
Phase 3 development project, which could encompass the
integration of Inner Harbour development with the local
community. This might include plans for a late-night food
street and the infusion of cultural and artistic elements,
such as collaborations with local designers to create a
harmonious blend of old and new cultural experiences
in the Inner Harbour. As a world-class integrated casino-
entertainment resort, Ponte 16 continues to enhance
its offerings by partnering with local retailers and
attractions so as to ensure that visitors have a unique and
unforgettable experience.

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ERERE (&

POISED TO SET SAIL ON THE NEW
JOURNEY

The global tourism industry experienced a vigorous
rebound in 2023 which demonstrates significant progress
as international arrivals reached 1.3 billion, equivalent to
88% of pre-pandemic levels. The United Nations World
Tourism Organization (UNWTO) anticipated a complete
recovery on global tourism industry by the end of 2024,
fuelled by pent-up demand and the resurgence of Asian
markets. Concurrently, Mainland China has introduced
more traveller-friendly policies to the world, including
simplified visa rules to enhance travel accessibility. Jade
Travel Ltd. (“Jade Travel”) is strategically poised to
capture this expanding Asian market by leveraging its
strong partnerships with online travel portals, agencies
and airlines. Expansions of product and service offerings
are also underway to accommodate the growing travel
demand. With the tourism industry projected to recover
even stronger in 2024, Jade Travel anticipates a promising
future.

Hong Kong has demonstrated its strength and resilience
amid economic challenges, geopolitical tensions and
interest rate hikes. The Group remains committed to a
prudent approach and will reqularly assess its investment
strategy in Hong Kong's commercial property market.
Our goal is to maintain a balanced investment portfolio,
ensuring consistent returns while mitigating risks.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our esteemed shareholders, customers and
business partners for their unwavering support and trust.
I am also deeply grateful to my fellow board members for
their invaluable advice and guidance, and to our entire
staff for their tremendous effort and commitment. Having
successfully navigated through the most challenging time,
the Group will harness its expertise and accumulated
experience to seize the opportunities presented by the
global and industry rebound. We remain vigilant of
market dynamics and potentials, and we are committed
to creating substantial and enduring value for our
shareholders as a sincere expression of gratitude for their
unwavering faith and confidence in the Company.

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2024

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

In 2023, a series of significant developments played a
pivotal role in bolstering the global economy’s recovery.
The reopening of borders of Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and various parts of Asia breathed new life
into economic activities. China, in particular, achieved
remarkable strides in its economic resurgence, with a
reported 5.2% growth in its gross domestic product (GDP)
for the year. Hong Kong and Macau, being intimately
linked to Mainland China, also reaped the rewards from
the lifted COVID-19-related restrictions and the reopening
of borders, in which Macau’s entertainment and hospitality
industries showed particularly promising recovery.

The global economic recovery in 2023 faced a mixed bag
of challenges. Fuelled by tightening monetary measures
principally aiming at addressing the historically high
inflation, constraining financial conditions and heightening
debt vulnerabilities were resulted. Consequently, economic
activities were impeded, and productivity and consumption
growth were restrained. Simultaneously, persistent
international conflicts, notably the prolonged war in
Ukraine and mounting geopolitical tensions in the Middle
East, added complexity to the global economic landscape
and exacerbated the cost of living.

These challenges highlight the need for prudent and
adaptable strategies. The Group remains committed to
these principles, and focuses on operational excellence
and strengthens its position in entertainment and tourism
industries to seize emerging opportunities in the evolving
economic landscape.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements and the related
notes included in this report.

ISEEd=REY S
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=
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PEEE20198 AR = mAERARR & - LUK
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EERERT AT
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BRI - RERE LTS BRFEE
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BREE L7 EMmE B R BE MR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEwmKRO (&

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue of the
Group was approximately HK$101.9 million, decreased by
approximately 11% from approximately HK$114.8 million
for the last corresponding year. Gross profit increased by
approximately 35% to approximately HK$16.8 million
(2022: approximately HK$12.4 million). A fair value
gain on the Group’s overseas listed equity securities of
approximately HK$95.4 million (“Substantial Fair Value
Gain on Securities”) was recognised for 2023 (2022:
fair value loss of approximately HK$174.1 million). The
Group’s shared profit of the associates relating to Ponte
16, the flagship investment project of the Group (the
“Associates”), for 2023 was approximately HK$143.7
million (2022: share of loss of approximately HK$42.1
million). Due to the aforesaid recognition of Substantial
Fair Value Gain on Securities and the substantial profit of
the Associates shared by the Group for 2023, the Group's
results turned around from loss to profit for the year. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023 was approximately HK$169.3 million
(2022: loss of approximately HK$287.1 million), whilst
earnings per share was 3.44 HK cents (2022: loss per share
of 5.83 HK cents).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEFwKRON (&

DIVIDENDS iz S
No interim dividend was paid in 2023 (2022: nil). —E_=ZFITE@KNTPHERE (ZZ
The directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) do not 4 ! ) - ANTEE (EFE)) 12
recommend any payment of a final dividend for the year FEMEE_ZT_=F+_A=+—HLt
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil). FERMARMKRARE (2=
") o
cL
0o .

xmwe

(L E IR A
EEEEEE LR E LIS
B EEE L E B E &
sHAdeANSaEN
e EEEECLEE E
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Travel Business

Jade Travel Ltd. (“Jade Travel”) is one of the largest
Canadian travel agencies which offers professional travel
solutions to customers in both wholesale and retail
markets. In November 2023, data from the United Nations
World Tourism Organisation ("UNWTQO") indicated that
international tourism had made significant strides in
recovering from the challenges posed by COVID-19. Many
world destinations exceeded pre-pandemic arrival levels
in 2023, with the Middle East, Europe and Africa leading
the recovery; however, due to a slower reopening to
international travel, the Asia Pacific region only reached
65% of pre-pandemic levels in 2023 and lagged behind
other regions.

According to data from the International Air Transport
Association (IATA), total air traffic in 2023 measured in
revenue passenger kilometres (RPK) reached 94.1% of pre-
pandemic levels in 2019 (the “2019 Levels”), while air
passenger market in total surging by 36.9% compared to
2022. However, China’s international capacity still lagged
and below the 2019 Levels, despite of its strong 138.8%
domestic traffic growth recorded from 2022 to 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Travel Business (continued)

Although the number of flight routes in the Asia Pacific
region had not fully returned to pre-pandemic levels,
the Group capitalised on the recovery of domestic and
international air travel through Jade Travel’s online auto-
ticketing system and online ticketing platform, enhancing
its service, performance and profitability. Combined with
restructuring efforts made in recent years, Jade Travel
has continuously improved its financial performance.
Revenue of the travel business segment for the year ended
31 December 2023 decreased by approximately 12%
to approximately HK$99.2 million (2022: approximately
HK$112.1 million) while gross profit margin increased
from approximately 8.7% to approximately 14.2%. Profit
of approximately HK$4.3 million was recorded in this
segment (2022: approximately HK$3.3 million), including
a reversal of impairment loss on intangible assets of
approximately HK$2.0 million which was recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately
HK$2.8 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Investment Business

Throughout 2023, Hong Kong's commercial property
market faced challenges from a series of interest rate hikes
and a slow recovery, discouraging potential investors.
Concerns over a global recession, geopolitical conflicts,
and the possibility of further rise in interest rate continued
to weigh on market sentiment. Nevertheless, the property
market in Hong Kong remains resilient, although not
without its challenges, as the Greater Bay Area continues
to develop. To enhance the city's competitiveness, the
Hong Kong government has also introduced initiatives to
attract both Mainland China’s and international talents,
professionals, investors and businesses.

Revenue of the property investment business for the year
ended 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$2.7 million (2022: approximately HK$2.6 million).
Segment loss was approximately HK$14.2 million (2022:
approximately HK$15.9 million) which was mainly due to
recognition of a fair value loss on investment properties
and a write-down of carrying amount of the Group's stock
of properties in the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$19.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: approximately HK$20.6 million).

EEE RO (&

FF5OEE (@)

MEREES
TR -BAERAYETSEN
FRBHRIEREIEN—RIIE T

BEERBEZREEN HERER
RE - MGBRERRAKRIEE—D
ﬂfiéﬁégfﬁ’%lﬁ,.51$[ﬂ$ ZEERN '
EXRBETEER CBEBYETHL
TERDAERA DB - TEH‘E?(M%T%E%@%EE’\J
- RIEBBBIHEI BEBBFE
By 4 L0 2 TR HE B > LAOR S| FR P9 3t 2
BAT BEAT - REERDBRE-

BE_ZT_-—F+-B=+—HL
FE MEREBEEH 2 WmOABBE
2,700,0007c (Z & - = 478 1
2,600,00075) BE_ZT”-_=—F+"
B=+—HILEE> ﬁﬁlﬂéﬁaﬁﬁ%%
#14,200,0000c (Z &2 - Pz c e
15 900 0007T) » FEREMIBKREYE

NEEEERANERYEEFEESZRE
Eimﬂz A4 E®19,000,0007T (ZF
— 4 I #97120,600,0007T) ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 ¥R

23



Investment Project — Ponte 16
KREIEH — 7V

.
457 +%

u\ Ta
L=\ ?

24 SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B1BIEEKA FRA E)



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16

Macau’s remarkable recovery journey in 2023 brought with
it a wave of optimism and vitality. The official lifting of
COVID-19-related restrictions by the Macau government
in January 2023 unleashed a torrent of visitors, especially
during key Chinese travel seasons, such as the Chinese
New Year, Labour Day, summer holidays, National
Day and Christmas holidays. Data from the Macau
government revealed a staggering approximately 28.2
million visitor arrivals in 2023, representing a resurgence
to approximately 70% of the 2019 Levels. Notably, the
recovery gained significant momentum in the latter half
of the year, with visitor numbers in December back to
approximately 96% of the 2019 figure. The resurgence of
visitors in Macau is nothing short of extraordinary.

This influx of visitors had a profoundly positive impact on
Macau'’s gross gaming revenue (“GGR"), which skyrocketed
to approximately MOP183.1 billion in 2023, marking an
astonishing annual increase of approximately 334%. The
fiscal year's performance was fortified by a robust year-
end finish, with December's GGR reaching approximately
MOP18.6 billion, representing a surge of a remarkable
approximately 433% year-on-year and an increase of
approximately 15.7% over November, and December
became the second-highest month for GGR in 2023.
Notably, the recovery in mass-market GGR not only reached
pre-pandemic levels but also played a crucial role in driving
Macau’s overall resurgence, becoming a fundamental
element that supplements the Macau government’s vision of
further developing Macau as a World Center of Tourism and
Leisure with increasing diversity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)

Driven by the triumphant return of visitors to Macau,
Ponte 16, the world-class integrated casino-entertainment
resort nestled in the culturally vibrant Inner Harbour,
showed remarkable success in 2023. Its strategic location
seamlessly connects to Mainland China and Hong Kong
through numerous border checkpoints, enhancing
accessibility, particularly when coupled with convenient
transportation networks.

Committed to fostering Macau's cultural, travel and
entertainment sectors, Ponte 16 continuously improved
and expanded its “OLAJR{E#E" ("OLA"), the all-in-one
platform featuring travel information and promotions
within Macau’s community. Ponte 16 collaborated with
local businesses, including merchants and hotels, to offer
discounts and privileges to customers via OLA, which
not only generates lucrative prospects for participating
merchants but also encourages cross-sector spending,
bolstering the Macau Peninsula’s economy. Capitalising
on its proximity and connectivity, OLA's reach extended
to encompass enterprises in the Greater Bay Area,
notably in Zhuhai. Since its launch in late 2021, OLA has
garnered around 130 merchant partners, encompassing
approximately 200 merchant outlets and around 13,300
registered members, significantly enhancing Ponte 16's
market presence and propelling its robust recovery.

In 2023, Ponte 16 actively engaged in and endorsed
various initiatives to promote local art and cultural events,
and the transformation of Macau into a World Center of
Tourism and Leisure. This extensive involvement included
collaborations with the Macau government on diverse
exhibitions and events, which aimed at revitalising local
communities, reinforcing the Group’s commitment to
creating positive social value. These exhibitions and events
included “When Tat Chi Met Chi Tat Duo Exhibition”, “The
Macau Distinguished Gentlemen’s Ride Event”, “Festival
of the Drunken Dragon”, “!OUTLOUD International Street
Art Festival”, “2023 Light Up Macao” as well as the
Christmas Market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)

Ponte 16 has consistently elevated its entertainment
offerings to cater to evolving consumer preferences. With
its excellence in providing exquisite guest experience,
Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16 received wide recognitions in
2023. These included “Green Hotel Award — Bronze 2023-
2025" by Environmental Protection Bureau, “Enjoyable
Travel Awards — Best Family Hotel” by Enjoyable Travel,
“2022 Reader-Selected Hotels — 2022 China Travel
Awards” by Travel + Leisure, the “Best Resort Hotel”,
“Best Restaurant” and “Best Spa” by The 12th Annual
China Hotel Awards presented by Lifestyle Magazine, the
“Most Popular Buffet Restaurant in Macau” and ranked
#3 for “Most Popular Western Cuisine in Macau” by the
2022 Macau Popular Restaurants presented by Aomi,
the “TRAVELERS CHOICE 2023" presented by Expedia,
the "The Best Cultural Destination Hotel” by the 2024
BANGTRIP Hotel Awards presented by Wtrip Magazine &
Bang Media, and the “Best Restaurant in Macau” by the
best restaurants and bars in Macau for 2023 presented by
Travel and Leisure Asia.

As at 31 December 2023, the casino of Ponte 16 had 109
gaming tables in operation, consisting of 103 mass tables
and 6 high-limit tables. The average occupancy rate of
Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16 reached approximately 83% for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately
48%), considering the substantial 23.5% increase in
overall hotel room supply in Macau during the year. For
the year ended 31 December 2023, an Adjusted EBITDA*
of approximately HK$334.1 million was recorded (2022:
Adjusted EBITDA* loss of approximately HK$46.2 million).

* Adjusted EBITDA. Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation
and Amortisation (and excluded interest income from bank
deposit)

EEEFwKRON (&

F5OEE (@)

K’REIER 1738 (@)
+TRE—EAREHEENHEENS
4 ﬁfﬁkﬂ-ﬂﬁkéﬂééuu@@O,M%éi%ﬁ
HiRHEEERRENEMEES ) BT+ /<
HERERIER KBS ﬁ:;:_fﬁﬁgﬁ%lﬁ
R0 BRIRERERBEZEN 2023F—
2025F RPIIRMRAIE R — 1R - B
SHEENTBREEEZ2E-—FTERER
FOBIE) BIRMEEERNT 20228 ik
BRITHR —2022FBEEBEAE] - @
bR SEHMESIEE NS + ZECHAREA
EAR- TREERBEE  FERESR
FEl R TFERENKE REEZER2022
FRMAZENEREPHN DR RZEUD
BYEEE RNEFE=KRTEIIAE
[ ~ Expediaf8 2 B9 TRAVELERS CHOICE
2023 J ~ Wtrip Magazine & Bang Media’&
25192024 BANGTRIP Hotel Awards ! The
Best Cultural Destination HotelJL)Ui’zTravel
and Leisure AsiafBEM _T — = F 8
REZBRBEHNNEMARESR F(Best

Restaurant in Macau) ] ©

R =F+"A=+— EI RWAY:
IRBEIBHFI09RBERETEE > B
10331%#31%&%%&63%%}%&%&%% TF
WRFIREBEREBMHER23.5%2ZK
BERNBRATN BE_T_=F+_

B=+—HLEEFE B+ NERIERE
KBERNFEHAERMERLSI% (T
T F I N48%) o BE_E =

+ZA=1+—HLEFE  BREFTHFF
EMRE N EREHEARAREFLHOE
#%334,100,00070 (= &  &B&1E5TH
BRFIE~RIE N ITEREHAIBA 4B
#46,200,0007CE548) °

* ASIEETHIGRE IR E AT B R #E A B a2 A
(I BT EFZIR1T 7 7L T 5 AR BI R S HA)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 ¥R

27



28

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)

For the purposes of, among others, refinancing the loan
facilities in the aggregate amounts of HK$500 million and
MOP273 million (the “Loan Facilities”) made available
to Pier 16 — Property Development Limited (“Pier 16 —
Property Development”, an associate of the Group and is
principally engaged in investment holding and property
development and through its subsidiaries, operation
of Ponte 16) by a bank pursuant to an amended and
restated facility agreement dated 23 June 2021 (the “Loan
Agreement”) and financing the general working capital for
non-gaming operation of Pier 16 — Property Development,
Pier 16 — Property Development entered into an amended
and restated facility agreement (the “Amended Facility
Agreement”) with a bank as lender on 23 June 2023.
Pursuant to the Amended Facility Agreement, the maturity
date under the Loan Agreement was extended to 23 June
2025 and the amounts of the Loan Facilities were revised
to the aggregate amounts of HK$230 million and MOP273
million (the “Revised Loan Facilities”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group continued to hold overseas listed equity
securities during the year to diversify its investment
portfolio. As at 31 December 2023, the Group held the
following significant investment which was classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Approximate
Number of  percentage of
common stock stockholding

held as at as at

31 December 31 December

Name of investment  Trading symbol 2023 2023
R-B_=f

RZZ2Z=% +ZA=1+-H

+ZA=+—H ERREZ

REAE AR PR ER#E AR
%

Tesla, Inc. (“Tesla") TSLA 96,750 0.003
Approximate

Number of percentage of

common stock stockholding

held as at as at

31 December 31 December

Name of investment Trading symbol 2022 2022
A —e=

RZE-_-_&# +-ZA=+—H
+-RB=+—H EEREZ

RELHE RS FriFEBR#A BABDLL
%
Tesla TSLA 96,750 0.003
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Approximate

percentage

to the Group's

Investment Fair value total assets
cost as at as at as at

31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2023 2023
RIEZ=F

RZ2Z=% RITZ=F +°A=t+-H
+ZA=+—-H +ZA=t+—H MWrEELEE
ZREME ZATE ZBHNESL
Equivalentto  Equivalent to
HKS$ million HKS$ million

ZEEEEET FEAEFET %
47 188 14

Approximate

percentage

to the Group's

Investment Fair value total assets

cost as at as at as at

31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2022
A

A 2 RZEZ"H +ZR=t—H
+ZR=+t—-H +IZR=t+—H tAEEREE

ZREMK ZRTE  ZBREDL
Equivalent to Fquivalent to
HK$ million HK$ million
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (CONTINUED)

Tesla was incorporated in the State of Delaware, the
United States of America ("USA") with its common
stock traded on The Nasdag Global Select Market.
Tesla is principally engaged in designing, developing,
manufacturing and selling high-performance fully electric
vehicles and energy generation and storage systems, and
offering services related to its sustainable energy products.
As disclosed in Tesla's audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, total
revenues of Tesla was increased by approximately 19% to
approximately USD96.8 billion (equivalent to approximately
HK$758.6 billion) for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: approximately USD81.5 billion (equivalent
to approximately HK$638.6 billion)), and its net income
attributable to common stockholders for the year ended
31 December 2023 was approximately USD15.0 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$117.6 billion) (2022:
approximately USD12.6 billion (equivalent to approximately
HK$98.4 billion)), which were primarily due to the increase
in automotive sales revenue from increased deliveries and
deployments of its products.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

EAKE (@)

TeslafEE=FIREREH (M) FhiEE
INEEM AL HEEREANETE 2 2K

BETEEE cTesla T BN EHT
B S RIHESMEED BESE KA

/}_ﬁfg@;’ﬁ{uﬁf%,ﬁ’ITET#E@E?T%:&
BERE MMM Z R - iRiETeslaBl ZE =
7__¢+ B=+—HIEFEZLR
AR B BEIRRMIEE  TeslaBlZEZF
TEE+ A=+ HUEFEZHAKRR
1EINAI19% E4968E E T FHERLE
#7,586f27T) (ZT - "4 : 481518
7T (FBER L B6,386187T)) » MEE
—E-_F+ZA=1+—HILFEEZE
BRI R EMFIALA150EE 7T (18
ENRNEEI176(8T) CEZZF I H
126/ %70 (MBERQBIE8MET)) > £
EHRERZRXNABRHEZIEM &
EREHERRIER.



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (CONTINUED)

Tesla operates in a cyclical industry that is sensitive
to political and regulatory uncertainty, including with
respect to trade and the environment, all of which can
be compounded by inflationary pressures, rising energy
prices, interest rates fluctuations and the liquidity of
enterprise customers. For example, inflationary pressures
have increased across the markets in which it operates.
In an effort to curb this trend, central banks in developed
countries raised interest rates rapidly and substantially,
impacting the affordability of vehicle lease and finance
arrangements. Further, sales of vehicles in the automotive
industry also tend to be cyclical in many markets, which
may expose it to increased volatility as Tesla expands and
adjusts its operations. Moreover, as additional competitors
enter the marketplace and help bring the world closer
to sustainable transportation, Tesla will have to adjust
and continue to execute well to maintain its momentum.
Additionally, the supplier’s liquidity and allocation plans
may be affected by current challenges in the North
American automotive industry, which could reduce its
access to components or result in unfavourable changes to
cost. These macroeconomic and industry trends have had,
and will likely continue to have, an impact on the pricing
of, and order rate for its vehicles, and in turn its operating
margin. Tesla will continue to adjust accordingly to such
developments, and believes its ongoing cost reduction,
including improved production innovation and efficiency at
its newest factories and lower logistics costs, and focuses
on operating leverage will continue to benefit it in relation
to its competitors, while its new products will help enable
future growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (CONTINUED)

As the production increases, Tesla works constantly to
similarly increase vehicle delivery capability so that it does
not become a bottleneck on its total deliveries. As Tesla
expands its manufacturing operations globally, Tesla will
also have to continue to increase and staff its delivery,
servicing and charging infrastructure accordingly, maintain
its vehicle reliability and optimise its supercharger locations
to ensure cost effectiveness and customer satisfaction.
In particular, as other automotive manufacturers have
announced their agreements with Tesla to utilise its
superchargers, Tesla must correspondingly expand its
network in order to ensure adequate availability to
meet customer demands. Tesla also remains focused on
continued enhancements of the capability and efficiency of
its servicing operations.

A fair value gain of approximately HK$95.4 million was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
loss of approximately HK$174.1 million). During the year
and for the year ended 31 December 2023, Tesla did not
declare any dividend.

The significant investment is held for trading. The Group
will review its investment strategy regularly in response to
the changes in market situation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current
assets of approximately HK$23.1 million (31 December
2022: approximately HK$24.6 million) and net assets of
approximately HK$887.4 million (31 December 2022:
approximately HK$719.4 million). The Group adopts
a conservative approach towards its treasury policies.
The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
monitoring the trade receivables of its customers on an
ongoing basis. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely
monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group's assets, liabilities
and commitments can meet its funding requirements.
Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the
foreign exchange exposure. The Group's transactional
currencies are Hong Kong dollars and Canadian dollars
as substantially all the revenues are in Hong Kong dollars
and Canadian dollars. The Group's transactional foreign
exchange exposure was insignificant.

On 1 December 2008, Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (“Mr.
Yeung”, being the Chairman of the Board, an executive
Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company)
provided a HK$200 million term loan facility to the
Company which is unsecured and charged with interest at
the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited.
The principal amount of the loan facility was increased
up to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009 (the “Revised
Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility”) and the final repayment
date of the loan and all other sums owing to Mr. Yeung
under the Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility was further
extended from 31 October 2024 to 31 October 2026 by
a supplemental letter of agreement dated 29 September
2023. As at 31 December 2023, the Company owed
HK$173.0 million to Mr. Yeung under the Revised Mr.
Yeung's Loan Facility (31 December 2022: HK$216.0
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
(continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s secured bank
facilities were approximately HK$306.9 million (31
December 2022: approximately HK$313.2 million)
which bear interest at Hong Kong interbank offered rate
(HIBOR) plus a margin that was ranged from 1.7% to
2.0% per annum (31 December 2022: 1.7% to 2.0%
per annum). In addition, the Group had secured general
bank facilities for issuance of standby letters of credit of
(i) CAD2.0 million (31 December 2022: CAD2.0 million)
which carries a commission rate of 1.2% per annum;
and (ii) approximately USDO.1 million (31 December
2022: approximately USDO0.1 million). The proceeds of
the facilities were for the Group's general operation. As
at 31 December 2023, the outstanding bank loans were
HK$306.5 million (31 December 2022: HK$312.5 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had current and non-
current lease liabilities of approximately HK$0.3 million and
HK$0.3 million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$0.6
million and HK$0.2 million) respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, total equity attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$887.4
million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$719.4
million). The net gearing ratio, which was measured on the
basis of the interest-bearing borrowings (including lease
liabilities), net of cash and cash equivalents, of the Group
over total equity attributable to owners of the Company,
was approximately 48% as at 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: approximately 53%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Provision of Financial Assistance to Pier 16 —
Property Development

References were made to the announcement dated 21
June 2023 (the “Announcement”) and the circular dated
13 July 2023 (the "Circular”) both issued by the Company
in relation to the provision of financial assistant to Pier 16
— Property Development (the “2023 Financial Assistance”).
The estimated total exposure of the Company under
the provision of the 2023 Financial Assistance was
approximately HK$525 million.

The provision of the 2023 Financial Assistance constituted
a major transaction for the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). On 21 June
2023, the Company obtained a written shareholder’s
approval from a shareholder, which held approximately
71.61% of the entire issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of such written approval, in respect of the
provision of the 2023 Financial Assistance.

For further details of the 2023 Financial Assistance, please
refer to the Announcement and the Circular.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had secured the
following assets:

(@) The Group pledged all of its investment properties,
one of its stock of properties as well as the leasehold
land and building totally with the carrying amount
of approximately HK$410.3 million (31 December
2022: approximately HK$434.9 million) to secure
against the loan facilities of approximately HK$306.9
million and a standby letter of credit of CAD2.0
million, totally equivalent to approximately HK$318.9
million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$313.2
million and CAD2.0 million, totally equivalent to
approximately HK$324.9 million) granted to the
Group; and

(b)  World Fortune Limited (“World Fortune”, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) pledged
all (31 December 2022: all) of its shares in Pier
16 — Property Development to a bank in respect
of the loan facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property
Development.

Contingent Liabilities

The Company gave a corporate guarantee (the
“Guarantee”) to a bank in respect of the loan facilities
granted to Pier 16 — Property Development. The maximum
guarantee amount borne by the Company under the
Guarantee was HK$490.0 million.

The outstanding loan under the Revised Loan Facilities
as at 31 December 2023 was HK$180.0 million (31
December 2022: outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities
was HK$230.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of
72 employees. Remuneration is determined on the
basis of qualifications, experience, responsibilities and
performance. In addition to the basic remuneration, staff
benefits include medical insurance and retirement benefits.
Share options may also be granted to eligible employees of
the Group as a long-term incentive.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2024, the global economy continues
to face multifaceted challenges. Although the risk of a
global recession has been diminished, largely due to the
resilient economy of the USA, escalating geopolitical
tensions is posing immediate threats. In the medium term,
many developing economies are grappling with dimmer
prospects due to decelerating growth in major economies,
sluggish global trade, and historically tight financial
conditions. Moreover, borrowing costs for developing
countries are expected to remain elevated as global
interest rates continue to hover at four-decade highs. On
a brighter note, China is progressing steadily as backed by
stimulus measures to optimise economic structures and
sustain the ongoing recovery, contributing to its overall
stability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

UNWTO foresees a return to pre-pandemic international
tourist arrivals in 2024, with a potential 2% surpassing
of the 2019 Levels. China is actively enhancing its
attractiveness as an Asian tourist destination. In late 2023,
China introduced a 15-day visa-free travel option for
tourists from France, Germany, Italy, the Netherlands, Spain
and Malaysia. Furthermore, China and Thailand announced
mutual permanent visa-free arrangements beginning
in March 2024. China and Singapore also reached an
agreement for a reciprocal 30-day visa-free period for
their citizens in 2024. China’s National Immigration
Administration (NIA) recently unveiled visa policy reforms,
simplifying entry for foreigners, including USA citizens.
These initiatives strategically aim to boost inbound tourism
and business travel. Jade Travel, renowned for its strong
brand presence in wholesale operations and established
airline partnerships in China and North America, is well-
positioned to capitalise on this expanding opportunity.
Jade Travel plans to broaden its product portfolio for
leading domestic and international travel platforms
and agencies to accommodate surging travel demands.
Additionally, Jade Travel will continue to launch tailored
tour packages and local itineraries, featuring exotic global
destinations and offering unique experiences to catering
to diverse interests. The projected recovery of the tourism
industry in 2024 is expected to surpass that of 2023,
indicating a promising future for both the industry and
Jade Travel.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

In the near term, the Hong Kong property market is
projected to experience decreasing demands, primarily
attributed to the current high interest rates. Nevertheless,
as global interest rates have likely reached their peak, a
good basis exists for a resurgence in commercial property
demand, particularly in prime areas. The Group maintains a
positive outlook regarding the enduring potential of Hong
Kong's commercial property market. It holds confidence
that its current investment portfolio will consistently yield
stable returns. With a vigilant approach to monitoring
market dynamics, the Group is implementing a prudent
strategy to adeptly navigate current challenges while
positioning itself to seize future opportunities to optimise
its investment portfolio.

Macau’s tourism sector continues to thrive in 2024. For the
first 2 months of 2024 combined, Macau's GGR increased
72.7% year-on-year to approximately MOP37.8 billion,
signalling a strong start to 2024. The Macao Government
Tourism Office (MGTO) recorded almost 1.4 million
visitor arrivals to Macau during the eight-day Chinese
New Year holidays beginning on 10 February 2024,
returning to approximately 98.8% of the level recorded
during the same holiday period in 2019. Leveraging this
resurgence in visitor numbers from both Mainland China
and abroad, Ponte 16 is committed to providing guests
with an exceptional accommodation experience infused
with unique cultural elements. Alongside neighbouring
communities, Ponte 16 offers a comprehensive array of
entertainment and local activities tailored to a diverse
consumer base. To enhance its presence among Asian
visitors, Ponte 16 will keep on implementing targeted
marketing campaigns across various popular social media
and online platforms in Asia.

In a dynamic recovery environment, the Group draws
inspiration from positive developments in its sectors in
2024. The Group maintains an optimistic and strategic
approach to navigate the robust yet dynamic recovery,
with a strong commitment to enriching its diverse business
portfolio. With a strategic mindset and prudent decision-
making, the Group remains steadfast in its mission to
achieve a sustainable long-term growth and capitalise on
emerging opportunities ahead.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEER/RS

Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed
to maintain high corporate governance standard and
procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality
of disclosure in order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
("Director(s)”), the Company has complied with all
the code provisions set out in Part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules™)
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”), led by its chairman
("Chairman”), Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, is responsible
for overseeing the management of the business and
affairs, considering and approving strategic plans and
major corporate matters, as well as reviewing operational
and financial performance. It also establishes the Group’s
purpose, values and strategy to align with the corporate
culture. The Board is committed to make decisions in the
best interests of both the Company and its shareholders
(“Shareholders™).
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of six
members, including two executive Directors, namely Mr.
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) and Mr. Ma Ho Man,
Hoffman (Deputy Chairman); a non-executive Director
("NED"), namely Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle; and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INED(s)"),
namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing
Lok, Ambrose and Mr. Chong Ming Yu ™®_QOne of the
INEDs, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose, is a certified public
accountant (practising) and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He
has over 37 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and taxation.

All the Directors have entered into service contracts/letters
of appointment without specific term of office with the
Company. Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company
("Bye-laws”), all Directors are subject to retirement and
re-election at least once every three years at the annual

”

general meetings of the Company (“AGM(s)").

Note: Mr. Chong Ming Yu will cease to act as an INED and Ms. Hon
Hong Lun, Jackie (formerly known as Hon Heung Mui, Jackie) has
been appointed as an INED both with effect from 1 April 2024.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All Directors, including the NED and all INEDs, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its
efficient and effective functioning. Composing of both
male and female Directors with different business and
professional background, the Board is considered to
have an appropriate size and balanced structure and
composition with diverse mix of skills, experience,
expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Group’s business. The Directors’
biographical details, including relationships among them
and their respective roles on the Board and its committees,
are set out under the paragraphs headed “Directors” in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 126 to 130 of this annual
report.

The roles of the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman who
performs the function of chief executive are segregated
and assumed by separate individuals to strike a balance of
power and authority so that power and job responsibilities
are not concentrated in any one individual of the Board.
The Chairman, Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, is responsible
for overseeing the function of the Board and formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company, while
the Deputy Chairman, Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, is
responsible for implementing the Company’s strategies
regarding the business development of the Group as well
as managing the Group’s business and operations. The
functions and responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Deputy Chairman are clearly segregated.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company has established mechanisms (the
“Mechanisms”) to ensure that independent views and
inputs are made available to the Board. The Mechanisms
are categorised into four aspects, namely composition of
the Board and its committees, independence assessment,
remuneration as well as Board decision making (collectively
the "Aspects”). During the year, the Board has conducted
a review on the implementation and effectiveness of the
Mechanisms. Taking into account of the Aspects with
details set out below, the Mechanisms are considered to be
effective to ensure a strong independence element in the
Board:

e  Composition of the Board and its

committees

The Board consists of three INEDs, representing
one-half of the Board. Besides, all INEDs are members
of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) of the Board, and
represent the majority of the members of these
committees. The INEDs will also be appointed as far
as practicable to other Board committees established
from time to time to ensure independent views are
available.

e Independence assessment
The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the
policy for nomination of Directors (the “Nomination
Policy”) and the independence assessment guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules (the
“Independence Guidelines”) with regard to the
nomination, appointment and re-election of INEDs.

Each INED shall keep the Board promptly and fully
informed of any of his/her business or other activities
which would or is likely to cause him/her to be in
conflict with the interest of the Company and any
matter which may affect his/her independence for the
purposes of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXELRS (&

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independence assessment (continued)

The Nomination Committee assesses the
independence of all INEDs annually to ensure that
the INEDs can continually exercise independent
judgement. During the year, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the confirmation of
independence received from each INED and assessed
each of their independence with reference to the
Independence Guidelines. All INEDs were considered
to be independent.

Remuneration

No equity-based remuneration, including but not
limited to share options or grants, with performance-
related elements will be granted to INEDs in order to
avoid bias in their decision-making and compromise
their objectivity and independence.

Board decision making

INEDs (as well as other Directors) are provided with
updates from management and are entitled to seek
further information from the management on the
matters to be discussed at the Board meetings and
any meetings of the Board committee(s) on which
they serve. They can also seek assistance from the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) and, where necessary, independent advice
from external professional advisers at the Company’s
expense.

Annual meeting is held between the Chairman and
all INEDs without the presence of other Directors so
as to provide effective platform for the Chairman to
listen independent views on various issues concerning
the Group.

The Board will review the implementation and
effectiveness of the Mechanisms and consider any revisions

Sh

)Q-

thereof that may be required on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board meets regularly throughout the year as and
when required. Notices of at least 14 days are given to
all Directors for all regular Board meetings. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agendas
for the meetings and all Directors are consulted whether
to include any matters in the agendas. Agenda and
accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in a
timely manner and at least 3 days before the appointed
date of each meeting.

During the year under review, four regular Board meetings
and five non-regular Board meetings were held. Details of
attendance of the Directors at the said Board meetings are
set out below:

TEEELRS (&

EFE (@

EFENFEREHRILNAFERET
R -ARANMFIAEFEEREZM
EREFHELEDTOEBEN - RBHW
EMPEIEERGRRE  LAHRE
EFEARENEEMAZREN ZRE
REMZESZSEEXHTERILNE
REFEERTHPMEL=ZBEESE
RRESE-

REEFEANBRTOREZTTERS
ENAREFZGHERGER -EFLFE
tHEEEERZCBRFIBHIIMT !

Number of
Board meetings
attended/held
HEEEEGERY
Directors = BITEFEEERRE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) BB E (F/E) 7/9
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman) BIEX RS (BIF/E) 9/9
Non-executive Director EMITES
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BEIEEE 9/9
Independent non-executive Directors BIERITES
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRETL 9/9
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose [EPIE S 9/9
Mr. Chong Ming Yu TRkt 9/9
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, one general meeting of the
Company, namely the AGM, was held on 9 June 2023
(2023 AGM"). Details of attendance of the Directors at
the 2023 AGM are set out below:

=)
REIBEFERNEKATSRIT—RREK
g R E =B EHET2K

HAFEAG ((ZTE_=ZFBFBEFKA
@)  BEREHFB _E_=FKFBEFK
G BEEHYWT

2023
AGM attendance
—E-=F
Directors 55 RRBEARGZ HELER
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) e E (F/E) 71
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman) EESRE (BIFE) A
Non-executive Director ERITES
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BBt 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIIERITES
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREL LT 171
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose (& S 171
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HHMiE 171

The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the
Directors to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expense, to
assist them in performing their duties. All Directors are
provided with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group's performance,
financial position and prospects to keep the Directors
abreast of the Group’s affairs in order to discharge their
duties. All Directors are also updated from time to time on
major changes/material developments in the laws, rules
and regulations applicable to the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Board has reviewed and considered
that the contribution required from each of the Directors
to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company was
appropriate and each of the Directors has given sufficient
time to perform his/her responsibilities. The Directors
inform the Company in a timely manner of any change in
the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments. Each
of the Directors discloses semi-annually to the Company
the identity and nature of office he/she holds in the public
companies or organisations as well as an indication of the
time involved.

Every newly appointed Director will be given a
comprehensive formal induction covering the Group’s
business as well as the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company. To assist
the Directors to participate in continuous professional
development, the Company arranges and funds suitable
training to the Directors to update and enhance their
knowledge and skills for performing the Directors’
roles and responsibilities. During the year under review,
all Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny,
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle,
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose
and Mr. Chong Ming Yu, were furnished with materials
regarding, inter alia, directors’ duties and obligations,
rules compliance and enforcement, corporate governance,
business management as well as applicable laws, rules
and regulations updates, attended an in-house seminar
regarding updates on corporate governance organised by
the Company, and also viewed the e-training courses and
reading materials provided by ICAC. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend training relevant to their duties and
responsibilities that they consider appropriate. All Directors
are requested to provide their respective records of training
to the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has established four Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing the Board's
responsibilities. The Board has reserved for its decision
or consideration on matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, changes of members of the
Board and its committees, major acquisitions, disposals
and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. All the Board committees have
clear written terms of reference and have to report to the
Board regularly on their decisions and recommendations.
The day-to-day running of the Group, including
implementation of the strategies and plans adopted by the
Board and its committees, is delegated to management
with divisional heads responsible for different aspects of
the business/affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference. The terms of reference
for the Audit Committee is available on the Company’s
website and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange"). As at the date of
this report, the Audit Committee consists of Mr. Choi Kin
Pui, Russelle, being the NED, and Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung,
Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose and Mr. Chong Ming
Yu ™ being all INEDs, and is chaired by Mr. Chin Wing
Lok, Ambrose who possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualification as required under the Listing
Rules.

Note: Mr. Chong Ming Yu will cease to act as a member of the Audit
Committee and Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie (formerly known as Hon
Heung Mui, Jackie) has been appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee both with effect from 1 April 2024.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the
responsibility to perform the corporate governance duties
set out in the CG Code. During the year under review,
the primary duties of the Audit Committee included,
inter alia, monitoring integrity of the financial statements
of the Company and ensuring objectivity and credibility
of financial reporting, reviewing effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
(the “Risk Management and Internal Control Systems”),
overseeing the relationship with the external auditors of
the Company (“External Auditors”) as well as ensuring
maintenance of good corporate governance standard and
procedures by the Company.

During the year under review, three Audit Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
Audit Committee members at the said Audit Committee
meetings are set out below:

Audit Committee members ExZE

TEEELRS (&

BEZZE8Y (8

EFGCERRENLZEGEBERTER
%ﬁié%?é!'JFH%iZfE%g/uH%k 5 o jL[B1 R
FEN BZZEGZIEHES HP
B1F) BERARBMBREZ TEER
BRUBREEEHIE BN EEEA
BREERANSEZERG (AREERA
MEERM) 2 BB EHARE S
BB (TSNS 8em)) ZRfE > MUK
BRAERGBMEFRRFZEXEEARER
BRFe

@Eﬁfﬁfﬁﬂ%??:‘T\%*?éégg
ﬁ'ﬁ%@éé?!ﬁﬁﬁf‘i mMBEZE
Egn uaﬁuﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬂ? .

Number of
Audit Committee
meetings attended/held

HEBEZEZETE: :ﬂﬁ/

BEHE ROTERZEEERRK

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (FEEZZEZE
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BEEEYE
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREZL
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HHMiE

2 F/E) 3/3
3/3
3/3
3/3
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXELRS (&

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year included the following:

e  Reviewed the draft annual report and accounts as
well as the draft annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2022, and the draft interim
report and accounts as well as the draft interim
results announcement for the six months ended 30
June 2023,

e  (Considered the re-appointment of the External
Auditors;

e  Considered the terms of engagement of the External
Auditors, including their proposed fees;

e Discussed with the External Auditors the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

e Considered the engagement of an external
independent consultant to provide internal
audit function for the year ended 31 December
2023, which comprises, inter alia, enterprise risk
assessment, review on the internal control system
of the Group as well as review on the corporate
governance practices of the Company;

e  (Considered the engagement of an independent
professional firm to establish/enhance certain policies
and procedures relating to operations of a branch
office of the Group;
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Reviewed the effectiveness of the Risk Management
and Internal Control Systems, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions as well as those relating to environmental,
social and governance (“ESG") performance and
reporting (the “ESG Performance and Reporting”);

Reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report contained in the annual report;

Reviewed the Company’s whistleblowing policy
which sets out the arrangements for, inter alia, the
employees of the Group (“Employees”) to raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties
in any matters related to the Group;

Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

Reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of all Directors and the senior
management of the Company (" Senior Management”);

Reviewed the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
and

Reviewed the codes of conduct, policies, guidelines
and compliance manuals applicable to the Directors
and the Employees.

TEEELRS (&

BEZZE8Y (8

BERAREEAANBEERTKZ
PR BIEAATEE S NELE
TRV BERBMEDEUKRARB
RE-degkEn (RE-HEK
B RERER (RE- T K
EaRBERER) ZER-BETE
FEREHRRE R UKRBIFE
RHEIREREREBEENES
JE 5

B AABRETEEERTRZE
MRERERFIHEEERREA
ZIREE ;

B AR ZRBER > EPHT
= EHPeE) sEBES (MEEY)
PREZZHE > LIS R iR A&
EHEBEEAELRREZAETRAIER
tHBEE S

BENARBZEXEELARRKE
i3

BANEREERARTBREEA
B (e EE AR ZBIIRFFE
HEEE,

BANARBREETEEREERE
PTEZBRRER &

RN EBRREEREBZTAST
AR 155 I RE R T

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 ¥R

51



52

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXELRS (&

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the
Board with specific written terms of reference. The terms
of reference for the Remuneration Committee is available
on the Company's website and the website of the Stock
Exchange. As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee consists of Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, being
an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, Mr.
Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, being the NED, and Ms. Yeung
Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose and Mr.
Chong Ming Yu ™, being all INEDs, with Ms. Yeung Mo
Sheung, Ann acts as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’'s policy and structure for remuneration
of all Directors and Senior Management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy, to determine
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and Senior Management and also to make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of the
NED and all INEDs.

The Company has adopted a remuneration policy for
Directors and Senior Management (the “Remuneration
Policy”) setting out the procedures for determining or
review of remuneration packages of/compensation for
the Directors and Senior Management. In determining
the remuneration packages of executive Directors and
Senior Management, and arriving its recommendations
of the remuneration proposals of the NED and all INEDs,
the Remuneration Committee takes into consideration
on various factors, such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and the Senior Management. During the
determination and review process, no Director or any
of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

Note: Mr. Chong Ming Yu will cease to act as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie (formerly
known as Hon Heung Mui, Jackie) has been appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee both with effect from 1
April 2024.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held and details of attendance
of the Remuneration Committee members at the said
Remuneration Committee meeting are set out below:
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Number of
Remuneration Committee
meeting attended/held

HEFNEZSTEERY

Remuneration Committee members HNEEERE BITHFMEEEEERE
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRETL

(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) FWNZEE L /E) 171
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny NI 11
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BEEELE 1/1
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose [P S 171
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRMEE 171

The major work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year included the following:

e Reviewed the Remuneration Policy and the
Company’s remuneration structure for all Directors

and Senior Management;

e Reviewed and determined the remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and Senior

Management;

e  Reviewed the remuneration packages of the NED and

all INEDs; and

° Reviewed the terms of the service contracts of all

executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXELRS (&

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference for the Nomination Committee is available on
the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange. As at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee consists of Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, being
an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, Mr.
Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, being the NED, and Ms. Yeung
Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose and Mr.
Chong Ming Yu ™ being all INEDs, with Mr. Yeung
Hoi Sing, Sonny acts as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
of perspectives) of the Board, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on selection for
directorships, to assess the independence of INEDs, to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, as well as to review the Board diversity policy
of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and the
Nomination Policy.

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance, and will select candidates for
the Board basing on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and independence (the “Measurable Objectives”). The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Nomination Committee reviews the Measurable
Obijectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy
by considering the Company’s business model and specific
needs from time to time and recommends any revisions
thereof, if necessary, to the Board for consideration and
approval.

Note: Mr. Chong Ming Yu will cease to act as a member of the
Nomination Committee and Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie (formerly
known as Hon Heung Mui, Jackie) has been appointed as a
member of the Nomination Committee both with effect from 1
April 2024.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

A summary of the diversity of the Board as at 31
December 2023 is set out in the table below:

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Number of Director(s)
EEHE
Composition Executive Directors )
#ERY HITESR
NED 1
JFFMITES
INEDs 3
BUIFRITES
Gender Male c
5 5%
Female 1
7%
Age Group 46-55 2
iR 56-65 2
> 66 2
Skills/Knowledge/ Related industries knowledge/experience 5
Experience MERIITERH K5
R HIH KRR Business management 4
BEEE
Strategic planning and risk management 4
SRES AR B K = i B I
Other listed board roles 3
HMtMIEHmESEAGB
Professional Accounting 1
HERR G5t
Legal
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Board has achieved gender diversity by having both
male and female members and the female representation
in the Board level as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately 16.7%. The Board had set a target for
achieving its female representation to around 30% by
appointing one female member before end of 2024 (the
“Target”) to enhance gender diversity in the Board level.
In order to achieve the Target, the Nomination Committee
solicited recommendations for female candidates during
the year and has nominated a female candidate, namely
Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie (formerly known as Hon
Heung Mui, the Jackie), in accordance with the Criteria
(as defined hereinafter) and the processes as set out in
the Nomination Policy for the Board's consideration for
appointment as an INED (the “Appointment of Ms. Hon")
in March 2024. Meanwhile, Mr. Chong Ming Yu has
tendered his resignation as an INED with effect from 1
April 2024, and the Board has approved the Appointment
of Ms. Hon in place of Mr. Chong Ming Yu with effect
from 1 April 2024 (the "Changes of INEDs”, details of
which are set out in the announcement dated 27 March
2024 issued by the Company regarding, inter alia, the
Changes of INEDs).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the gender
diversity of the Senior Management is at 1:1 male
to female ratio and the gender diversity of the total
workforce of the Group is at 1:1.72 male to female ratio.
Details of the relevant data of the Group’s workforce are
set out in the performance table for social performance
contained in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on page 95 of this
annual report. The Group maintains a balanced gender
ratio in Senior Management and a reasonable gender
ratio in its total workforce. The Group emphasises
equal opportunities for all staff and candidates during
recruitment, internal transfer and promotion. It prohibits
any form of discrimination, such as gender, age and race,
and promotes and recruits staff based on various factors,
including ability, expertise, skills and integrity.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets
out the process of identification, selection and evaluation
of a candidate for election to the Board. Where a vacancy
on the Board exists or an additional Director is considered
necessary, the Nomination Committee will solicit
recommendations for candidates from any source it deems
appropriate, including referrals from members of the Board
and management of the Company or recommendations
from personnel agents. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate the candidate by considering, inter alia, (i)
the candidate’s qualifications and contribution from the
candidate’s background, experience, specific qualities,
knowledge or skills; (i) the candidate on merit and against
the Measurable Objectives, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board; and (iii) the requirement
for the Board to have independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules, and it will also take into account of the
existing structure, size and composition of the Board
(collectively the “Criteria”). The Nomination Committee
will make recommendation to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate as a Director.

The Nomination Committee evaluates retiring Directors
who wish to continue their services on the Board based
on the Criteria and makes recommendation to the Board
for proposing re-election of the relevant Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

To ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy
and the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review the said policies annually and discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions
to the Board for consideration and approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
Nomination Committee members at the said Nomination
Committee meetings are set out below:
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Number of
Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held

HERLZEGERERY

Nomination Committee members RLEZEEENKE BITIRLZEGEERH
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny s e

(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) B2 ZEEZLE) 2/2
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BEBEE 2/2
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRETL 2/2
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose [P S 2/2
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRMEE 2/2

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year included the following:

Assessed the independence of all INEDs;

e  Considered the nomination of the retiring Directors
for re-election as Directors at the annual general
meeting held in 2023;

e Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and its
implementation and effectiveness;

e Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board; and

e Reviewed the Nomination Policy.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was established by the
Board with specific written terms of reference. As at the
date of this report, the Executive Committee consists of
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny and Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman,
being all executive Directors, with Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing,
Sonny acts as the chairman of the Executive Committee.
The Executive Committee is responsible for reviewing and
approving, inter alia, any matters concerning the day-to-
day management, business and operational affairs of the
Company, and any matters to be delegated to it by the
Board from time to time.

During the year under review, five Executive Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
Executive Committee members at the said Executive
Committee meetings are set out below:
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Number of
Executive Committee
meetings attended/held

HERTEZETERRE

Executive Committee members BITEEERE BITPTEZEEEENY
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny s e

(Chairman of the Executive Committee) FHITZEETL/E) 5/5
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman BEXEE 5/5
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWME

Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes is the Company Secretary
who has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
She reports to the Chairman and advises the Board on
governance matters. Her biographical information is set
out in the sub-paragraph headed “Company Secretary”
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on page 130 of this annual
report.

During the year under review, in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of
whom has confirmed his’/her compliance with the required
standard set out in the Code of Conduct and the Model
Code throughout the year under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks (including
ESG-related risks (“ESG-Related Risks™)) it is willing to take
in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, maintaining
appropriate and effective Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (including those for ESG-Related Risks)
and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of such systems, while the Board
oversees management in performing its duties. The Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems are designed
to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance
against material misstatements or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems
and achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Group adopts a risk management system which
manages the risk associated with its business and
operations. The system comprises the following phases:

e I|dentification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement
of objectives.

e Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

e Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.

The Company has in place an internal control system
which is compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO")
2013 framework. The COSO 2013 framework enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:

e  Control Environment: A set of standards, processes
and structures that provide the basis for carrying out
internal control across the Group.

e Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

e  Control Activities: Actions established by policies
and procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the achievement of
objectives are carried out.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

e Information and Communication: Internal and
external communication to provide the Group with
the information needed to carry out day-to-day
internal control activities.

e Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of internal
control is present and functioning.

A disclosure of inside information policy (the "Inside
Information Policy”) is in place to ensure potential inside
information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure are made in accordance with the Listing Rules.
The Inside Information Policy regulates the handling and
dissemination of inside information, which includes:

e Designated reporting channels from different
departments/operation units informing any potential
inside information to the Company Secretary;

e The access of information is restricted to a
limited number of employees on a need-to-know
basis. Employees who are in possession of inside
information are fully conversant with their obligations
to preserve confidentiality;

e  Confidentiality agreements are in place when the
Group enters into significant negotiations;

e  The Senior Management to evaluate the potential
inside information and to determine further
escalation, and the executive Directors to determine
disclosure as required; and

e  The Deputy Chairman is the designated person
who speaks on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties, such as media,
analysts or investors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant with professional staff in
possession of relevant expertise (the “Independent
Professional Firm"”) to perform internal audit function
for the year, which comprised, inter alia, enterprise risk
assessment as well as interim and annual reviews on the
internal control system of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The review plan
was approved by the Audit Committee and the Board.
Based on the risk assessments and the reviews of the
internal control system of the Group conducted by the
Independent Professional Firm for the year, no significant
risk and control deficiency was identified. The relevant
assessment and review reports have been considered by
the Audit Committee and the Board for assessing the
effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
as well as those relating to the ESG Performance and
Reporting. The Board, through the reviews made by the
Independent Professional Firm and the Audit Committee,
concluded that the Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems are effective and adequate for the Group as a
whole.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Company is committed to maintaining high
probity standards and ethical business practices.
An anti-corruption policy of the Group (the "Anti-
Corruption Policy”) and a whistleblowing policy for
Employees and third parties who deal with the Group (the
"Whistleblowing Policy”) are in place and included into
the Employees’ handbook to ensure that the importance
of staff integrity is emphasised and delivered to the
Employees. The Anti-Corruption Policy provides guidance
on the ethical behaviours when handling issues such as
bribery and corruption, conflict of interest and acceptance
of gift. The Whistleblowing Policy provides reporting
channels and guidance for Employees and third parties
who deal with the Group to raise concerns, in confidence
and anonymity, about any suspected or actual misconduct,
malpractice or irregularities in any matters related to the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS'
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group and ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the External Auditors, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB"), about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out under the paragraph headed
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” in the section headed
“Independent Auditors” Report” on pages 131 to 140 of
this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS'
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the amounts paid
to the external auditors of the Group in respect of the
following services provided to the Group are as follows:
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Audit services ZBAR TS 900
Other advisory services (Note) HhEERARTS (22 400
1,300

Note: Other advisory services mainly comprised interim review services
and acting as a reporting accountant in connection with the major
transaction of the Company during the year.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRET E

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening a special general meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, the Board
may whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings
("SGM(s)"), and Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company, on a one vote per
Share basis, shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a SGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business or resolution specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held in the form of a physical
meeting only within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the Company’s head office and principal place of business
(the "Head Office”) at Units 1003-04A, 10/F, Tower 1,
Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to call the SGM and include
the resolution in the agenda for such SGM.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene such physical meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the said date.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information
of the Shareholders and deposited at the Head Office
at Units 1003-04A, 10/F., Tower 1, Admiralty Centre,
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with the detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Head Office at Units 1003-
04A, 10/F., Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at AGMs or all other general meetings
(including SGMs) varies as follows:

(@) Not less than 21 clear days’ notice in writing for an
AGM; or

(b) Not less than 14 clear days’ notice in writing for all
other general meetings (including a SGM).

In addition, details for the procedures for Shareholders
to propose a person for election as a Director at any
Shareholders’ meeting are available on the Company’s
website at www.successug.com.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXELRS (&

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy (the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) for the
purposes of ensuring that the Shareholders are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to information about
the Company, enabling the Shareholders to exercise
their rights in an informed manner and allowing the
Shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

The Company maintains its own website,
www.successug.com, at which the Shareholders can
access the Company's information, such as financial
reports, announcements, circulars and notices. Additional
information, such as press releases, presentation materials
and other business information, is also available on the
Company's website. Information on the Company's
website is in both English and Chinese versions and is
updated on a timely/regular basis.

Shareholders are welcomed to raise questions and
provide opinions relating to the Company and may
at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Company by addressing them to the Company Secretary
or the Corporate Communications Department of the
Company by mail to Units 1003-04A, 10/F., Tower 1,
Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or by
email to info@successug.com. Besides, Shareholders
may direct questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, by mail to 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or by email to
is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders through AGMs and other general meetings.
All Directors, including the Chairman, who is also
the chairmen of the Nomination Committee and the
Executive Committee, as well as the chairmen of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, were
present at the 2023 AGM to answer the Shareholders’
questions. HLB also attended the 2023 AGM for the
purposes of answering questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and contents of the auditors’ report,
the accounting policies and auditors’ independence.
Separate resolutions have been proposed at the 2023
AGM on each substantially separate issues. Detailed
procedures for conducting a poll are clearly explained
at the commencement of the 2023 AGM. High voting
approval rate on the resolutions considered was recorded
at the 2023 AGM.

Press conference, media interview and/or meeting with
analysts and investors are arranged from time to time
to facilitate communication between the Company,
Shareholders and the investment community. During the
year, a press conference and various media interviews have
been held. The Deputy Chairman, who had dialogues
with media, complied with the disclosure obligations and
requirements under the Inside Information Policy.

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy and its
implementation and effectiveness will be reviewed by the
Board annually. During the year, the Board has reviewed
the Shareholders” Communication Policy by taking
into account of the aforesaid measures in place and
considered that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy is
implemented effectively.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXELRS (&

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

A special resolution was passed at the 2023 AGM to
amend the Bye-laws then in force and to adopt the
amended and restated Bye-laws (the “Amendments
to Bye-laws”). Details of the Amendments to Bye-laws
are set out in the circular dated 28 April 2023 issued
by the Company. The latest consolidated version of the
Company’s memorandum of association and the Bye-laws
is available on the Company’s website and the website of
the Stock Exchange.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which aims to set out the principles as a reference
for the Company to determine dividend distribution so as
to allow the Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits whilst preserving liquidity of the Group to capture
future growth opportunities.

Any payments/recommendations of payment of
dividends are subject to discretion by the Board that such
declarations/recommendations of payment of dividends are
in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders
and are also subject to any restrictions under and in
compliance with all applicable rules and regulations
(including, inter alia, the Companies Act of Bermuda) and
the Bye-laws. In addition, any payment of final dividend for
a financial year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Board shall consider the Company’s ability to pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount of any
dividend in any financial year/period by taking into account
of the following factors:

e capital requirements

e distributable profits

e liquidity position

e  results of operations

e future prospects

e investment plans

e  taxation considerations

e other funding covenants and requirements

e any other factors that the Board may deem
appropriate

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time
and will make any revisions thereof, if necessary.

On behalf of the Board
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R B RERHRS

Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) believes
that business success is attributed to the sustainable
development and the creation of long-term values
for stakeholders. Therefore, the Group endeavours to
incorporate environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
principles into its operations and business strategies.

REPORTING APPROACH

Reporting Standard
This ESG report (the “Report”) covers the financial year
ended 31 December 2023. The Report summarises the
Group’s sustainability performance and achievements to
offer stakeholders’ insight into the Group's sustainable
development progress.

The Report was prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) contained in Appendix
C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). In preparing the Report, the Group adhered
to the four reporting principles: materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency. Information regarding corporate
governance is addressed in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 40 to 71 of this annual
report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
IRI-HHERERRS &

REPORTING APPROACH (CONTINUED) wEHE @
Reporting Principles EE#R = A

In preparation of the Report, the Group adhered to the  RFRARER > AEBBETEEMS
reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance — =21t~ F# M —E4HERZRE) :
and consistency:

Reporting Principles The Group’s Application

BE ¥R R A FEEMERA

Materiality Material environmental and social issues are identified by stakeholders’
EEM engagement and presented to the board of directors of the Company (the

“Board”). The materiality assessment detailed on page 75 has ensured the Report
addresses the most material ESG topics pertaining to its businesses.

ZBFME2EFBHITAARBDEEE ((EF8) ERBERERMT
BERE - B/SEAMNBEEN MR REIREEEANEERRAHE

ERRE - HERERZEE-

Quantitative Key performance indicators (KPIs) are disclosed in a measurable and quantitative
21t manner as appropriate.

FREVIERRBERR TURHEREETTIKE-

Balance The Report presents an unbiased representation of the Group’s ESG management

T approach and performance to avoid misleading omissions and presentation.
TREFRAGHERAEENRRE - HEREREERFHERIE
B RRE M RE R R T o

Consistency As far as practicable and unless stated otherwise, the Group adopts consistent
—EM% measurement methodology to allow for meaningful comparison of ESG data over
time.

ERIETER T BRIESERER SRAERZFE -BHSt DA
LREHERELRREHRAIFARRNLER

SCOPE OF REPORT HREEE

The Report covers the environmental and social ZABREREAEBE _ST_=—F—H—
performance of the Group during the year from 1 January HEEZE_ZE_=F+_F=+—HILF
2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “reporting year”). The E (IHREFE)) WIREKRHTERIB oK
data and information disclosed in the Report were based  HREFFKBENEIBERERNDEREE M
on the material ESG issues identified through materiality — FFfERIFMHESERFEHNEEIRE
assessment and stakeholder engagement, including the HE&EBRZR > BIEAEESBER
sustainability performance of the Group's headquarters 22z KJade Travel Ltd. (TJade Travel)) (4%
in Hong Kong and Jade Travel Ltd. (“Jade Travel”), the HEERMEAKRDEARLNER (T
Group's travel-related business in Canada and the People’s  EJ) FUMRFAHRI XS Mol SE L EE
Republic of China (the “PRC"). X o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE-HEREBRS (&

SCOPE OF REPORT (CONTINUED)

The property investment business in Hong Kong has been
excluded from the reporting scope as some office premises
of the property investment business were leased to tenants
for their respective business operations.

Ponte 16, the Group’s flagship investment project, is also
excluded from the reporting scope because it is not under
the Group's direct operational control.

THE BOARD’S STATEMENT ON ESG

The Board considers sustainable development as the key
to the Group's long-term success. The Group pledges to
integrate ESG considerations into its business operations
and improve sustainable performance by optimising
resources in its operations. Being the highest governance
body, the Board has overall responsibility for ESG strategy
and reporting, and is responsible for the overall direction
and decision making of ESG governance. The Corporate
Communications Department of the Company is assigned
to coordinate the implementation of ESG reporting. The
material ESG-related topics are identified via stakeholders
engagement surveys, while ESG performance and
progress, opportunities and risks are regularly reviewed
and discussed by the Board.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

The Group defines its stakeholders as internal and external
groups of individuals who have a significant influence
on the Group's businesses. In order to understand their
views and to gather their feedback on daily operations,
the Group engages its key stakeholders, including
representatives from the Group’s headquarters in Hong
Kong as well as management and employees from Jade
Travel offices in Canada and the PRC, through an online
ESG survey. Understanding the needs and expectations of
key stakeholders enables the Group to formulate strategies
that address their concerns and manage potential risks.
The Company also holds annual general meeting ("AGM")
to seek approvals from its shareholders on the proposed
resolutions and to answer questions from shareholders to
facilitate communication.

The survey comprised 19 ESG topics in relation to the
Group’s business operations. These topics were identified
with the assistance of an independent consulting firm. The
Group analysed the survey responses, consolidated the
results and ranked the top three material topics related to
ESG, as shown below:
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Aspect Top Material Topics
ik REBEZE
Social e Workplace health and safety
agf THRRERERREZSE
o Anti-corruption
k&5
e Employee welfare
EE=F
Environmental . Efficiency use of materials
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e General waste management
—REEYERE
o Greenhouse gas emission
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE-HEREBRS (&

STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group integrates the identified material topics into its
long-term ESG management approaches and continues
to engage stakeholders to review and monitor its ESG
progress to mitigate the associated operational risks.

The Group welcomes comments and suggestions from its
stakeholders regarding its sustainability performance and
disclosure. Comments and suggestions can be sent to the
Group’s email address at info@successug.com.

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE

The Group believes that it is essential to foster a healthy
and safe working environment that prioritises the well-
being and safety of its employees. Therefore, the Group
has implemented various initiatives and communication
programmes to protect the rights of employees to express
opinions and pursue their personal goals.

Building a Cohesive Team

Recognising the importance of the employees’ long-term
development in building a sustainable business model,
the Group strives to build a cohesive team culture to
attract, retain, motivate and train its talented candidates
and employees through implementing several strategies,
policies and schemes.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE (CONTINUED)

Building a Cohesive Team (continued)

Attracting and retaining talents

To attract and retain talents, the Group regularly reviews
and compares its remuneration policies and packages with
the market. The Group offers a wide range of benefits
and competitive remuneration packages with reference
to market conditions and individual performance. The
remuneration packages include reasonable working hours,
annual leave, birthday leave, study leave, retirement
scheme, and medical insurance for all full-time employees
following the local employment laws and regulations. The
Group's commitment to recognising employees’ loyalty
is demonstrated through its Long Service Appreciation
programme, which appreciates the long-term contributions
of its valued employees. Additionally, the Group provides
overtime meals and travel allowances, discretionary bonus,
and may grant share options to eligible employees as a
long-term incentive to appreciate their efforts.

Upholding diversity and equal opportunities

The Group ensures equal opportunities for all employees
and job applicants during recruitment, internal transfer
and promotion. Its talent acquisition approach also
prohibits any form of discrimination on gender, age,
religious belief, race or physical disability. To avoid child
labour and forced labour, the Group complies with all
applicable statutory and legal requirements regarding
the identification and verification of work permits. If any
child labour or forced labour is discovered, the Group will
terminate the employment contract immediately, assist the
child to resume education and contact social workers to
follow-up. During the reporting year, the Group was not
involved in any incidents or lawsuits related to child labour
and forced labour.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE-HEREBRS (&

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE (CONTINUED)

Building a Cohesive Team (continued)

Investing in training and development

As employee development is closely linked to the Group's
continuous business growth, the Group has organised
different employee training activities, such as new
employee orientation and anti-corruption training. In
Jade Travel, employees receive operational and on-board
training specific to their job duties. The Group also actively
encourages its employees to attend training courses and
obtain professional qualifications by providing examination
leave.

Upholding business ethics and integrity

The Group always emphasises and practices business
ethics and responsibility, and prohibits any form of bribery
and corruption. Anti-corruption policies on bribery,
extortion, money laundering and fraud are explained to
all employees in accordance with the relevant regulations.
In line with the commitment to maintaining high
business ethical standards, the Group has implemented a
whistleblowing policy to enable its staff to confidentially
report any concerns, inappropriate or fraudulent acts. Any
suspected corruption cases will be thoroughly investigated
to determine the validity and subsequent appropriate
disciplinary actions would be made if required.

To increase the knowledge of anti-corruption laws and
uphold high ethical standards, the Group has arranged
anti-corruption training provided by ICAC for the directors
of the Company (the “Director(s)”) and employees
annually. During the reporting year, the ICAC self-learning
module (the "ICAC E-training”) has been arranged for all
Directors and employees. It aims to enhance knowledge
of anti-corruption law and be aware of corruption
temptations in daily operations. All Directors and all
employees have viewed the ICAC E-training materials. The
anti-corruption training provided further facilitates the
Group in maintaining a fair and corruption-free working
environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE (CONTINUED)

Emphasising Employees’ Wellness and Health
With a people-oriented culture, the Group prioritises its
employees’ well-being and occupational safety. The Group
is committed to improving its employees’ occupational
health, safety and well-being.

Promoting employees’ wellness

The Group believes that promoting work-life balance and
fostering a healthy and friendly working environment are
essential for ensuring employee well-being and sustaining
business operations. During the reporting year, the Group
has actively engaged with its employees through regular
staff newsletters and lucky draws. The lucky draws prizes,
such as gold ornaments, coffee vouchers and supermarket
vouchers, were aimed at enhancing overall satisfaction
and happiness, which indirectly contributes to positive
emotional and physical well-being. These initiatives also
strengthened its employees’ sense of belonging and
enhance morale. The Group extended its commitment
to employees’ well-being by gifting Christmas present to
its employees as a gesture of appreciation, fostering the
festive spirit and expressing gratitude for their hard work
and dedication throughout the reporting year.

Ensuring employees’ health and safety

The Group has put emphasis on ensuring its employees’
well-being by providing a comfortable workplace. The
interior office designs of the Group have taken into
account factors such as thermal comfort, lighting,
noise control and ergonomics. For example, the Group
provides ergonomics chairs to ensure maximum comfort
and posture support for its employees. The Group
also incorporates indoor office plants to enhance its
commitment to promoting a connection with nature
and improving employees’ mood. To minimise the risk of
injuries, most of the office appliances are contained in
built-in cabinets to avoid obstructing the passageways.
Additionally, Automated External Defibrillators (AED)
and first-aid kits were installed and checked regularly
to strengthen the Group's dedication to ensuring
occupational safety.
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RIE-HEREBRS (&

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE (CONTINUED)

Emphasising Employees’ Wellness and Health
(continued)

Ensuring employees’ health and safety (continued)
During the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group had been
dedicated to protecting its employees from the risks of
COVID-19. Air circulation systems and air purifiers were
equipped in the office. Coming to the post-pandemic era,
the Group keeps enhancing and maintaining good air
quality and ventilation to safeguard employees’ health.

DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
CULTURE

Elevating Customer Experience

The Group is committed to enhancing the customer
experience across its diversified portfolio of businesses.
To achieve this, the Group adopts a holistic quality
management approach to provide customer-centric
services, including effective complaint handling,
safeguarding intellectual property rights, and ensuring
customer privacy protections throughout its business
operations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Elevating Customer Experience (continued)
Ensuring high quality services and sustainability
along its supply chain

Service quality is crucial to the Group long-term success
and is dedicated to extending sustainability impacts
throughout its supply chain. Providing quality travel agency
services requires robust supply chain management where
factors such as suppliers’ cost, timing and performance
are primary considerations. In this regard, Jade Travel has
implemented a comprehensive supply chain management
policy to select quality suppliers for air tickets, travel
tours, shuttle bus services, etc. Jade Travel is one of the
largest travel agencies in North America and is endorsed
under the International Air Transport Association (IATA)
accreditation. The Group aims to provide unforgettable
travel experiences with world-class tours to enhance
customer satisfaction. All potential suppliers have to
conduct a comprehensive assessment of their products or
service quality, price and ESG performance. To minimise
the ESG risks along its supply chain, business ethics,
environmental performance and labour practices of the
potential suppliers are evaluated by the Group through
document screening. The Group will provide feedback
if the potential suppliers fail the assessment. Therefore,
the potential suppliers considered can improve their
sustainability performance and be invited for reassessment
in the future.

Enhancing customer satisfaction

The Group strives to create expectational customer
offerings that meet their needs. The Group values
customers’ opinions and actively reviews their comments
to improve its services and management. Any complaints
received are promptly forwarded to the relevant
department for proper investigation and follow-up. During
the reporting year, the Group did not receive any related
complaints.
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DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Elevating Customer Experience (continued)
Protecting customers’ privacy

The Group respects customers’ privacy and personal
information. The Group’s employee handbook has clearly
stated the policy and measures to protect customer data
and all confidential or sensitive information in accordance
with local laws. To prevent any unauthorised or accidental
access, the Group’s staff shall only collect necessary
information from its customers for its business activities.

Safeguarding intellectual property rights

The Group is committed to protecting intellectual property
rights. According to the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528
of the Laws of Hong Kong), all unauthorised use and copy
of computer software are prohibited within the Group. The
Group’s Information Technology Department is responsible
for ensuring all installed software are the authorised
Versions.

PROMOTING CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Giving Back to the Community

As a global citizen, the Group is deeply committed to
global sustainable development, equity, human health
and well-being. The Group consistently strive to be a
responsible and caring company that brings positive
energy to society. By way of participating various charitable
activities, the Group gives back to the community and
supports its employees in contributing to the society.
During the reporting year, the Group contributed
HK$59,000 to various organisations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PROMOTING CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

Giving Back to the Community (continued)

In line with the commitment to giving back to the
community, the Group participated in the “HKFHY's
CookiesGift for Love” Territory-wide Charity Sale 2023,
organised by the Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped
Youth (“HKFHY"). This charitable initiative focused on
supporting rehabilitation organisations, children and
youth, and economically disadvantaged families. The
Group sponsored 100 boxes of cookies in the charity
sale. In addition to supporting HKFHY, all the cookies
were donated to another charity “J6AE4T" (Pei Ho
Counterparts) for distribution to those in need. The
Group’s aim is not only to raise funds for rehabilitation
organisations, children, and economically disadvantaged
families in Hong Kong but also to spread love and care.
Furthermore, the Group purchased products from iBakery,
a social enterprise under the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
("TWGHs"), and donated them to a nursery school to
support child care and educational services for toddlers in
the community.

The Group has actively engaged and contributed to events
to spread love and care to the disadvantaged and reduce
inequalities. The aim of TWGHSs Flag Day 2023 was to raise
funds for social welfare and education services. On the
event day, donation boxes were placed in the Hong Kong
office, and employees were encouraged to donate and
invited to participate in flag-sale. Furthermore, the Group
contributed Christmas Greetings for the Chest 2023/24
event organised by The Community Chest, and supported
the United Nations International Children’s Emergency
Fund (“UNICEF"”) Charity Run organised by UNICEF
through donations.
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PROMOTING CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

Giving Back to the Community (continued)

The Group is committed to promoting a healthy and eco-
friendly lifestyle by sponsoring and supporting various
activities aiming at protecting the environment. Since
2011, the Group has been participating in Dress Casual
Day organised by The Community Chest every year.
The theme of Dress Casual Day 2023 was “Wear Your
Moment”, encouraging individuals to have fun and be
positive while dressing casually for a worthy cause, which
aligns with the Group’s values of enhancing social vitality,
improving the quality of life, promoting sustainable
lifestyles, and creating value to society. Furthermore, the
Group participated and supported the Greeners Action
Flag Day 2023 as its continued effort to engage in the
environmental protection.

Recognising the importance of physical activity in
promoting overall well-being, the Group is committed
to fostering a culture of health and fitness within the
community. The Group fully supported the Success EZ
Rolling Team during the reporting year, which aims
to encourage the general public to exercise regularly,
maintain a healthy lifestyle, enhance social vitality and
improve the quality of life. Furthermore, with the growing
concern regarding environmental issues such as climate
change, the Group reckons cycling as a sustainable
transportation option. By supporting the Success EZ Rolling
Team, the Group aims to raise awareness regarding the
benefits of cycling for personal health, to reduce carbon
footprint. Through its support, the Group strives to amplify
the message of climate change awareness, create social
value and encourage collaborative efforts in building
sustainable cities and communities. These endeavours
showcase the Group’s commitment to be a catalyst for
making positive changes and contributions to develop
sustainable cities and communities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PROMOTING CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

Giving Back to the Community (continued)

The Group will continue its commitment to community
engagement, broadening its network and initiating
community investments to fulfil its corporate social
responsibility as a corporate citizen.

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION

Enriching a Green Office Culture

By implanting the sustainability concept into its business
operations, the Group is energetically devoted to
constructing a sustainable future and it believes in
enhancing sustainability performance via workplace
behavioural changes. The Group consistently monitors
the latest developments in environmental protection
standards, develops and implements environmental policies
to minimise its environmental footprint. Furthermore, the
Group incorporates ESG facts and suggestions for climate
risks mitigation into its staff newsletters, deepening the
green office culture and raising employees’ awareness of
climate-related issues.

The Group's environmental policy is established following
the relevant environmental laws and regulations. All
business operations of the Group are mandated to comply
with the environmental policy. As a policy segment, the
Green Office Guideline helps to embed the concepts of
environmental protection and responsibility into daily
operations with an aim to boost employees’ environmental
awareness and promote resource efficiency. Moreover,
the Group's environmental performance is monitored
and reviewed regularly to ensure all the regulatory
requirements and industry standards are met.
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RIE-HEREBRS (&

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Enriching a Green Office Culture (continued)
With the growing global trend of shifting customer
preference towards greener and low-carbon travel options,
the Group will consider to explore and incorporate more
low-carbon travel options where practicable. The Group
also participated in the Earth Hour campaign facilitated
by the environmental organisation World Wide Fund for
Nature (WWF)-Hong Kong in 2023, demonstrating its
support for building a sustainable environment and raising
awareness of the climate crisis and protection of natural
habitats and biodiversity.

Monitoring Energy Use and Emissions

To contribute to combating climate change, the Group
is devoted to tackling its greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emissions by reducing the use of electricity and fuel in
office operation and transportation. The Group tracks and
integrates energy and GHG data from company activities,
which will be used for its future target-setting.

The Group has been using LED lighting at the head
office of Hong Kong since 2016 to maximise energy
efficiency. Additionally, the Group actively promotes energy
conservation among its employees by encouraging them to
switch off lights and air-conditioners after office hours.

As part of its sustainability initiative, the Group has
implemented measures to streamline its printing
infrastructure by phasing out the use of individual desktop
printers and replacing them with more energy-efficient
centralised printers across its offices. This transition not
only reduces energy consumption, but also minimises
paper waste, toner cartridge usage, and supports the
Group's recycling efforts. By adopting centralised printers,
the Group creates a greener and more cost-efficient
workplace while prioritising environmental sustainability.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Managing Waste

Due to the Group's office-based business model, paper
is the primary source of waste generation. The Group
adopts green purchasing practices for sustainable office
supplies to reduce waste. Since 2013, the Group has been
using refillable stationery products and Forest Stewardship
Council (FSC) certified paper for printing the Company’s
annual and interim reports. Since 2017, the Group’s
head office has applied lighter-weight paper as a more
environmentally friendly alternative. Starting from 2021,
the Group has been paying more efforts to preserve
the environment by transiting to plant-based soy ink for
printing annual and interim reports. For Jade Travel, it has
also embraced e-marketing and communication practices
to reduce paper use at source and move towards paperless
operations.

The Group is targeting to maintain its non-hazardous
waste intensity at the similar level of 2022. To further
enhance waste reduction and promote the circular
economy, the Group adheres to the “4Rs of Environmental
Protection” concept (i.e., Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and
Replace). Jade Travel has established waste collection
and recycling segregation facilities to endorse the circular
economy principle and promote sustainable resource
management within its operations.

Since Jade Travel’s offices were managed by the building
management, information on general waste and intensity
is unavailable. Due to its business nature, the Group did
not produce hazardous waste during its operation.

Mitigating Climate Change Risks

The Group continues to minimise the impacts of climate
change and comply with climate-related policies and
regulations. Therefore, during the reporting year, with
reference to the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures (“TCFD"”) recommendations, the Group
has identified and assessed the significant physical and
transition risks with different mitigation measures as well
as climate-related opportunities.
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SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Mitigating Climate Change Risks (continued)
Physical Risks

Extreme weather events, such as typhoons and heatwaves,
are the most significant physical risks to the Group's
business operations. To mitigate the impacts caused by
climate change and enhance its resilience, the Group has
implemented contingency procedures for extreme weather
events, including typhoons. The Group has also clarified
the relevant responsibilities for customer services in case of
emergency to ensure that its customers can travel safely.

Transition Risks

The Group has identified policy and legal risks as its
transition risks that are related to its operations and
services. Transition risks may increase the Group's
operating costs. For policy and legal risk, it is expected
that more stringent regulations will be in place for Hong
Kong listed companies in the future. For example, the
Stock Exchange requires mandatory TCFD-aligned climate-
related disclosure by 2025. Additional human capital and
costs may be required to meet the enhanced reporting
obligations and conducting independent assurance in the
future.

Opportunities

Despite the potential physical and transition risks that the
Group may face on the road to carbon neutralisation, this
journey presents emerging opportunities.

By transitioning to a low-carbon economy, the Group
keeps track of the government roadmap towards
the sustainable economy, including the government’s
decarbonisation targets by 2050, and strives to proactively
respond to those targets by taking early action. By doing
so, the Group can enhance its reputation and brand
image.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Mitigating Climate Change Risks (continued)
Opportunities (continued)

With digitalisation currently being one of the most
significant megatrends in the global business environment,
the digitalisation of Jade Travel’s online booking service
platform could present opportunities in the future. By
using digital technology to streamline its operations
and reduce paper-based transactions, Jade Travel could
potentially reduce its carbon footprint.

In addition, Jade Travel is able to understand customer
behaviours and preferences through its online booking
service platform. Relevant data may facilitate the
development of new products and services that align
with the low-carbon economy. By analysing customer
preferences and identifying emerging trends, the Group
can not only proactively manage climate-related risks
but also timely monitor its business strategies and seize
opportunities for sustainable growth.

LOOKING FORWARD

During the reporting year, the Group has shown its effort
on the commitments of prioritising employee’s well-
being, health and safety, delivering high quality services,
creating positive social value to the community, enhancing
sustainability performances, and collaborating with
stakeholders to reduce carbon emission. Looking forward,
the Group will continue to achieve its sustainability
objectives, work diligently towards incorporating
sustainable practices into its business activities and supply
chains, and advance the management of climate-related
risks and opportunities.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

BYER

Environmental Performance IRIRRIR
Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
518 B B BT CH TET—F
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emissions ;AZE R EEHEK
Scope 1: Direct Emission Tonnes of CO2 equivalent 44.63 37.94 45.71
HE  BEEHR (tCOz-e)

N (CEIERES
Scope 2: Indirect Emission tCO2-e 37.84 41.07 44.86
FHE2 © BN R (CEIERES
Total tCO2-e 82.47 79.01 90.57
/\I_; D+ Z\\[m,ﬁ ( g\:’ft I_EEE
GHG Intensity tCO2-e/millions of 0.8 0.7 0.6

RERBERE revenues (HK$)
N (CEERES)
S8t (B Wa
Remarks

Certain number of offices in Canada were excluded in Scope 2: Indirect
Emission whose electricity charges had already been included in rent.

The amount of Scope 3: Other Indirect GHG Emission and air emission
(particulate matter, sulphur dioxide, and nitrogen oxides) were
insignificant to the Group's operation, therefore the relevant data was not
disclosed.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED)
Environmental Performance (continued)

Indicator Unit
g B

RIE- 1B RERKRS (B

ERE (48

IRIRRIR (B)
2023 2022 2021
B TS TF 5

Electricity Consumption (EE2

Head Office in Hong Kong kWh
BBMBIMER TR
Travel-related Business kWh
in Canada & the PRC
PN K Je FR B fie 30 48 BA 25 75 TR
Total Consumption kWh
/\L,%%EE‘ = :FEE%
Total Intensity 000" kWh/millions of
e revenues (HK$)
KEF/SESTT
(B Uk
Remarks

Certain number of offices in Canada were excluded whose electricity
charges had already been included in rent.

The electricity consumption of travel-related business in Canada & the
PRC increases in the reporting year compared with 2022 due to colder
winter in Canada, which required more electricity for heating.

42,267 48,113 51,128

97,429 82,970 138,112

139,696 131,083 189,393

1.37 1.14 1.25

st
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RIE-HHERERRS &

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) B (B)
Environmental Performance (continued) IRIERIT (48)
Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
g ==L i —ECo=F B F TEC—HF

Vehicle Fuel Consumption SERARERAE

Head Office in Hong Kong L 10,778 8,264 11,185
BB ERR F+
Travel-related Business L 6,000 6,000 6,000

in Canada & PRC
MEXKRPEREEREER F+

Total Consumption L 16,778 14,264 17,185
WIEAE F+

Total Intensity L/millions of revenues (HK$) 164.65 124.25 113.71
WERE /2R8It (B Im

Remark B

Shuttle bus service was provided by supplier for the travel business in MERREEFBNELE LR HEREEREME 1
Canada, and the respective fuel consumption was not available; no fuel mIBEARAMRFERE ; MPENHEREILRFER
consumption in the office in the PRC. WK o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED)

RIE- 1B RERKRS (B

M (18

Environmental Performance (continued) IRIBERIT (48)

Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
iy B B BT T —HF
Hazardous Waste HZEEEY)

Total Tonnes N/A N/A N/A
/NL: D+ /Z__\\ME\ *iﬁm x;ﬁﬁﬁ Z:@ﬁﬁ
Remark st

The Group did not produce hazardous waste in operation.

Indicator Unit
g B

FEEREEPTEELERSERY -

2023 2022 2021
e BT T —HF

Non-Hazardous Waste HEEFEEY

General waste Tonnes
— R EEEY) NI
Paper waste Tonnes
BEAR NI
Total Tonnes
/NL, D-I— /Z_—\\ umE\
Remarks

The Group continues to consider improving the data collection system to

collect other non-hazardous waste in the future.

Starting from the reporting year, non-hazardous waste data are presented

in two digits.

1.98 2.0 2.0
0.16 0.1 0.1
2.14 2.1 2.1

st
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RIE-HEREBRS (&

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED)

mu& (8)

Environmental Performance (continued) IRIERIT (48)

Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
g B o =F - fF “E-—&F
Water Consumption FEKE

Total m3 N/A N/A N/A
485t LK EHR TEH iE
Remark st

Since water was provided by municipal suppliers, the Group did not
have any significant issues in sourcing water. The relevant data was not
available as the respective building management offices managed all
water utilities of the head office in Hong Kong and the offices relating to
the travel-related business in Canada and the PRC.

HOKBETRHARRIEMH] FEBERIROR LT
HEERERME  EBRMERREMINEAKRHR
Bl R EARRE BRI ER A HOKBERARE
BEREE S EREAREE-

Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
etz ==L i TEI=f BT D25
Packaging Material &4k}

Total Tonnes N/A N/A N/A
4BEtT NI RER 8 8
Remark B

The Group did not utilise packaging material in operation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIS RERRS (&

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) B E (8)
Social Performance tgRR
Business Units
EFENL
Travel-related
Business in
Head Office Canada &
Employment (number of people) in Hong Kong the PRC
MEXK
&R HERE
B8 (A& FEEE LElES
Total Number of Employees 44 28
fEEHRE
By Gender Male 18 10
el B
Female 26 18
7z
By Employee Category Top Management 5 1
BE%E5 SHREEAR
Management 7 8
BIEAE
General Staff 32 19
— R E
By Age Group <30 1 2
FH AR 30-39 10 8
40-49 7 6
50-59 19 6
=60 7 6
By Employment Type Full-Time 44 28
BEEL 2
Part-Time 0 0
SR
By Geographical Region Hong Kong 44 0
& 58
Canada 0 20
MmEX
The PRC 0 8
FRE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE-HEREBRS (&

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) gy ENE))
Social Performance (continued) tERA (@)
Business Units
HEFEN
Travel-related
Business in
Head Office Canada &
Employee Turnover Rates (%) in Hong Kong the PRC
MEKXRK
&8  HPERAVKRDE
BERKLEE(%) HEIME R BB
Total 16 36
4BEtT
By Gender Male 11 50
el B
Female 19 29
pegiis
By Age Group <30 160 200
FHAERY 30-39 0 13
40-49 33 80
50-59 0 0
>60 0 22
By Geographical Region Hong Kong 16 0
& 5%
Canada 0 34
MmEKX
The PRC 0 40
F
Remark Fst

The percentage is round to the nearest integer.

O6  SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BB/EIZEKARAT)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIS RERRS (&

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) muR (8
Social Performance (continued) HERR @)
Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
1R Bl TRIZHE BT TET—fF
Health and Safety %2
Total number of work-related fatalities No. of people 0 0 0
AT THRIEAE N
Lost days due to work injury Days 0 0 0
RAIHBERIFE# BH#
Percentage of
Training employees trained (%)  Average training hours
= Zil{E & B 53 EE(%) T2 IR R
Overall 100.00 6.13
BEDL
By Gender Male 37.66 5.78
el 5%
Female 62.34 6.36
pogia
By Employee Category Top Management 7.79 15.58
(Sl SHREEAE
Management 19.48 6.48
EEAE
General Staff 72.73 4.94
—fRE 8
Remark -15d

Only current employees’ data are included in the training table

(percentage of employees trained and average training hours).

BIERNEBEREREEHE RIEEB DK
IR SR o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE-HEREBRS (&

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED)

mu& (8)

Social Performance (continued) tERR (@)
Indicator 2023 2022
B TERI=F CECTC
Suppliers (number of suppliers) HfER (HEFHR)
Total 571 571
st
By Geographical Region Hong Kong 21 21
& 58
Canada 500 500
MEKX
The PRC 50 50
HE
Indicator Unit 2023 2022
151R B S - S —e
Product Responsibility ZEmET
Percentage of total products sold or shipped % N/A N/A
subject to recall for safety and health reasons REHA iEA
by sales values
BENBEFEREHTHREL 2 EEREIEAM
BRI B DL RHEBESS)
Number of products and service-related complaints No. of complaints 0 0
B Em RSB FEE K88
Remark sk

Since the Group’s business is not related to product selling, no relevant
information related to quality assurance process and recall procedures are

available.
Indicator Unit
g B

HARAEBNEF IS REEER R EFME
EREBRREROWEFIER -

2023 2022 2021
TBI=E B2 - —F

Anti-corruption RE5

Number of concluded legal cases No. of cases
regarding corrupt practices
EEENESTHARH A #ZMH#E
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
IRI-HHERERRS &

COMPLIANCE TABLE ARR
The Group strictly complied with the laws and regulations — ZN&EE &R EST F7 & B @AY EGIF A
in different aspects listed as follows: .
Aspect Laws and Regulation
IR ERIAER
A1: Emissions e Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong
BERD BB (EYEE 55
e Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China

(PE AR HMNRIRIZREEL)
° The Canadian Environmental Protection Act

B1: Employment e Employees’ Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong
(= BER(EEMERD)
B4: Labour Standards e Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong
% T A8 BB (EREEA)
e Minimum Wage Ordinance of Hong Kong
BEE(RBEIERAGD

e Race Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong
BB (BB AR R )
° Sex Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong
B (MR B AR AR )
e Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(FEARENMESEHSREZE)
Canada Labour Code
Canada Labour Standards Regulations
Employment Equity Act of Canada
The Canadian Human Rights Act

B2: Health and Safety e Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong
BERZE BHE (B2 2 R REFRG)
e  Measures for the Supervision and Administration of
Employers” Occupational Health Surveillance
(BABBXRREELEEEEE)
e Occupational Health and Safety Act of Canada

B6: Product Responsibility e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong
EmaE BEEANER FARR) 5&A))
e Copyright Ordinance of Hong Kong
B8 (iR ol)
e The Canadian Code of Advertising Standards
e  Travel Industry Act of Canada

B7: Anti-corruption o Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong
k&5 B 75 (B LEBRRE 151 )
e Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China
(FRZEAREMEMZE)
e The Corruption of Foreign Public Officials Act of Canada
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Report of Directors
EFEHRS

The directors (”Director(s)”) of Success Universe Group
Limited (the “Company”) present their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries were principally engaged in the travel-related
and property investment businesses during the year.

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2023 are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 13 and pages 14 to 39
respectively of this annual report as well as the following
sub-paragraphs headed “Environmental Policies and
Performance”, “Compliance with Laws and Regulations”
and “Relationships with Key Stakeholders”.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavors to attain long-term sustainable
development, and proactively determines ways to address
environmental, social and governance issues effectively in
the corporate decisions.

The Group upholds its principles of environmental
friendly practices by implementation of reducing, reusing,
recycling and replacing in its daily operations, and
develops initiatives to improve employee welfare and staff
development for betterment of working environment
and efficiency. The Group also believes in good corporate
citizenship and contributes to society by supporting various
charitable programmes.

For details, please refer to the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages

72 to 99 of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group is committed to maintain a high level of
corporate compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements in respect of business and operations. During
the year, the Group’s operations were mainly carried out
by the Company’s subsidiaries in Canada, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong while
the Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and
the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Group accordingly should comply with relevant laws and
regulations in, inter alia, Canada, the PRC, Hong Kong and
Bermuda during the year.

As far as the board of Directors (the “Board”) is aware,
during the year and up to the date of this report, the
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact on its business and operations.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group's success also depends on the support from its
key stakeholders which comprise, inter alia, employees,
business partners, suppliers and customers.

Employees are regarded as important and valuable assets
of the Group. Therefore, the Group provides competitive
remuneration packages to attract, motivate and retain
employees for their continued contribution to the Group
and also encourages them by way of sponsorship to
attend training courses which help employees’ career
development.

Besides, the Group has developed and maintained
solid and steady relationships with its business partners
and suppliers, and provides high quality services to
its customers so as to enhance its competitiveness,
sustainability and future development.

Report of Directors (Continued)
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Report of Directors (Continued)
EEEHRE @&

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on page 141 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2022: nil).
The Directors do not recommend any payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on Friday, 14 June 2024 (the “2024 AGM"). For the
purpose of determining the shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
11 June 2024 to Friday, 14 June 2024, both days inclusive,
during such period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2024 AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 7 June 2024 for registration.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year
ended 31 December 2023 by business and geographical
segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five
financial years is set out on page 334 of this annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
145 and 146 of this annual report and note 39(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations totalling HK$59,000 (2022: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT OR
SALE

Details of the properties held by the Group for investment
or sale as at 31 December 2023 are set out in notes 17
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
section headed “Particulars of Properties” on pages 335
and 336 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the
Company during the year. Details of the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the loans and borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2023 are set out in notes 26 to 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Report of Directors (Continued)
EEEHRE @&

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive Director (“NED"):
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)"):
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

Mr. Chong Ming Yu

Biographical information of the Directors is set out
under the paragraphs headed “Directors” in the section
headed "“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 126 to 130 of this annual report.

The nomination committee of the Board has assessed the
independence of all of the existing INEDs, namely Ms.
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose
and Mr. Chong Ming Yu, and all of the said INEDs were
considered to be independent.

Reference was made to the announcement dated 27
March 2024 issued by the Company regarding, inter alia,
changes of INEDs. Mr. Chong Ming Yu has tendered his
resignation as an INED and Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie
(formerly known as Hon Heung Mui, Jackie) ("Ms. Hon")
has been appointed as an INED by the Board both with
effect from 1 April 2024. Pursuant to bye-law 86(2) of the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company. Ms.
Hon shall therefore retire at the 2024 AGM and being
eligible, she will offer herself for re-election.

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Yeung
Hoi Sing, Sonny (“Mr. Yeung”) and Mr. Choi Kin Pui,
Russelle (“Mr. Choi”) shall retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2024
AGM.
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CHANGES OF DIRECTORS' INFORMATION

Mr. Choi, being the NED, ceased to be an independent
director of SunCar Technology Group Inc. (formerly known
as Goldenbridge Acquisition Limited), a company whose
securities are listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market in the
United States of America, with effect from 1 September
2023.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the
information of the Directors required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules subsequent
to the date of the Interim Report 2023 of the Company
and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2024
AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named
basis are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. There has been no arrangement under which
a Director or a director of the subsidiaries of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of the duties in their respective
offices or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any Directors.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted
under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) for the benefit of the Directors
and directors/former directors of the subsidiaries of the
Company.

Report of Directors (Continued)
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Report of Directors (Continued)
EEEHRE @&

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

)

On 1 December 2008, the Company as borrower
and Mr. Yeung, being the Chairman of the Board
and an executive Director as well as a controlling
shareholder of the Company, as lender entered
into a letter of agreement regarding an unsecured
term loan facility of up to HK$200 million (the
“Loan Facility”). The rate of interest on the entire
principal amount drawn and outstanding under the
Loan Facility was the prime rate quoted for Hong
Kong dollars loans by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. On 14 April 2009, the
Company and Mr. Yeung entered into a supplemental
letter of agreement to increase the principal amount
of the Loan Facility up to HK$290 million (the
“Revised Loan Facility”) and to confirm that Mr.
Yeung undertook not to demand early repayment
of the loan and all other sums owing to him under
the Revised Loan Facility before 30 June 2010. The
final repayment date of the Revised Loan Facility (the
“Final Repayment Date”) was extended to (i) 30 June
2011 by a supplemental letter of agreement dated
25 June 2009; and (ii) 30 October 2012 by another
supplemental letter of agreement dated 23 June
2010.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

(continued)

On 15 March 2012, Mr. Yeung entered into a
supplemental letter of agreement with the Company
to further extend the Final Repayment Date to 31
October 2013 and to confirm that any amount repaid
under the Revised Loan Facility should be available to
further advances within the availability period of the
Revised Loan Facility.

The Final Repayment Date was subsequently
extended by various supplemental letters of
agreement to 31 October 2024. On 29 September
2023, Mr. Yeung entered into a supplemental letter
of agreement with the Company to further extend
the Final Repayment Date to 31 October 2026.

The transaction mentioned in this sub-paragraph (1)
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which is fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as the said borrowing from Mr. Yeung is on normal
commercial terms or better and it is not secured by
any assets of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

(2) (A) On 25 June 2021, the Group entered into two
tenancy agreements with Success International
Management Services Limited (“SIMSL”, a
company indirect wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Yeung) to renew the leasing of the
properties with details as follows:

(i) Powerful Concept Limited (“Powerful
Concept”, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) as landlord
entered into a tenancy agreement with
SIMSL as tenant in respect of the renewal
of the leasing of the premises situated at
Office Unit No. 1001A on the 10th Floor
of Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre, No. 18
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong (“Office Unit
No. 1001A") for a term of two years
commencing from 2 July 2021 to 1 July
2023 (both dates inclusive) (with an option
on SIMSL to renew for a further term of
two years at the then open market rent) at
a monthly rental of HK$65,400, exclusive
of government rates, air-conditioning
charges, management fees and all other
outgoings; and
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

(continued)

(A)

(ii)

Famous Capital International Limited
("Famous Capital”, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) as
landlord entered into a tenancy agreement
with SIMSL as tenant in respect of the
renewal of the leasing of the premises
situated at Office Unit No. 1004B on
the 10th Floor of Tower 1 of Admiralty
Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
("Office Unit No. 1004B") for a term of
two years commencing from 2 July 2021
to 1 July 2023 (both dates inclusive) (with
an option on SIMSL to renew for a further
term of two years at the then open market
rent) at a monthly rental of HK$129,000,
exclusive of government rates, air-
conditioning charges, management fees
and all other outgoings

(collectively the “2021 AC Tenancy Agreements”).

Report of Directors (Continued)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

(continued)

(A)

(continued)

On 21 June 2023, Powerful Concept and
Famous Capital, both as landlords, entered
into respective tenancy agreements with
Success Capital Management Services Limited
("SCMSL", a company indirect wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung, and in
which Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, the Deputy
Chairman of the Board and an executive
Director, is a director), being nominated by
SIMSL to take up the tenancies of Office Unit
No. 1001A and Office Unit No. 1004B for a
further term of two years after the expiry of
the 2021 AC Tenancy Agreements, as tenant
in respect of the leasing of Office Unit No.
1001A and Office Unit No. 1004B for a term
of two years commencing from 2 July 2023
to 1 July 2025 (both dates inclusive) at the
respective monthly rentals of HK$65,400 and
HK$129,000, both exclusive of government
rates, air-conditioning charges, management
fees and all other outgoings (collectively the
“New AC Tenancy Agreements”).

The rentals chargeable under the 2021 AC
Tenancy Agreements and the New AC Tenancy
Agreements were determined after taking
into account of the opinion letters issued by
an independent valuer in connection with
the fairness and reasonableness of the rentals
chargeable under the aforesaid tenancy
agreements respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

()

(continued)

(B)

On 28 April 2022, Perfect Top Property
Investment Limited (formerly known as Perfect
Top Development Limited) (“Perfect Top”,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) as landlord entered into a tenancy
agreement with SCMSL as tenant in respect of
the leasing of the premises situated at Flat D on
the 19th Floor (now known as Office 1906) of
Eastern Commercial Centre, 395-399 Hennessy
Road, Hong Kong (“Office 1906 of ECC") for
a term of one year commencing from 1 May
2022 to 30 April 2023 (both days inclusive)
at a monthly rental of HK$24,900, exclusive
of government rates, management fees and
all other outgoings (the “2022 Office 1906
Tenancy Agreement”).

On 27 April 2023, Perfect Top as landlord
entered into a tenancy agreement with SCMSL
as tenant to renew the tenancy for Office 1906
of ECC for a term of one year commencing
from 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2024 (both days
inclusive) at a monthly rental of HK$24,900,
exclusive of government rates, management
fees and all other outgoings (the “New Office
1906 Tenancy Agreement”).

The rental chargeable under the 2022 Office
1906 Tenancy Agreement and the New Office
1906 Tenancy Agreement were determined
after taking into account of the respective rental
valuation reports issued by an independent
valuer in relation to the market rent of Office
1906 of ECC.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

(continued)

The entering into of the 2021 AC Tenancy
Agreements, the New AC Tenancy Agreements, the
2022 Office 1906 Tenancy Agreement and the New
Office 1906 Tenancy Agreement, all of which are
on normal commercial terms, constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are fully exempt
from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c)
of the Listing Rules as all the applicable percentage
ratios calculated on an annual basis pursuant to Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules are less than 5% and the
annual caps for the aggregate amount payable by
(i) SIMSL to Powerful Concept and Famous Capital
under the 2021 AC Tenancy Agreements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2023; (ii) SCMSL
to Powerful Concept and Famous Capital under the
New AC Tenancy Agreements for the three financial
years ending 31 December 2025; and (iii) SCMSL
to Perfect Top under the 2022 Office 1906 Tenancy
Agreement and the New Office 1906 Tenancy
Agreement for the two financial years ending 31
December 2024 are below HK$3,000,000.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group'’s business
to which the Company, its parent company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or any
entity connected with him/her or a controlling shareholder
of the Company or any of the subsidiaries of the
controlling shareholder had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the

year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr.
Yeung has the following interests in the companies listed
below whose business may compete or is likely to compete
with the Group's property investment business (the
“Competing Business”) pursuant to the Listing Rules:

Name of company

AEL

Report of Directors (Continued)
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TR
B iR

Nature of competing business

MEPEEHEE

EFORE (&

RGP EBZEm

REFERRBEARSHHL BE
R BRER TR FER U
(IS FN=IPE S AT 3))
EFN A A KRB MEREEHE

Nature of interest

it

Able Ace Limited
REFERAF

Active Profit Investment Limited

Asia City Holdings Limited
DREEFRAR

Crownpeak International
Investment Limited

WERBFRERRAD
Joyful China Development Limited

EEERARRA

Lucky Hero Limited
BREBMRAF

Super Genius Investments Limited

BEREERAH

Note: Asia City Holdings Limited has sold its commercial property Bzt -
before the date of this report and ceased to engage in property

investment in Hong Kong.

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEYMERE BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEYMERE BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building) (Nvote)

ERYERLE BE) W)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BEMERE @E)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BBMERE BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BBMERE BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BBMERE BE)

owned as to 50%
beneficial interest
Em#EAS0%E R

director and ultimate
beneficial owner

EEARKREmERA

owned as to 50%
beneficial interest
Em#EAS0%E R

director and ultimate
beneficial owner

EEAREEOERA

owned as to 50%
beneficial interest
EnEAS0%E R

ultimate beneficial owner

RREmBEAA

ultimate beneficial owner
RERBmBEB AN

EEEEEIRAEER R E HAF
EABANFE THUEEBYFERE-
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Since any significant business decision of the Group
is to be determined by the Board in which half of the
members are INEDs, the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
Competing Business.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this report, none
of the Directors was interested in any business, apart
from the Group’s business, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business, other than those business where the Directors
were appointed as directors to represent the interests of
the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Directors or chief executive
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates
had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise,
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the
Listing Rules:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EERESITHRAERESZ
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED) ¥z (8)

Interest in the shares of the Company RAABTRD (TRe1H1) Z2HExE
(“Share(s)”)

Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
Shares as at
31 December

2023

RZEZ=F

+-BA=+—H

Long position/ Number of HEET

Name of Director Short position Nature of interest Shares held B EHER M
EEls we / %KE EmitE PR &R ZEHBE L
%

Mr. Yeung (Note) Long position Corporate interest 3,527,994,987 71.61

B E s S NE)Em

Note: Mr. Yeung, an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, Wizt BEMEFPIZERERAGISHPITEER

had a corporate interest in 3,527,994,987 Shares by virtue of EEEF N LA EEmER A
the interest of the Shares held by Silver Rich Macau Development WL L HEBE L ERPIERFIRA E
Limited, which is direct wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. F75.23,527,994,987 R 172 N Gl A o
Yeung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of PR EXFIIRBEIN R_E_=F+_
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, or their B=+—H>'BFHXEAAGTESITHA
respective associates, had any interests or short positions BEHFESZB BB AMENRRAT T
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the HEMBK LIE (TERESFKBPEK
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the B SEXVER) Z 1D~ HBEARKR M HESHF
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register BT AL RN IRIFE SRS KRG E
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 3528 Z R ERAT BT FE ZELM
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise, notified to the Company  TIRBEIZZESTRZBA S KA B K ¥ 3P
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. ZHRETmBOKB ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 June
2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons for
their contribution to the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest and
any subsidiary of such entity (“Invested Entity”). The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 10 June 2014
and, unless early termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of its adoption on 5 June
2014.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors are
authorised at their absolute discretion to invite eligible
persons to take up options to subscribe for Shares. Eligible
persons under the Share Option Scheme include (i) any
employee (whether full time or part time and including
executive director) of any member(s) of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (ii) any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive director) of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (iii) any consultant,
adviser or agent engaged by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity, who is eligible to participate in
a share option scheme of the Company; and (iv) any
vendor, supplier of goods or services or customer of or
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity, who
is eligible to participate in a share option scheme of the
Company.

There is no provision in the Share Option Scheme to
require a grantee to fulfill any performance target or to
hold the option for a certain period before exercising the
option, but the Board may at its absolute discretion from
time to time provide such requirements in the offer of
grant of options.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of Shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company is 492,649,119 Shares (being not more than
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Limit")), representing approximately 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

The Company may seek approval of its shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the Scheme Limit save that
the total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company under the Scheme Limit so refreshed
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in
issue as at the date of such approval (the “New Scheme
Limit”). Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with the respective provisions of the
scheme(s) of the Company or exercised options) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the New Scheme
Limit.

Notwithstanding aforesaid in above, the maximum number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme(s) adopted by the Company (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) to each eligible person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of offer
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue
on the date of offer, unless such grant is approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting at which
such eligible person and his or her associates shall abstain
from voting.

The exercise price in respect of any option granted under
the Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the option, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the option is offered; and (i) the
nominal value of a Share.

The offer of a grant of share option must be accepted not
later than 28 days after the date of offer, upon payment
of a consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share option granted is determined by the
Board, save that such period shall not exceed a period of
10 years commencing on the date upon which the share
option is granted.

No share options had been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption and up to 31 December
2023. Other than the Share Option Scheme, the Company
did not maintain any other share schemes which involve
the grant of shares by, or grant of options over shares of,
the Company or its principal subsidiary as at 31 December
2023.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements which will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or which require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or
were deemed or taken to have, interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:
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ERORE (B

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’

INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

FTERRNESF ZEm (B)

Interest in the Shares A7 #E s
Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
Shares as at
31 December
2023
RZEZ=F
+-BA=+—H
Name of substantial Long position/ Number of HEeBT
shareholder Short position Capacity Shares held B ERER©H
TERRLE MU 5 Y 15 Fr¥siin 8 E 2B
%
Silver Rich Macau Long position Beneficial owner 3,527,994,987 71.61

Development Limited "a BmEAA
BERFMERERBRAF

Ms. Liu Siu Lam, Marian (vote) Long position Interest of spouse 3,527,994,987 71.61

BN = s

7E

FofB g

Note: Ms. Liu Siu Lam, Marian, being the spouse of Mr. Yeung, was
deemed to be interested in 3,527,994,987 Shares in which

Mr. Yeung had a corporate interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no
other person (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had, or was deemed or taken to have, an
interest or short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

References were made to the announcement dated 21
June 2023 and the circular dated 13 July 2023 both
issued by the Company in relation to the provision of
financial assistance (“2023 Financial Assistance”) to Pier
16 — Property Development Limited (“Pier 16 — Property
Development”, a 49% owned associate of World Fortune
Limited (“World Fortune”, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company)).

Based on the disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20
and 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the 2023 Financial
Assistance, which was made by the Group by way of
the shareholder’s loans provided by World Fortune and a
corporate guarantee given by the Company in respect of
the payment obligation of Pier 16 — Property Development
under the revised loan facilities granted by a bank to Pier
16 — Property Development in the aggregate amounts of
HK$230 million and MOP273 million, continued to exist
as at 31 December 2023. Pier 16 — Property Development
is principally engaged in investment holding and property
development and, through its subsidiaries, operating Ponte
16, a world-class integrated casino-entertainment resort
located in Macau. The 2023 Financial Assistance is mainly
used for refinancing the loan facilities in the aggregate
amounts of HK$500 million and MOP273 million made
available to Pier 16 — Property Development.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES
(CONTINUED)

The amounts of the 2023 Financial Assistance as at
31 December 2023 were set out below:

WRig £ RAIE13.201% K
F13.221FFH 2 #8E (1)

TECCFYMBEMN B _=F+_
B=1t—BzZ8B&HNU0T:

Aggregate

Shareholder’s Corporate 2023 Financial

Name of associate loans guarantee Assistance
“EZ=F

BE AT BTE REREM EEER BB AREE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BEHETT BEBEET BB

Pier 16 — Property Development 366 490 856

TINHEYEE R

The shareholder’s loans provided by World Fortune are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Further details are set out in notes 18 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Set out below is a consolidated statement of financial
position of Pier 16 — Property Development and the
Group’s attributable interests in this associate according to
its audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023:

AEREHRZRRERBERF -ZE
R B RE BT ©

E—FPEMEI NS MHBHREMES
2350

UFEA 7B EZER GG BN
MERFEERGZBERT 2
IR+ /NEESERBE—S =
F+A=+t—HBLEFEZEEREE
IR

Consolidated

statement of Group’s

financial attributable

position interests

FERBRKRR TEEEGELS

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Non-current assets ERBEE 582,660 285,504
Current assets TMENEE 303,478 148,704
Current liabilities MENEE (104,614) (51,261)
Non-current liabilities ERFHEaRE (850,104) (416,551)
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December
2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 79% of total revenue of
the Group, of which the largest customer accounted
for approximately 32% and the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 93% of total
purchases of the Group, of which the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 93%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in the above five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float as prescribed under the Listing
Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) of the Board is responsible for determining
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Company
("Senior Management”). Besides, the Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board for
its determination on the remuneration of the NED and
all INEDs. Factors which include, inter alia, salaries paid
by comparable companies, qualifications, experience,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors
and the Senior Management as well as prevailing market
condition are considered by the Remuneration Committee
for determining/making proposals on remuneration of the
relevant Directors and Senior Management.

The remuneration packages of employees of the Group
(other than the executive Directors and the Senior
Management) are determined and reviewed periodically
on the basis of their respective qualifications, experience,
responsibilities and performance as well as prevailing
market condition. In addition to salaries, the Company
offers staff benefits which include medical insurance and
retirement benefits under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme. The Group also operates a share option scheme
pursuant to which share options might be granted as a
long-term incentive to its directors and employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of Directors (Continued)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEER

Details regarding corporate governance are set out in the B
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages £
40 to 71 of this annual report.

AUDITORS ZEEm

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for ZHAEBHE_T_=F+_F=+—H
the year ended 31 December 2023 have been audited by  IFEEZ xS BRFREHE B ZHED
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, who shall retire at the ~ BHFAARABZFZ  HEFENR _Z M
2024 AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for ~ FREBEFAEG LRI EHFEER

re-appointment. TRESEENZT-

On behalf of the Board REREFE

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny FE

Chairman 2R3

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024 HE “EMF=-A"+tH
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEASHNT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, aged 69, joined the Group
in 2003. He is an executive director of the Company and
the Chairman of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
the Company as well as a director of the subsidiaries of
the Company. He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) of the
Board, and a member of the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) of the Board. Mr.
Yeung is responsible for the overall corporate planning
and business development of the Group. He has over 40
years of experience in finance industry in Hong Kong and
is presently the sole beneficial owner of Success Securities
Limited (“Success Securities”), which is a licensed
corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
as well as a participant of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), principally engaged
in the provision of securities brokerage services. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Yeung held managerial roles in
several financial service sectors such as leveraged foreign
exchange trading, and securities and futures brokerage.
He was a member of the Eighth to Eleventh National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Mr. Yeung has private investments in certain
properties and real estate development. He is also the
sole beneficial owner and a director of Silver Rich Macau
Development Limited, being a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Yeung is the uncle of Mr. Ma Ho Man,
Hoffman, an executive director of the Company and the
Deputy Chairman of the Board.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, aged 50, joined the Group
in 2005. He is an executive director of the Company and
the Deputy Chairman of the Board as well as a director
of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ma is also a
member of the Executive Committee. He is responsible
for implementing the Company’s strategies regarding the
business development of the Group as well as managing
the Group’s business and operations. Mr. Ma has over 27
years of experience in the financial industry and years of
managerial experience. He joined Success Securities, which
is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
("Mr. Yeung”), being the Chairman of the Board and an
executive director as well as a controlling shareholder of
the Company, in 2000. He has been a director of Success
Securities since November 2008 and is responsible for
overseeing its marketing affairs. Mr. Ma is presently
a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (the “"CPPCC")
and a Standing Committee member of the CPPCC
Chongging Committee. He was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2018. Besides, Mr. Ma
was awarded Fellowship by Canadian Chartered Institute
of Business Administration and Honorary Doctorate of
Management by Lincoln University in 2009 and 2010
respectively. He is the nephew of Mr. Yeung.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EFhEREEBASRN (&

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, aged 69, joined the Group
in 2003. He is a non-executive director of the Company
as well as a member of the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) of the Board, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Choi graduated
from St. Pius X High School in 1976. He has extensive
management experience in the telecommunication
industry in Hong Kong, the United States of America (the
“US"”) and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
Mr. Choi established Elephant Talk Limited in 1994, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Elephant Talk Communications
Inc. ("ETCI"). ETCI was an American corporation
whose securities were quoted on the Over-The-Counter
Bulletin Board in the US and engaged in the provision
of telecommunications services in Hong Kong and the
US. Mr. Choi was a director of ETCI from 2002 to 2008
as well as the president and the chief executive officer
of ETCI from 2002 to 2006 and was responsible for the
planning of the overall strategy of ETCI. He also served as
the chairman of ET Network Services Limited (now known
as Guangdong Ming Ying Financial Leasing Co Limited), a
Hong Kong company engaged in the provision of internet
access and outsourcing services in the PRC and Hong
Kong. Mr. Choi was an independent director of SunCar
Technology Group Inc. (formerly known as Goldenbridge
Acquisition Limited), a company whose securities are listed
on The NASDAQ Capital Market in the US.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, aged 59, joined the
Group in 2004. She is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. She is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Ms. Yeung
holds a Bachelor degree of Retail Marketing with honours
in the United Kingdom and a Diploma in Marketing from
The Chartered Institute of Marketing. She pursued her
further study on legal course and was awarded a Diploma
in Legal Practice in the United Kingdom in 1998. Ms.
Yeung has over 25 years of experience in legal field and is
presently a consultant of Messrs. Fung & Fung, Solicitors, a
legal firm in Hong Kong. She is also an independent non-
executive director of NOIZ Group Limited (formerly known
as Merdeka Financial Group Limited), a company whose
issued shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Ms. Yeung was an independent non-executive director of E
Lighting Group Holdings Limited, a company whose issued
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose, aged 59, joined the
Group in 2012. He is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. He is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chin
is a certified public accountant (practising) and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute, The Chartered
Governance Institute and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Chin has over 37 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and taxation. He is presently the sole
practitioner of CNT & Co., Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EFhEREEBASRN (&

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
Mr. Chong Ming Yu ™% aged 50, joined the Group in
2014. He is an independent non-executive director of the
Company as well as a member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Chong holds a Bachelor degree of Laws
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from City University
of Hong Kong. He has been admitted as a practising
solicitor since January 1999, with focus on the field of
conveyancing, civil litigation and commercial. Mr. Chong
has over 27 years of experience in legal field and is
presently a consultant to Messrs. Kong & Tang, Solicitors, a
legal firm in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes, aged 50, joined the Group
in 2003. She is the company secretary of the Company
and is responsible for overseeing all legal matters of the
Group. Ms. Chiu is a qualified solicitor and an associate
member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute. She
holds a Master degree of Laws from The University of
Sheffield, United Kingdom. Before joining the Group,
Ms. Chiu was a practising solicitor in a local law firm and
possessed experience in banking and finance as well as
property related matters.

Financial Controller

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin, aged 61, joined the Group
as the financial controller in 2008 until 2015 and rejoined
the Group in 2018. He is the financial controller of the
Group and is responsible for financial and accounting
matters of the Group. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has
over 36 years of experience in accounting and corporate
finance gained in entertainment and travel-related,
property development, construction and manufacturing
companies.

Note: Mr. Chong Ming Yu will cease to act as an Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, and Ms.
Hon Hong Lun, Jackie (formerly known as Hon Heung Mui, Jackie)
has been appointed in place of him both with effect from 1 April
2024.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 141 to 333, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
B ENRE (&

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Valuation of Investment Properties

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Key Audit Matter
RAEE st HIH

B IZHENRE (&

FEEStFIE (@)

KREMEZMEE
BRI BRI 17

EIH/

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAETEHEREZFHZGE

The Group's investment properties measured
at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$121,500,000 as at 31 December 2023 and
there was a revaluation loss of approximately
HK$7,300,000 for the year then ended. The
fair value was determined by the Group with
reference to the valuations performed by
independent professional valuers engaged by the
Group.

R _E_=F+"A=+—H> BEEEE
N EFENKREYFENAHE1121,500,000
T MBEZALELFENEGHEENRBE
7,300,000t ERAFEIE SEEZ2ZTH
ZENBIIEX(HEMETHGLERETE

The valuations of investment properties involved
significant judgements and estimates including:

REMEGETREAH MG 815

e  The determination of valuation techniques,
which is using combination of income
capitalisation method and direct comparison
method of each property;
HERFENETE  SYMERA
TEEREFLLERE ;

GBHBAE

e The section of different inputs in the
valuation models.

EZRAEERA T AENBEAE

Considering the significance of judgements,
estimates and the financial impacts of the
valuations, we paid specific attention to this
matter in our audit.

EZRINAEG MG Z2EEZE REEZMBHR
£ BN EZIT P HZERa TR

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
valuation of investment properties included but not
limited to:
EMMEEEHREMEZGERRZIEFEHE
BARER :

e  Evaluation the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuers.
GBI FE IR LB 2 B~
B

FENRE

e  Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and estimates
used based on our knowledge of the property
industry and using our valuation experts.
RIBRPIE Y EITENA LB BRI
BEEXR sHMEFMRANGER E RERR
st EM -

e  Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.
BRI G S BEFARAN @A BRI E
R FAERA M o

We found the key assumptions were supported by
the available evidence.

%R R ERREMEEBRAR -
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BIAIZHENRS (&

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment Assessment of Interests in
Associates

FEEtFIE (@)
REEQR 2z #m 2 BET

ol

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. B2EGEMBHmRERMEE18.

The Key Audit Matter
FMEEFEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAETEARREZFHZAE

The interests in associates are accounted for
under the equity method. As at 31 December
2023, the interests in associates amounted
to approximately HK$678,227,000, including
goodwill of approximately HK$19,409,000, and
the related profit on share of results of associates
for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately HK$143,717,000.

RS ARz EARAEREZINR - R ZE
—_=EFE+ZRA=tT—B 'IKBmERAZED
(BEEELAB19,409,0007T) WA B
678,227,000t MBE_E_=F+_A4
=t+t—HLEFEE BEBMEAREGE AR
F4 %75 15143,717,0007T ©

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

Our procedures in relation to the management’s

impairment assessment of interests in associates

included but not limited to:

KPR EEBENME QT 2B m 2 BE
RZEFEEEFRRN

e  Evaluating the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuer.
SHEBIEERIEEEMZER NIRRT
B

e Assessing the valuation methodology, key
assumptions and estimates used against our
knowledge of the business and industry.

EEH FMPIB AR RS R 1T R ST
RANEERS A FARKRR KRG



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment Assessment of Interests in
Associates (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
FMEEER

B IZHENRE (&

FEEStFIE (@)
REFE AR 2 s 2 M ETE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BPETEARREZFRZAE

The management performed impairment
assessment of interests in associates with the
use of valuation performed by an independent
professional external valuer based on the
value in use calculation. The valuation requires
the application of significant judgement and
estimation by the management in determining
the appropriate valuation methodology to be
used, use of subjective assumptions and various
unobservable inputs.
BEECMBME AR 2 R ETRE LI E
REIIEEIIEBGLEMREERAEESESD
NEE - HEEREEEREER THERAZE
EHERE THREXASETTERB AR
B2 (ERRERERHIE Kbt o

e Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and estimates
used based on our knowledge of the business
and using our valuation experts.

IR FPIE AE RE ZE F B0 R 8 3B 3B B PI B9 1
BEER TEMRANMGEER L FARER
hstaEk-

e Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions used based on our knowledge of
the business and industry.
RIBRMBEZEBNTENN B BREAR
RS-

e  Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.
ERMEA L WEMEANG ABBRNE
A AERA M o

We found that the assumptions made by the
management in relation to the value in use
calculations to be reasonable based on available
evidence.

RIBFAEHEE BRMRAEEENEREEFEE
HrBERBEE-
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
BIZHENIRE (&

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in th audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

B IZHENRE (&
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
BIZHENIRE (&

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

B IZHENRE (&
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the audit and significant audit findings, including any  2IR% > S1EFFIE I+ 5% B H A =26
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify — ES#ERY{EfRIE RTRIE o
during our audit.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
B ENRE (&

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Yau Wai Ip.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yau Wai Ip
Practising Certificate Number: P07849

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FEiEmK

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE_T_=H+"A=1+—HIFE
2023 2022
—EZ= TECF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E BT BT
Revenue Yz 6,7 101,897 114,778
Cost of sales THE B A (85,119) (102,354)
Gross profit EF 16,778 12,424
Other revenue and gain H s WA 8 3,942 5,765
Fair value loss on investment KREMEZ ANTFE
properties 518 17 (7,300) (9,800)
Gain/(loss) arising on change in BAFEREBERYEZ
fair value of financial assets at MHEEATEE
fair value through profit or loss FREX 2 W,/
(#518) 95,390 (174,113)
Administrative expenses TERX (50,490) (49,575)
Other operating expenses H& S 9(c) (6,484) (16,593)
Profit/(loss) from operations LR R 7 (B548) 51,836 (231,892)
Finance costs YR EID RN 9(a) (26,770) (13,674)
Share of results of joint ventures ~ fE{Lh &= 2L 518 627
Share of results of associates =N e 143,717 (42,133)
Profit/(loss) before taxation PRI AR (B518) 9 169,301 (287,072)
Taxation I8 10(a) - -
Profit/(loss) for the year TEE@EH (E518) 169,301 (287,072)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERTIRRELAEE
attributable to owners of the &%) (§548)
Company 169,301 (287,072)
Earnings/(loss) per share SREAN (E518)
— Basic and diluted —HAR RS 14 3.44 HK cents Bfll  (5.83) HK cents 7l

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

BEM 2 52 A A AR G M B R Z A Al BP
7o
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

raiEmkEMZETER
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2023 2022
TEI=HF -
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT BT T
Profit/(loss) for the year TEEEF (518) 169,301 (287,072)
Other comprehensive loss Hh2mEEE
Iltem that may be reclassified HEREMSEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BEmZIER
Exchange differences on translation MEBINEB AR
of financial statements of overseas BB ERMEEZ
subsidiaries PE 2 =28 (1,302) (1,208)
Total other comprehensive loss for the  FR#R#% = AREE Hh
year, net of tax FHEEEAREE (1,302) (1,208)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AEEZEUE~ (§518)
for the year 4z 167,999 (288,280)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AT RREEREE
for the year attributable to owners 2@~ (§518) 4858
of the Company 167,999 (288,280)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

,f/

S
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by Z MY SE R AR & B B IRk Z 4 A ER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

- N
EeMBIRR
As at 31 December 2023
RZZ2=F+"HB=+—H
2023 2022
—E=HF B CHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bd5E AT BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME B MERE 15 223,241 234,816
Intangible assets mEEE 16 6,102 3,977
Investment properties e d—L7/ES 17 121,500 128,800
Interests in associates RE=E AR 2 Em 18 678,227 535,404
Interests in joint ventures NN R T 19 8,468 7,950
1,037,538 910,947
Current assets MENEE
Stock of properties M=EEE 20 88,900 100,600
Trade and other receivables FEUN B 57 AR %
H {th fE UK AR =X 21 15,727 18,359
Financial assets at fair value BN ERER
through profit or loss HIER 2 BT B EE 22 188,453 93,429
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHIERITFR 23 549 549
Cash and cash equivalents REeEMREEE
IEH 24 57,388 147,273
351,017 360,210
Current liabilities nEaE
Trade and other payables FE B 5 IR
H (TR 25 20,294 21,676
Contract liabilities H5H8E 30 802 731
Bank loans IRTTER 26 306,500 312,500
Lease liabilities HEs’d 27 311 554
Financial guarantee contract MBEREN 29 - 161
327,907 335,622
Net current assets MENEEFE 23,110 24,588
Total assets less current BEEEAERTBHERE
liabilities 1,060,648 935,535
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
IREIBIRRR &

As at 31 December 2023

AT _=F+"H=+—H
2023 2022
—E=HF —ECCF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 AT BT T
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 27 284 170
Loan from a director and —HEERER
controlling shareholder RERER 28 173,000 216,000
173,284 216,170
Net assets BEEZRE 887,364 719,365
Capital and reserves B R #E
Share capital [N 32 49,265 49,265
Reserves e 838,099 670,100
Total equity HmEE 887,364 719,365

The consolidated financial statements were approved and &G & HFREXEN S _NE=H

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March ~ —+t BEEZEE LA RBRET - I
2024 and signed on its behalf by: AU TESEAREE !

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny Ma Ho Man, Hoffman

2R3 BEX

Director Director

EE EBE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  B&EMI Z MYzt A A 4R S B 75 3R % =2 48 Al 2B
consolidated financial statements. 7o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EAFRRE
Share Share Distributable  Exchange Other Accumulated Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
A

kE  ROEE AREE 2 ERGE  HtEE  RaER  BElE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BTr ARt BBTn  BlTr  ABTn EEfn BT
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)

(fzfa)  (Hzb) ()

1 January 2022 RZE__&E-A—H 49265 1,418,963 52,333 (3,756) 976 (510,136) 1,007,645
Loss for the year rEERE - - - - - (287072) (287,072
Other comprehensive loss ~ AFEEMPEEE

for the year - = = (1,208) - - (1,208)
Total comprehensive loss rEEZARRAE
for the year - - - (1,208) - (287,072)  (288,280)
At31December 2022and ~ RZBE-"F
1 January 2023 +ZA=+-Bk
—Z-=F-A-H 49,265 1,418,963 52,333 (4,964) 976 (797,208) 719,365
Profit for the year KEERH - - - - - 169301 169,301
Other comprehensive loss ~ AFEEMPEEE
for the year - - - (1,302) - - (1,302)
Total comprehensive income/  ZAEEZAWE/
(loss) for the year (548 8% - - - (1,302) - 169301 167,999
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=
+ZB=+-H 49265 1,418,963 52,333 (6,266) 976 (627,907) 887,364
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
n/-rD -“-.E_ﬁﬁ@:’% Cl‘é.:‘Ii

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

(a) Share premium (a) B&fpi@E
The application of the share premium account is K aBR2EASBRE
governed by section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 —NN\—FREVEBIOFRREE
of Bermuda.

(b) Distributable reserve (b) TSRS
The distributable reserve is the reserve of the AHDIKEEIEEALDRRERERE
Company available for distribution to the —NN\—FREEFEIED KT
shareholders as calculated under the Companies Act ARER 2 ft s o

1981 of Bermuda.

() Exchange reserve (c) EREME
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign FERHEEIERRE EINER 2 B
exchange differences arising from the translation BRRMEFEZMBIIEELR Z
of the financial statements of foreign operations. B TR M 5E2(p)Fr 8 & 5T B R
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the BRIE o

accounting policies set out in note 2(p).

S 2 2 AR G M B iR R Z A AR

]

S

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements. 1

)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A, ==
ﬁm (=] Eﬁﬁlﬁig‘%
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—E=HF =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B = BT T BET T
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING &£ RSN
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRIAETRA) (B518) 169,301 (287,072)
Adjustments for: =5 I E=
EHREE ©
Fair value loss on investment K"EMEZ
properties N EEE 17 7,300 9,800
(GainYloss arising on change BATFERIER
in fair value of financial FIRZMBEE
assets at fair value through N EEBFT
profit or loss Efz &) /
B8 (95,390) 174,113
Bank interest income IRITHR EULA 8 (361) (120)
Finance costs VR ID TN 9(a) 26,770 13,674
Depreciation: TEE .
— owned property, plant and —BEYE KR
equipment Kk tE 9(d), 15 11,658 11,966
— right-of-use assets —FREEE 9(d), 15 520 633
Amortisation on financial IR G HEH
guarantee contract 8,29 (161) (322)
Share of results of joint EEEEREXES
ventures 19 (518) (627)
Share of results of associates FELEE N B S 18 (143,717) 42,133
Write-down of stock of MEFE MR
properties 9(c), 20 11,700 10,800
Reversal of impairment loss MEK—E&aE
recognised on amount due EERIE#D 2
from a joint venture VEAIEL SR bR El 9(c), 19 (3,200) -~
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ METEERT
impairment loss recognised CeAEY 5Ei=EE4E)
on intangible assets, net JREREFRE 90, 16 (2,002) 5,730
(Reversal of allowance for)/ TLIE U B 5 BR R
allowance for expected credit EHTEHREE
losses on trade receivables Bz (EERED)
S B 9(c), 21 (14) 63
Exchange alignment bE R (496) (235)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
eIRERER B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—E=HF =
Note HK$000 HK$'000
B =E BT T BT T
Operating cash flows before EEBELE AT
changes in working capital REFHER (18,610) (19,464)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and  FEUWNE ZER K
other receivables H {th FE UK AR =X
L () 3,080 (9,072)
Increase/(decrease) in BHEa/’Em/
contract liabilities GBIz A (92)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B E ZEREAK
other payables HAETERRR
CRIZ) /1E1n
(1,922) 6,329
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING #{E&E£FEEAZ
ACTIVITIES &35 (17,381) (22,299)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING REEHZIREM
ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchase of property, BEE¥%¥ HEK&
plant and equipment SBEPITRIAE 15 (138) (272)
Decrease in amount due froma fEW—RI&= b
joint venture FRIE R 3,200 -
Decrease/(increase) in amounts FEW B = A B IE
due from associates B (g0 18 894 (30,485)
Placement of restricted EFEZEHIIRITER
bank deposits - (23)
Bank interest income received BEUWIRTTH B WA 8 361 120
NET CASH GENERATED BREESHEE
FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING (B 2REFEE
ACTIVITIES 4,317 (30,660)

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mERERER (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—E=F T F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E BETT BET T
CASH FLOW FROM MEEBZRENR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loan raised HMEEIRTER 144,000 154,000
Repayment of bank loan BERIBITEMN (150,000) (144,000)
Loan from a director and —HEFRER
controlling shareholder IR E K 94,000 242,000
Repayment of loan from a BE—LEEH
director and controlling PRI E ™
shareholder (137,000) (86,000)
Finance costs paid [SENEZEC TN (26,755) (13,520)
Payment of lease rentals ZIHEEHEE (559) (657)
NET CASH (USED IN)/ MEES B
GENERATED FROM BEEZREREE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (76,314) 151,823
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HEMIREEEER
and cash equivalents CRiZL) /18 hn7EEE (89,378) 98,864
Cash and cash equivalents at the FE#R& KIS
beginning of year ZEEH 147,273 49,611
Effect of foreign exchange EXRESEF 8
rate changes (507) (1,202)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS F£XRIREKRIRE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR %EEH 57,388 147,273
Analysis of balances of cash IRERREE%E
and cash equivalents HEZ&ESGOW
Cash and bank balances RE& MIRTTAERR 24 57,388 147,273

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

BEM 2 52 A A AR G M B R Z A Al BP

7o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMTFRERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

1.

ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in Bermuda on 27 May
2004 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company's registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Units 1003-04A, 10/F., Tower 1, Admiralty
Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. Its controlling
shareholder is Silver Rich Macau Development
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI") with limited liability.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

1.

RS 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS(s)”),which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)")
and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and applicable
disclosure requirements under the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered
material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosures provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
and interpretations which are or have become
effective. It also issued certain new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretation
(“New HKFRSs"), which are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group (as defined
hereinafter). Note 3 provides information on
initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. EXEFHREHN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements included
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group's interests in associates
and joint ventures made up to 31 December

each year.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000") except when otherwise

indicated.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that investment
properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are stated at
their fair value as explained in notes 2(g) and
2(j) to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for

goods and services.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the

consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in orderly transactions between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristic of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the

consolidated financial statements

(continued)
Basis of measurement (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

— Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

—  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

—  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for

the asset or liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
amount of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the

(9]

consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 5.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
return.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more or the
three elements of control listed above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)
When the Group has less than a majority of
the voting rights of an investee, it has power
over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or
not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are

sufficient to give it power, including:

e  the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

e right arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’

meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expense of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control

the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in subsidiaries that do not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries.

Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair values of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE_ZT_=

F+A=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(9]

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in subsidiaries is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint

ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exits only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
or a joint venture are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint

ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or
a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint

ventures (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate or joint venture and
the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of
the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or
joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate
or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)
When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interests
in associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interests if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. ERZHEBEEN (B

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint (d) REBEEQATIREELEZ

ventures (continued)

The Group applies HKFRS 9, including the
impairment requirements, to long-term interests
in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is not applied and which form
part of the net investment in the investee.
Furthermore, in applying HKFRS 9 to long-
term interests, the Group does not take into
account adjustments to their carrying amount
required by HKAS 28 (i.e. adjustments to the
carrying amount of long-term interests arising
from the allocation of losses of the investee or
assessment of impairment in accordance with
HKAS 28).

In the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, interests in associate and joint
venture are stated at cost less impairment loss.
If there is an indication of impairment, then the
impairment test applied follows the principles in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” (see note 2(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight-line method over their estimated
useful life at the following rates per annum:

Land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

office equipment
Motor vehicles

Motor yacht and equipment 10% — 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
There is no depreciation imposed on the

freehold land.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

(f)

(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets, other than goodwill,
identified on business combinations are
capitalised at their fair values. They represent
mainly trademark relationship with customers
and cryptocurrencies. Subsequent to initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis from the date of acquisition
over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Client list 15 years
The asset’s useful lives and their amortisation
method are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are not amortised. The intangible asset and
its status are reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support indefinite useful life. Should the useful
life of an intangible asset change from indefinite
to finite, the change would be accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(f)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(continued)

Cryptocurrencies purchased and held by the
Group include Bitcoins, which are accounted for
as intangible assets under the cost model. The
Group has ownership of and control over the
cryptocurrencies held and employs third party
custodian services to monitor them.

The cryptocurrencies held by the Group are
considered to have indefinite life, given there
is no foreseeable limit to the period over which
the relevant cryptocurrencies are expected
to generate net cash inflows for the Group.
They are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. The
accounting policies applied for impairment of
cryptocurrencies are consistent with those for
impairment of non-financial assets, as described
in note 2(i). Cryptocurrencies that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period. The increased carrying amount of
cryptocurrencies attributable to a reversal of
an impairment loss, which is recognised in
profit or loss, will not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
cryptocurrencies in prior accounting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(f)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(continued)

The recoverable amount of cryptocurrencies
are determined based on fair value less costs
of disposal. In determining the fair values, the
relevant available markets are identified by the
Group, and the Group considers accessibility
to, and activity within those markets in order
to identify the principal cryptocurrency markets
for the Group. The fair value of cryptocurrencies
traded in active markets (such as trading and
exchange platforms) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an
exchange and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. Therefore, the fair
value used for assessment of recoverable
amount in impairment tests is determined as
guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
cryptocurrencies.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(g) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for
such purposes). Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid
or accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in the profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as
part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. ERZHEBESEN (B

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (h) A&

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
arising from business combinations on or after
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXTHBREN 4B)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (continued) (h) 8 @
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBREREBA (B)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets THHHERIREEESEHAE
The Group applies the short-term lease RNEE K HITE BB RE
recognition exemption to leases of office BB ERARRE B E12(E
equipment that have a lease term of 12 AU TRAEEEEEREN
months or less from the commencement date MAERBEHEHE - AEBTH
and do not contain a purchase option. It also REEEEENERE BRI
applies the recognition exemption for lease o RHAHEREEBEEEM
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short- ENHENRNEERRNZEE
term leases and leases of low-value assets are BEREMARMEEERR S
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or sz o

another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets EHAESE
The cost of right-of-use asset includes: ERAEEERNMAEE

e the amount of the initial measurement of HESaEEXRFESE;

the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before e RHEWBHAENZAI{FLY
the commencement date, less any lease BRI R & {5 =R R AR 1A
incentives received; BWEHNEEES ;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the e AFAEEFELENGEMAH
Group; and REFERAE ; &

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by o AEBEREHKKBERS
the Group in dismantling and removing BE [O1EHPRER RS
the underlying assets, restoring the site N EHEAEEREEMH
on which it is located or restoring the BB REGEE R
underlying asset to the condition required JUPRE LRI (EET AR AN ©

by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. ERZHEBESEN (B

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(h) & (&

(h) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
property or inventory in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.

KEEEREEAN (B
EHREE (B)
ERREER AR ER RS
TERREGEE TE
AEHFEEHEEEFLHS

o

AEBRERERFGERTE
ERRREEEERE RN
RREEE BRBAREERE
RERERABSHRTE -
Al ERREEUERENHE
Lt EAFERREER (UR
REE D) NEHRITE -

FAEERAIATREYEXF
EEENEREEEIATY
F-BERx#E > HIREEAE
HEE HKRSFER) BWE—&
BARZ75]e

AR I B E

BN REOBEEREHES
B EERBORFTH I
M AFEEE - B RAED
By ¥ A FER R R AT S TIN
HEMM L5t A\EREEE
BYR AP o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &3 171



172

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives

receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an
index or rate, initially measured using the
index or rate at the commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the

options; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the

lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)
After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

e  the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following expected
payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as

a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or

more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the

effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.

When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the

non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. ERZHEBESEN (B

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(h) & (&

(h) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor EEBEAHBAA
Classification and measurement of leases MHEZ D HERGTE

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at the
commencement date at amounts equal to the
Group’s net investment in the leases, measured
using the interest rate implicit in the respective
lease. Initial direct costs (other than those
incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are
included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Interest and rental income which are derived
from the Group’s ordinary course of business are
presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a

contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS
15 "Revenue from contracts with customers”
to allocate the consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-
lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-

alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are
accounted for under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts
that were not part of the original terms
and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives
provided through forgiveness or reduction of

rentals.

Operating leases

The Group accounts for a modification to
an operating lease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease

payments for the new lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and
intangible assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant CGU when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established. The recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUEs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and intangible assets
other than goodwill (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or
the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

0]

()

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and intangible assets
other than goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a
group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a settlement date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers who are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are
presented as revenue.

(i) Financial assets
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are measured subsequently at
amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)

0]

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are measured subsequently at
FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and

e  the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date
of initial application/initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)

0]

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if:

it has been acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the near
term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(continued)

0]

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest
method

Interest income is recognised using
the effective interest method for debt
instruments measured subsequently
at amortised cost and at FVTOCI.
For financial assets other than
purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset.
If, in subsequent reporting periods,
the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from
the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(continued)

(i)

(i)

(iir)

Debt instruments classified as at
FVTOC!

Subsequent change in the carrying
amounts for debt instruments
classified as at FVTOCI as a result
of interest income calculated using
the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss. All other
changes in the carrying amount
of these debt instruments are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under
the heading of reserve. Impairment
allowances are recognised in profit or
loss with corresponding adjustment
to other comprehensive income
without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments.
When these debt instruments are
derecognised, the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FV/TPL

Financial assets that do not meet
the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are
measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, with any fair
values gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)

0]

Financial assets (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets
that are denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of
each reporting period. Specifically:

e for financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss; and

e for financial assets measured at FVTPL
that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)

0]

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit losses (“ECL(s)") on
financial assets (including trade and other
receivables as well as amounts due from
associates and a joint venture) which are
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECLs is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessments are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)

0]

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime
ECL for trade receivables. The ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of
money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL when there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. However, if
the credit risk on the financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument at
the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of
initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries
in which the Group’s debtors
operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think
tanks and other similar organisations,
as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that
relate to the Group's core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)
In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit
rating;

e significant deterioration in
external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor, or the
length of time or the extent
to which the fair value of a
financial asset has been less
than its amortised cost;

e  existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)
e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

e  significant increases in credit risk
on other financial instruments
of the same debtor;

e an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of
the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

2. EXg

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

stECREF ()

() ERIA @

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk
at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if:

(1) the financial instrument has a
low risk of default;

(2) the debtor has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near
term; and

(3) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

The Group considers a financial
asset to have low credit risk when
the asset has external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ in accordance
with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating
is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of ‘performing’.
Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial
position and there is no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

(ii)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following
as constituting an event of default
for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience
indicates that financial assets that
meet either of the following criteria
are generally not recoverable:

e when there is a breach of
financial covenants by the
debtor; or

e  information developed internally
or obtained from external
sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into
account any collateral held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis,
the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

0]

(iii)

(a)

significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower,
for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

(continued)

(d) it becomes probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial
asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.qg.
when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. BEAEFEBREN (@)

() =MIA @
() MBEE (@)
RIEEEBMBREER]
FOFRETRIEGZ

B EERE (&
(i) MBEEEERE

(&)

(d ERAFTEE
THREBEWN
Hihf B 54
ZHE; B

(e) EAIRf B 2
ERZUBE
EREGED
%o

(iv) MEHECR
EEEHNBTRER
ANBABREME H
7 4 B R UK (2] B9 A
FEZ B (BIEnEH A
EREEREARE
B HERKE
5 MR RUE B B 1B
FR URFEEE
=E)  KFEETH
HM BB E - B
BYRE 5 B E ) A AR
BAREEUERE
R B S8 H 81T 0 1E
BEBRTERE
BERR - EAUkERR
G I8 m PIFEST o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &3¢ 195



196

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a
function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this
is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting
date; for financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes
the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be
drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of
the specific future financing needs
of the debtors, and other relevant
forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

The ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. For
a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the ECLs is
consistent with the cash flows used
in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss
allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but
determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach
was used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a
debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the revaluation reserve is

reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. ERZHEBESEN (B

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

() ERIA @
MR ERER

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity (i)

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own
equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise
when a transfer of a financial asset does
not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies,
and financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Group, are measured in accordance
with the specific accounting policies set
out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(continued)

Financial liabilities measured subsequently

at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and
other payables, bank loans, lease liabilities,
loan from a director and controlling
shareholder are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Financial liabilities that are not (i)
contingent consideration of an acquirer
in a business combination, (ii) held for
trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are
measured subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the amortised cost of a financial

liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. ERZHEBESEN (B

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

() ERIA @
(i) MBEERED ()

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values. It is subsequently measured at the
higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised over the
guarantee period.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are
denominated in a foreign currency and
are measured at amortised cost at the
end of each reporting period, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss
for financial liabilities that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(k) Employee benefits

(i)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution
retirement benefit plans are recognised
as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits (continued)

0]

Retirement benefit costs (continued)
For defined contribution retirement
benefit plans including the long service
payment (“LSP”) under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using
the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at
the end of each annual reporting period.
In determining the present value of the
Group's defined benefit obligations and
the related current service cost and, where
applicable, past service cost, the Group
attributes benefit to periods of service
under the plan’‘s benefit formula. However,
if an employee’s service in later years will
lead to a materially higher level of benefit
than earlier years, the Group attributes the
benefit on a straight-line basis from:

(@ the date when service by the
employee first leads to benefits under
the plan (whether or not the benefits
are conditional on further service)
until

(b) the date when further service by the
employee will lead to no material
amount of further benefits under the
plan, other than from further salary
increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits (continued)

0]

Retirement benefit costs (continued)
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes
to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the
return on plan assets (excluding interest), is
reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a
charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income
is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and will not be reclassified to
profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or
loss in the period of a plan amendment
or curtailment and a gain or loss on
settlement is recognised when settlement
occurs. When determining past service
cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, an
entity shall remeasure the net defined
benefit liability or asset using the current
fair value of plan assets and current
actuarial assumptions, reflecting the
benefits offered under the plan and the
plan assets before and after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement,
without considering the effect of asset
ceiling (i.e. the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form
of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

2. EXEFEREN (B

(k) EEEF (@)

(i)

BB (48)

ENFE (BERBER
m EBELR WER) &
R ERFEEELR
(FEEFB)) BER
rE MBI ERP R
WHREBERBETAME
T UK AP B BB X2 M B T
A o P E 2 T W am A
50 Z BT 5T 8 Bl R I AR
BERAPRER FFEE

MoEERT -

8 1E IR 75 A< 1L 5T EME
SHRIEEEHZES
TREEER » A5 B UK 05
BREEEERERD 1
BEEBERSRANE
B m s iaER > BEEME
ERFEEEZERHA
FEREHBEERRIE
HEMFEERBNE
BREEFBRZEE DL
R BREz st EITEIEET ~ 4R LE
B 45 B Al & &% 5t 8 12
2R RZBEE M
FERBEE LR (BIME
23R "R Bk 5T &I AR R A
BT R M 2 E R
MmzRE) 2 E-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits (continued)

0]

Retirement benefit costs (continued)
Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the
period to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. However, if the Group remeasures
the net defined benefit liability or asset
before plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, the Group determines
net interest for the remainder of the
annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement
using the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement
and the discount rate used to remeasure
such net defined benefit liability or asset,
taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit liability or asset during
the period resulting from contributions or
benefit payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as
follows:

e  service cost (including current service
cost, past service cost, as well as
gains and losses on curtailments and

settlements);

e net interest expense or income; and

© remeasurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits (continued)

0]

Retirement benefit costs (continued)
The retirement benefit obligation
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Group's defined
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from
this calculation is limited to the present
value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plans or
reductions in future contributions to the
plans.

Discretionary contributions made by
employees or third parties reduce service
cost upon payment of these contributions
to the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans
specify that there will be contributions
from employees or third parties, the
accounting depends on whether the
contributions are linked to service, as
follows:

e |f the contributions are not linked to
services (for example contributions
are required to reduce a deficit
arising from losses on plan assets
or from actuarial losses), they are
reflected in the remeasurement of
the net defined benefit liability or
asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. ERZHEBESEN (B

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits (continued) (k) EERF (@&

(i) Retirement benefit costs (continued) (i) BHREIHZE (&)

e If contributions are linked to services, o (HHMERFEHER
they reduce service costs. For the A1 40 8 AR 75 AR AR o
amount of contribution that is mh 5% 1 FER B BUR
dependent on the number of years RERFBFEHMES > &
of service, the Group reduces service EEXRAEASE
cost by attributing the contributions ZBFE19. 701K E
to periods of service using the ZEHNEBDES
attribution method required by O RERDEES
HKAS 19.70 for the gross benefits. AR 75 BA fE LA 30 8 AR
For the amount of contribution that 5 A AN o i B3 AR 75
is independent of the number of HAm R 2 HAREEM
years of service, the Group reduces = AEENIEHAE
service cost in the period in which FRFNHABEED
the related service is rendered/ 08 AR 75 B A 32

reduces service cost by attributing
contributions to the employees’
periods of service in accordance with
HKAS 19.70.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts
for the employer's mandatory provident
fund (“MPF”) contributions expected
to be offset as a deemed employee’s
contribution towards the LSP obligation in
terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measure
on a net basis. The estimated amount
of future benefit is determined after
deducting the negative service cost arising
from the accrued benefits derived from the
Group's MPF contributions that have been
vested with employees, which are deemed
to be contributions from the relevant
employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits (continued)

)

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

0]

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit/(loss) before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

2. EXEFEREN (B

(k) EEEF (@)

(i)

(iii)

RREE RN RER
HRRR ARG B RR

FE A -BHER
RE BB X 5 8 A TE
ERENZRERES
REERRS 2 FEES
A o fisd TR B A S AR AE I
EEEARE AR
AR UHIREY R

RERL AR
HEENeELEER
EEXEBBERESEM
WEMEZAEZEE
AIEEM ) WER R T E A
IEER S H K B FEE
iz H @27 ST o

() FriSH
PRISIR A 5 BN B (S IR IE K
IEIEFR B Z KB
(i) EPHARIIA

BIRIE N MR A FEE
RGN E BN
SFAEMEREZERN
5 AJ AR U S TR B R Bt
RAMVMNRZIAR - &
s A Al A B &R & 18
mARPEHRZ TBRIR AT
/(BB xEHEZ
IR A& B AR R
SHRAEEMNEEZ
tEBEBZRERFAE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. ERZHEBESEN (B

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
() FrisHi (@)

() Income tax (continued)

(i) Deferred tax (i) IRIEFRIE
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary REUBRREPZE
differences between the carrying amounts EREERAERBME

of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

()

Income tax (continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. ERZHEBESEN (B

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

() FrigHE (@)
(ii) EIEMIA (&)

() Income tax (continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or
the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to the lease liabilities, and
the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related
to lease liabilities to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised
and a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable
entity by the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

()

Income tax (continued)

(iii) Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business
combination.

(m) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(n) Contingent assets/liabilities

(i)

(i)

Contingent assets

Contingent assets arise from unplanned
or other unexpected events that give rise
to the possibility of an inflow of economic
benefits to the Group and they are not
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group assesses continually
the development of contingent assets.
If it has become virtually certain that an
inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
Group recognises the asset and the related
income in the consolidated financial
statements in the reporting period in
which the change occurs.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present
obligation arising from past events but is
not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally
liable for an obligation, the part of the
obligation that is expected to be met by
other parties is treated as a contingent
liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to
determine whether an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits
has become probable. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future
economic benefits will be required for an
item previously dealt with as a contingent
liability, a provision is recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in
probability occurs, except in the extremely
rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.

2. BEAEFEBREN (@)

(n) A

(i)

(i)

BEE/8R

RAEE
HABEERNAEESE
MAREE 2 KBEN &=
Z JE5T 850 H M 78 HA L
SNEH S AR
RN - REEFFE
FHESABEEZ B RE - [
KEBFETE M B £ ROEF)
mmA Z&%ﬁfﬁfﬁﬁé
BHREARNTREH
BIWRRANEREE KA
A UL ©

HARERE
HAREBRBREBES
2 EREE EERT
R P] AE B 2 A E F
mANEERUNEBITEMR
AT HE SR o

s 7 & B H A’ & Bl i
~»ERES AFEHARA
BT 2 EEEM K
BRAEIAEE BFAER
iR E M IRR ARERT o

7 & B 55 | 5T L AB 7
mANBERESE A
M o i —IBZ AT AT A
BREREZERRER
BRI o o B
REIREM B E 2 &
NEAREG M HREANE
SO IETE R BEIE ]
SEsTZBERBRE
e

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 38 213



214

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(o) Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. A performance
obligation represents a goods or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or
a series of distinct goods or services that are

substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the

following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

e the Group's performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the

distinct goods or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. ERZHEBESEN (B

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(o) Urznt#sd ()

(o) Revenue recognition (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. A contract asset and
a contract liability relating to the same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates
the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

(i)  Travel-related service fee income
—  Revenue from the sale of air tickets
is recognised at a point in time when
the booking tickets are delivered
to and have been accepted by the
customers.

— Revenue from the sale of tour
packages is recognised at a point in
time when travel arrangements have
been booked and confirmed with
customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(o) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Travel-related service fee income (continued)

—  Revenue from the sale of group tours
is recognised over time in accounting
period in which the control of
services is transferred to the customer
because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes benefit
provided by the Group's performance
as it performs. Payment is made to
the Group before the customers
enjoy the tour services.

Rental income in respect of investment
properties under operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease term.

Revenue from sale of properties is
recognised when the control over the
ownership or physical possession of the
property is transferred to the customer,
which is the point in time when the Group
satisfies its performance obligations under
the contracts. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are presented
in the statement of financial position as
deposits received on sale of properties
which are regarded as contract liabilities.

Management fee income is recognised
when the amounts are measurable and
the ultimate collections are reasonable
assumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(v) Interest income is recognised on a time
apportioned basis using the effective
interest method.

(vi) Services income is recognised when
services are provided.

Other income consists of revenue earned
based on volume sales through various
online ticket processing systems and is
recognised when it is measurable and all
contractual obligations have been fulfilled.

(vii)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual entity, transactions in currencies
other than the Company’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(p) Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group'’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(and attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-_ B =6£+"F=+—HILEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. ERZHEBESEN (B
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

() EEMZ

(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing
pool for calculation of capitalisation rate
on general borrowings. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

WE-BEHNEECEREE
BEERGZEERANEZE
BEZHMEAK BEEEARE
O{EERE AR E 2R 5
t-EEREENTERNM
R A A B E FAREIHE 2
BE-

Mt E—REEZEREX
B REEEEAFRERS
RHEERDAREBEZEARE
BEEFA-—REER -BFH
REBERBEEZRERERY
FiRBEFRINZRBEWATES
EREXRCZBE AR

FrB HMEE AT ELRRE
ZIBmAFER o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 38 219



220

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(r) Related parties transactions

(@) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group
if that person:

(b)

has control or joint control of the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(r) Related parties transactions (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any

of the following conditions applies:
(continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to

influence,

or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources
or obligations between related parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(s) Segment reporting

(t)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s chief operating decision maker
("CODM") for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical location.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

Stock of properties

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes
the cost of land, development expenditure
and other directly attributable expenses.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale, determined by management based on
prevailing market conditions. Costs necessary to
makethe sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

New HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective

for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following New HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

HKFRS 17 (including
the October 2020
and February 2022
amendments to
HKFRS 17)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2
(Amendments)

Insurance Contracts

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform-
Pillar Two Model Rules

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The application of the above New HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition

of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong

As disclosed in note 33, the Group has several
subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong which are
obliged to pay LSP to employees under certain
circumstances. Meanwhile, the Group makes
mandatory MPF contributions to the trustee who
administers the assets held in a trust solely for the
retirement benefits of each individual employee.
Offsetting of LSP against an employee’s accrued
retirement benefits derived from employers’ MPF
contributions was allowed under the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of Laws of Hong Kong).
In June 2022, the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administration Region (“Hong
Kong Government”) gazetted the Employment
and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”) which abolishes the use
of the accrued benefits derived from employers’
mandatory MPF contributions to offset severance
payment and LSP (the “Abolition”). The Abolition will
officially take effect on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date”). In addition, under the Amendment
Ordinance, the last month’s salary immediately
preceding the Transition Date (instead of the date of
termination of employment) is used to calculate the
portion of LSP in respect of the employment period
before the Transition Date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition

of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong (continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” (the “Guidance”)
which provides guidance for the accounting for the
offsetting mechanism and the impact arising from
abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism
in Hong Kong. In light of this, the Group has
implemented the guidance published by the HKICPA
in connection with the LSP obligation retrospectively
so as to provide more reliable and more relevant
information about the effects of the offsetting
mechanism and the Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising
from employer's MPF contributions that have been
vested with the employee and which could be
used to offset the employee’s LSP benefits as a
deemed contribution by the employee towards the
LSP. Historically, the Group has been applying the
practical expedient in HKAS 19.93(b) to account for
the deemed employee’s contributions as a reduction
of the service cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition

of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong (continued)

Based on the Guidance, as a result of the Abolition,
these contributions are no longer considered “linked
solely to the employee’s service in that period” since
the mandatory employer's MPF contributions after
the Transition Date can still be used to offset the
pre-transition LSP obligation. Therefore, it would
not be appropriate to view the contributions as
“independent of the number of years of service” and
the practical expedient in HKAS 19.93(b) is no longer
applicable. Instead, these deemed contributions
should be attributed to periods of service in the
same manner as the gross LSP benefit applying HKAS
19.93(a). Accordingly, the Group has recognised a
cumulative catch-up adjustment in profit or loss for
the service cost, interest expense and remeasurement
effect from changes in actuarial assumptions for the
year ended 31 December 2022, with corresponding
adjustment to the LSP obligation. The cumulative
catch-up adjustment is calculated as the difference
at the enactment date (16 June 2022) between the
carrying amount of the LSP liability calculated under
HKAS 19.93(b) before the Abolition and the carrying
amount of the LSP liability calculated under HKAS
19.93(a) after the Abolition.

The change in accounting policy has no material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the current and previous year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

New HKFRSs that have been issued but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
New HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020¥

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Supplier Finance Arrangements?

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

HKAS 21 (Amendments) Lack of Exchangeability’

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

s

For the

BHE_ZT_=

e EERARMEE (B

year ended 31 December 2023
F+ZR=+—HLFE

RN EREMBRS
ZR R BERBMBRS
] Z 25T 7 (48)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEMBHRRNEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. ERAMIIBRAMBHRS
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG ERRERMBZRS
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS R ZE5T 4 (48)
(CONTINUED)

New HKFRSs that have been issued but not BlEAEMKRERZHITIER
yet effective (continued) SRS 2R (8)

The directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) rRE)EE (TE%)) B EA L
anticipate that the application of the above New ] BB BIRESER N B R
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the REABHEEUBRRTREK
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable o

future.

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. ERITH

(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) ERITAZEER
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

RIEZ=% R ZT__
+-B=+—H +=-B=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T

Financial assets MEEE
Amortised cost HEE A AR 439,787 531,164
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFERERIRZ
MBEE 188,453 93,429
628,240 624,593
Financial liabilities IHEaE
Amortised costs 3 A AR 500,389 550,900
Financial guarantee contract RIFEEREL - 161
500,389 551,061
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. T EH (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) MFBREEERAFE

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values

The Group's major financial instruments include
amounts due from associates and a joint
venture, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and
other receivables, restricted bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, bank loans, loan from a
director and controlling shareholder, financial
guarantee contract, trade and other payables
and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The Group has exposure to credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk, fair value and other price
risk) from its use of financial instruments. This
note presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks, the
Group's objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, and the Group'’s
management of capital.

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment
Credit risk refers to the risk that the
Group's counterparties default on their
contractual obligations resulting in
financial losses to the Group. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to bank balances and
restricted bank deposits, trade receivables,
deposit and other receivables and amounts
due from associates and a joint venture.
The carrying amounts of these balances
represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

rEBZIEEMTEOER
WHE QB h—EEEEEMR
ENBAFERERYRZH
BEE BWEZ R R H A
FEER ™R~ R IRBIRITER
REkFESFEEL RTE
M —RESERERRERE
P MBREREN -BNES
IR B AR AR R E
BE -SRI EFBIRAEN
SEIREE ©

rERRCEASRIAMEH
FEERR RBETREKMT
LR (BEEEERFRE
B AT EREMERER) °
ANEHEAEREES HR
B FEBHRNFEREE
Rz BRE BRRERF U
RAEBEEBERZER -

() EERERKEEN S
EERBRIEAERY T
HEREBNEFERSR
EEERYBERRZA
R AEEWERMBE
EZEERBRFEEMA
A e I S HE T

rEBEZEERBREE
KB R1T 4 R e X IR
RTER-BRE SR
T 1 K ELA FEURBR TR
B FE W B & A B ;e —
BEERERB ZSE
FZERmERKRETER
MU BFEERAHZRS

B VE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

In respect of bank balances and
restricted bank deposits, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties
are reputable banks. The existing
counterparties do not have defaults in the
past. Therefore, ECL rate of cash at bank
is assessed to be close to zero and no
provision was made as of 31 December
2023 and 2022.

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of the lifetime
ECL provision for all trade receivables.
To measure the ECLs, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and ECL. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, trade
receivables, deposit and other receivables
as well as amounts due from associates
and a joint venture that are individually
significant have been separately assessed
for impairment. The Group makes periodic
assessments on the recoverability of
the trade receivables, deposit and other
receivables as well as amounts due from
associates and a joint venture based
on the background and reputation of
the customers and debtors, historical
settlement records and past experience.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received
from individual customers in relation
to sales of air tickets and service fee
income from provision of travel-related
services. The Group’s trade receivables
majority arise from sales of air tickets to
the customers. As at the end of the year,
the top five customers and the largest
customer accounted for approximately
4.9% and 4.3% (2022: approximately
3.2% and 0.5%) of the Group’s trade
receivables balance respectively. In view
of the history of business dealings with
the customers and the sound collection
history of the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding receivables balance due from
these debtors saved for the debtor related
to the impaired trade receivables disclosed
in the below. Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the
trade and other receivables based on
historical payment records, the length of
overdue period, the financial strength of
the debtors and whether there are any
disputes with the debtors.

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBRAMRERERATE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all of the Group's customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 30 days from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.

The Group provided allowance for
expected credit losses on trade receivables
in amount of approximately HK$137,000
(2022: approximately HK$149,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBEAKREERATE (&)

() EERBRREEFE (B

Gross Net

Expected carrying Lifetime carrying
loss rate amount ECL amount

FRHGE fREE MRS BREfE

tEE wE FEER FH
%  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
AT RBETT BETE

As at 31 December 2023 RZZE =4

+ZRA=+—H
Current (not past due)  ENHA (GR#HA) 0.5 9,119 (41) 9,078
31 to 60 days past due  #Hi31E60H 23 147 3) 144
61 to 90 days past due  ZiHA61E90H 4.7 270 (13) 257
Over 90 days HB1890H 11.9 672 (80) 592
13 10,208 (137) 10,071
Gross Net
Expected carrying Lifetime carrying
loss rate amount ECL amount
TR 1R fREE 2HEHA fREE
HoEE mE  EEEE e

% HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BBTT  BETT  BMTR

As at 31 December 2022 RN -E -

+—-A=+—H
Current (not past due) ~ BDER (G EA) 1.2 10,276 (124) 10,152
31 to 60 days past due  #IHA31ZE60H 1.2 36 (1) 35
61 to 90 days past due  %1HA61ZE90H 49 484 (24) 460
13 10,796 (149) 10,647
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
The closing loss allowances for trade

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBRAMRERERATE (&)
() EERBRKREFE (B

RNZTEZ=FKF =

receivables as at 31 December 2023 and &+ ”-A=+—H
2022 reconciled as follows: ZEBREZERINFEXRES
BEEHIRNOT :
Trade
receivables
F& Uk & 5 R X
HK$'000
BT IT
At 1 January 2022 ATE-F—H—H (2,243)
Loss allowance recognised in FANRBmER 2 B8
profit or loss during the year i) (63)
Bad debt written off 2 AR Hif1 2,028
Exchange alignment PE 2 5R 2 129
At 31 December 2022 and A_EBCHF
1 January 2023 +-A=+—Hxk
—E=F—RF—H (149)
Reversal of loss allowance recognised FARBTESR 28
in profit or loss during the year B 14
Exchange alignment bE R AT 2)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=F
+=ZB=+—H (137)
Trade receivables are written off when FEUWL B 2 Bk T B R
there is no reasonable expectation of Bz 5IEAERME B
recovery. Indicators that there is no mblzEEBEHFENTE

reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor
to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments for a period greater than agreed
contract terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past one year. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the trade receivables.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out
in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The management monitored the financial
background and creditability of those
debtors on an ongoing basis. The Group
seeks to minimise its risk by dealing with
counterparties which have good credit
history. Majority of the trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired
have no default payment history. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

For deposits and other receivables as well
as amounts due from associates and a
joint venture, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The Directors
believe that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balances.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its current
and expected liquidity requirement and
its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TRERERMIEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. £ERTH (B8

(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BMAFEEGERERATE (4B)
values (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) RBEEREK (B)
At 31 December 2023
RZEZZE+ZA=1-H

Weighted More than ~ More than Total

average Within ~ 1yearbut  2yearsbut  contractual
effective 1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount

mEss —£R Bia-& BAME ANERER
BRA= FREX  EORAE  EIREE RERSLE REfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI ARt ARTR BRI AT
Trade and other payables ER B AR E MR - 20,294 - - 20,294 20,294
Bank loans (noze) ROER W2 6.2 325,497 - - 325,497 306,500
Lease liabilities HESE 5.4 320 151 138 609 595

Loan from a director and —LEERERRRED
controlling shareholder 5.8 - 183,000 - 183,000 173,000
346,111 183,151 138 529,400 500,389
At 31 December 2022
RZBZ_E+ZA=+-H

Weighted More than More than Total

average Within Tyearbut ~ 2yearsbut  contractual
effective 1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount

mETs —ER Ba-F BAWME  SARER
BRI IHER  BORME  BONEE RERSEE REfE
% HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT AT BT BT AR
Trade and other payables FEfi 8 SRR E MR - 21,676 - - 21,676 21,676
Bank loans (note) FTER i) 33 322,697 - - 322,697 312,500
Lease liabilties HESE 40 562 m - 734 724

Loan from a director and —LEERERRRET

controlling shareholder 5.1 - 227,095 - 227,095 216,000
344,935 227,267 = 572,202 550,900
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
0= =F+ZA=+—HULEEFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

Note:

There is a clause for repayment on demand
under the facility letters regarding the bank loans
granted to the Group. Thus, the bank loans are
categorised into the time band of “within 1 year or
on demand” in the above maturity analysis. As at
31 December 2023, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amount and interest of bank loans was
approximately HK$325,497,000 (2022. approximately
HK$322,697,000). Taking into account of the Group’s
financial position, the Directors believe that the
bank exercising its discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment is remote and such bank loans
shall be repaid one year after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the aggregate principal
and interest cash outflows will be in the amount of
approximately HK$325,497,000 (2022. approximately
HK$322,697,000) calculated with weighted average
effective interest rate.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, it was
not probable that the counterparties to
the financial guarantee will claim under
the contracts. Consequently, there is
no amount recognised for the financial
guarantee contract in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: approximately
HK$0.2 million).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIRIKERA AT

4. £RTH (B

(i)

RBEEERE ()
Mt -

B RIIR 7 R EFRTTE B
BRUBE T EZEREEZ
1550 o UL » 2 ARTTE A EX
iﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁp\yf};@% [—1F A 3
BER BFRJAAR e I —EZ =
F+ B =+—H ZRTER
Z R B R F B A% BEAY
B IE325 497,000 (ZFE - —
IF [ AYENE322,697,0005T) °
AMEEREF I BEMRIT E
FRG RITITERERERE
KEFFE 2 B GEEE M >
B RIIRITE A EIZ BB thi%
T 8 FEE AR = H AR IR & R A
—FEER BE_FE =4
+ZA=1+—HIFE 2
FHEEFEFEZ R ERF
BB & 7 48 % BB AT 49 5 B B
325,497,0007T (ZE =4 [ 4
JEI8322,697,0005T) °

N E_=ZFE K
- = E| )
%?#ﬁZ*%HTk

BERIBESAIRY EE%
l ﬁt T TTEREEC
:E¢+_ﬁ:+—5
EFEZEEHHERE
R B ERE N ER
1T ] & EB :
,.S%ﬁégzoo,ooom

(22



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Liquidity risk (continued)

e EERARMEE (B

s

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BHE_ZT_=

FrRA=t—HILFE

4. £RTH (B

(i)

At 31 December 2023
RIEZ=H+ZA=+—H

/)ltﬁﬁﬁﬂpd (.‘ﬁﬁ)

At 31 December 2022
RIZEZZH+ZHA=+—H

Expiry Expiry
HK$'000 period HK$'000 period
BT B BETT EpL
Guarantee gvento  FLIRF—HEBEAT
bank in respect of ﬁEﬁmﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁfﬂ’Fﬁ
banking facilities 2R
granted to an
associate 490,000 2025 490,000 2023
Currency risk (i) SR
Presently, there is no hedging policy with B Al > A& B A B I
respect to the foreign exchange exposure. VE R B 2 $PIER o A&
The Group's transactional currency are BxRZEERBER
HK$ and CAD as substantially all the 7 RERAEKID U
revenue are in HK$ and CAD. The Group’s m USSR NoTEtE ©
transactional foreign exchange exposure ZK%.?_+%LFE7¥<§
was insignificant. 2 9N R B E 1
Interest rate risk (iv) FI=XE
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that NEBEFXRREIEE R
the value of a financial instrument will TREZZEBERMSBMZE
fluctuate because of changes in market SHMEEH BkE-IRE
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk mMENEXEEIEERMT
is the risk that the future cash flows of a BZARKBERERAS
financial instrument will fluctuate because 17/5 MEEHMES 2R

of changes in market interest rates.

AN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk (continued)
The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk relates primarily to floating-rate
borrowings. The Group's income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group currently does not have
any interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should

the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk

Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk,
the sensitivity analysis set out below has
been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible

change in interest rates.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

4. £RTH (B

(b) HAFRABREERAFE (B

(iv) FIZF@EE (&)
FEFEZRETREBF X
REBETESRIHFX
BE - AEREZ WAL
ERERBARAEZN
G REGHTE - XEH
IR By 3 AE fA) R 2R O
HR-AM EEEER
MERRE WEBENDE
Ry ¥4 S B AH R AL

R = 7] f 8RB 3T

MBS REF X R
5 TXFRESRE DT
ABEBEREHERETE
T AEAZZFZE R
ET-MESMBEMS
DHBEBERBREHER
ZAEBEEBBESBENE
BEEMNAREZETMR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. £ERTH (B8

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BAFERAMGEERATE (@)
values (continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk (continued)

(iv) #FZEER (B

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk
(continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis point
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss for the year
ended 31 December 2023 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$2,398,000
(2022: approximately HK$2,643,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its floating
rate borrowings.

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in note 26, several of the Group's
interest-bearing bank loans based on Hong
Kong interbank offered rate (“HIBOR")
will or may be subject to the interest rate
benchmark reform. The Group is closely
monitoring the market and managing
the transition to new benchmark interest
rates, including announcements made by
the relevant interbank offered rate (IBOR)
regulators, risks arising from the interest
rate benchmark reform and the progress in
completing the transaction to alternative
benchmark.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight
Index Average (“HONIA") has been
identified as an alternative to HIBOR, there
is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-
rate approach has been adopted in Hong
Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA will
coexist.

FIEREHREZ DT (B

WEFRELEH/ T8
S501E & B Fr B H h
RREFAE B KE
BHE T =+
B=+—HLEEFEEZE
BB, R DA B
2,398,000 (Z&E -
A B2,643,000
7T FERENAEER
2R EBEMEHZ2H
E R g o

FRBHENE

MMt EE26FT5) > REBE
TFUBBRITARERFESX
(TEBRTEERSL)
HEEFREZIRITER
REHAEERNFEXA
ERNF - AEEIERYE
£his > WRKMMEE
FERZEE > BERER
RTRERFREBEERE
FIERE FIREBENE
PRESE Z B K5 B
BEMBENERZERE-

BRIRITRIZS B

HABITIRRFIEH
MR R EBIRITEZENR
Bz BRER HRFIL
BB REREBIRTRE
ERE -BEBRAZHX
HE BEEITRAZERE
BB TR T

1To
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)
(v) Fair value

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial instruments
are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The management
of the Group works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and

inputs to the model.

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are
measured at fair value at the end of each

reporting period.

The following table analyses the financial
instruments which are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period

into the three-level hierarchy.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBRAMRERERATE (&)

v)

2FE

& F A M BT
NTEABZHBEE
KUBEEZ A FE
rEEZETERMIA
MM BHREBRUAF
BEFfE-RMEFQFE
R REE R R ERF[H
Z IR R - W
FEBE—RBARE
AIAEBEREES=7
BEREEMETEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. EFEITHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BAFERAMGEERATE (@)
values (continued)
(v) Fair value (continued) (v) 2FE @
Fair value of the Group’s financial REF AT M E AL
assets and financial liabilities that are NFEGTEZHBEEE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis KRMBEEEZ A TE ()
(continued)

Fair value as at 31 December

R+ZBA=t—HZAT#E

Valuation
Fair value  techniques
2023 2022  hierarchy  and key inputs
fEERER
ZEIZF ZZTCE ATEEE IEBAME
HK$'000 HK$'000
ABTRT  BETrx
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EREE
IR BEE
— Listed equity investment — EH AL E 188,453 93,429  Level 1 Quoted prices in
active markets
F— ERMISRE
There was no transfer between Level 1, 2 WMEEFERN > F—H F
and 3 in both years. TRKRFE =Rz B E

B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)
(v) Fair value (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a

recurring basis

The fair values of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices
or rates from observable current market
transactions. The Directors consider that
the carrying amounts of the financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31
December 2023 and 2022, except for the
following financial instrument, for which
their carrying amounts and fair value
and the level of fair value hierarchy are

disclosed below:

Carrying
amount at

31 December
2023
RZEZ=F
+Z=A
=+-H
ZEREE

HKS'000
ERTR

4. £RTH (B

(b) HAFRABREERAFE (B

Fair

value at

31 December
2023
RIBZ=fF
+Z=A
=+-H
AN

HKS'000
ERTR

v)

NEE (8B

W FFFAS B B ZE L

N EGTEZHMBEEE
KREBEE
KEBRBEEMRTE
BEZAFTENRESE
BRAZTEEREN &
IRREREDMEA
RUTBEREFMBER S
FTEBHENEBEBRET -
BERA NIREHHER
RANREHEM AR
MBEERMBERBZ
REEBEBHRARZZ =
FEER_EZ_H#+°"A1
Zt+—HZAFELE
BEAEE ETIEMT
BAIpRSN HEREE
TEEATFEZEREE
wr

Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2023
categories into:

RZ$Z=#+A=+-RZ
ATEARDENT

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

£—8 B8 =R

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT

HBERREH

Financial guarantee

contract
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. EFEITHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) HAFERAMEERATE (B
values (continued)
(v) Fair value (continued) (v) 2FE @
Financial assets and financial liabilities W IFFAS B ZE L
that are not measured at fair value on a NFEGTEZHBEEE
recurring basis (continued) REEE (B)
Carrying Fair
amount at value at Fair value measurements as
31 December 31 December at 31 December 2022
2022 2022 categories into:
RIBZZH RIZE-ZF
+-H +-H
=+—H =+—H RIBZIZH+ZA=+—HZ
ZIRAE ZAYE NFEFEDBMT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Bk FER B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Financial guarantee IHEREN

contract 161 = - _ %
& less than HK$1,000 * DR A #1,0007T

(vi) Other price risk (vi) HhEH =R

The Group is exposed to equity price risk KEBRUEZEAEER
through its investments in measured at B@iRAXNSFTEZR
FVTPL. For equity securities measured at BEMmEHRAEE R
FVTPL quoted in National Association of MEAFENRIEBERIER
Securities Dealers Automated Quotations WHREFRERE (TE
(NASDAQ) in United States of America (the E) 2B E5X5EmHE
“USA"), the management of the Group BHEFRERA @HTER)
manages this exposure by maintaining REZRAFESMS > &
a portfolio of investments with different EEEEBEBRBER
risks. The management of the Group W AE R EH
closely monitor the price risk and will EERAREAR - AEH
consider hedging the risk exposure should 2EEBEYERER
the need arise. Rz ERBENERY

AR R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies which are described in
note 2, management has made certain key
assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimated uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, as discussed
below:

0]

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and land and buildings

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its net selling price and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset, which
requires significant judgement relating to
the level of revenue and the amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue and operating costs. Changes
in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying amount of the
assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

5.

B FHE st R FI R
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KiE

REERWH2FIAERZ g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. ZEH{hst RFER (B)
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) S FBEBHEEZTE

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued) KR (48)

(ii) Provision for ECL for trade receivables (i) FEUWE ZERFRIA R FEUR
and amounts due from a joint venture —HeEtERBEE
and associates RERIBZTEHAE

BE18EHE

Trade receivables and amounts due from
a joint venture and an associate with
significant balances and credit-impaired
are assessed for ECL individually.

In addition, for trade receivables which
are individually insignificant or when
the Group does not have reasonable
and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort to
measure ECL on individual basis, collective
assessment is performed by grouping
debtors based on the shared credit risk
characteristics under simplified approach.
For amounts due from a joint venture
and associates, the Group assess by using
general approach.

mREAKREBEEREZ
FE UL B 5 R 7R L e & Y
— R & & b E Kk —
= A F AR R T fE
BHfEEEE-

IS > s 5 FE WK & 5 BR 7R
B! 45 BR 6 A B X B S
EEEZHAMHAS
AR E NMEE & E
A2 ER UER =2
RHEERHE ARERE
ERZERAEZEER
R EHBADHEE
TERE - ENEW—
BEEtERBEART
mIE AEEER RS
RETEE 0

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £33 247



248

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued)

(iii) Fair value of investment properties
As set out in note 17, investment
properties were revalued as at 31
December 2023 on an open market value
existing use basis by the independent
professional valuers, whose have among
their staff, fellow members of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyor (the
“Valuer(s)"”). Such valuations were based
on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making
the judgement, the Group considers
information from current prices in an
active market for similar properties and
uses assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at each of

reporting period.

In the absence of current prices in an
active market for similar properties, the
Group considers information from a variety

of sources, including:

(@ current prices in an active market
for properties of a different nature,
condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contract),
adjusted to reflect those differences;

and

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

5.

B st b st R FIE (48)

(a) EEtAEAREREZEE
iR (8)
(i) REMEZATFE

MM EE17FRE REY
¥R ZEBE_=H+"AH
—+—BEBIEXM
B (HETI®EEEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty
(continued)
(iii) Fair value of investment properties

(continued)

(b) recent prices of similar properties on
less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those
prices; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts and
(when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for
similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flow.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s
estimation of the fair value include those
related to current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates and
expected future market rents.

Note 17 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination
of the fair value of investment properties.

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

5. EeHhEtRFIE (&)

(a) fEETREARARIRZEE
iR (48)
(i) REMEZATE (@

by EREEHBZS
GRTiR B A
ZITHAER (AR
UrBBE#ZSE
RETXZE BN
PRAS T IR Z A ]

REREFTIFA S
st A Z AR R
RERE - ILIETER
MAEMBEAEBEOK
HM SR Z IR
(FERIATIBRT) 5h
FREETER (U03th B Kok
MERZ B MY E
RAEMBEE A&
52 WERAA RIRE
HRERETEK
REAHMARE
B h 3% 51 i 2 BE 3R

rEBAFEMFZE
2 R 68 15 B ith B Kk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued)

(iv) Impairment test for interests in

associates

The Group completed its annual
impairment test for interests in associates
by comparing the recoverable amount
of interests in associates to its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2023. The
Group has engaged the Valuer to carry out
a valuation of the interests in associates as
at 31 December 2023 based on the value
in use calculations. This valuation uses
cash flow projections based on financial
estimates covering a ten-year period, and
a pre-tax discount rate of approximately
8.3% (2022: approximately 7.4%). The
cash flows beyond the above mentioned
period are extrapolated using a steady
2.1% (2022: 2.2%) growth rate for the
casino and hotel industries in which are

operated by associates.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. ZEH{hst RFER (B)
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) S FBEBHEEZTE

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued) KR (48)

(iv) Impairment test for interests in (iv) REtESABIZERZZ
associates (continued) RERR (&)
As at 31 December 2023, in view of N_EB_=%+_H

impairment indicators to specify, the
Group performed impairment assessment
on associates. Determining whether
impairment loss should be recognised
requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the relevant associate which is
the higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the management of
the Group to estimate the present value
of the estimated cash flows expected to
arise from dividends to be received from
the associates and the proceeds from the
ultimate disposal of the investment taking
into account. In cases where the actual
cash flows are less or more than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances
which result in revision of future cash
flows estimation or discount rate, further
recognition of impairment may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such further
recognition takes place.

=+—H ' ERXHRER
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EHBEATETRE
Al - EE RS DR E
&5 18 By 5 22 ik 51 48 A Bk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting

policies

In determining the carrying amounts of
some assets and liabilities, the Group makes
assumptions for the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the
end of each reporting period. These estimates
involve assumptions about such items as cash
flows and discount rates used. The Group's
estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experience and expectations of future
events and are reviewed periodically. In addition
to assumptions and estimations of future
events, judgements are also made during the
process of applying the Group’s accounting

policies.

(i) Impairment test for interests in

associates

Management has considered the above
assumptions and valuation and also taken
into account the business plan going
forward. The valuation depends upon
an estimate of future cash flows from
the interests in associates and other key
assumptions, which are based on the
Directors’ best estimates. The valuation is
sensitive to these parameters. Changes in
these parameters could lead to a material
revision of the valuation which may have
effects on the net assets and results of the

Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. ZEH{hst RFER (B)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) BRAXEEEFHRZ
TEGHHIE (@)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies (continued)

(ii) Principal versus agent consideration

(i) EFAEREBAZERE

E 31|
Determining whether the Group is EEXAEEREEEIEA
acting as a principal or an agent requires FREBEARETEZRE—
considering of all relevant facts and TERBMBERIER B

circumstances, including whether (i) the
nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods
or services to the customer or to arrange
for the other party to provide those goods
or services; (ii) the Group obtains control
of each specific goods or service before
that goods or service is transferred to the
customer; and (iii) the Group has latitude
in establishing prices.

The Group’s management performs the
assessment based on the above mentioned
factors and reaches the conclusion that the
Group acts as a principal in the provision
of travel-related services and in sales of air
tickets when all the factors set above are
fulfilled and recognises the sales on a gross
basis accordingly. Otherwise, the Group
acts as an agent and recognises the sales
on a net basis.

(WHEHAEMEERESRER
REEEEmIMFB N
ZHFHEMARHEZFTE
mE AR Z B EE (i)
rEBEEEENRSER
EERIABRBEITE
FRIERXSZE IR
Z PRI ; KA R R
SHEEEMEBZEE
1o

AEBEEERERE L
ERETHEL R HAS
i = BN AP A A
=R AEBERIEHIRE
H A AR 75 e 8H R BT
BEZTEA LEILZRE
PBEEMDIHE - TAIE
EEETAEALIRF
BRERERDIHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Z!i'! P
w3

AT RRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

6.

Operating segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports which provide information about
components of the Group. This information are
reported to and reviewed by the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The CODM considers the business from both
geographic and service perspective.

The Group has presented the following two
reportable segments.

(a)

Travel business: sales of air tickets and provision
of travel-related services.

Property investment business: receiving rental
streams from leasing office premises and sales
of properties in Hong Kong.

Segment results, assets and liabilities
The travel reportable operating segment
derives their revenue primarily from sales of air
tickets and provision of travel-related services.
Geographically, management considers the
performance of the travel business in North
America.

The property investment reportable operating
segment derives their revenue from leasing
office premises and sales of properties in Hong
Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEE (4B)

(CONTINUED)
(@) "HEHE - BERER (@

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

In accordance with HKFRS 8, segment
information disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements has been prepared in a
manner consistent with the information used
by the Group’s CODM for the purposes of
assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group's
CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

Segment profit represents the profit from
each segment without allocation of corporate
administrative costs such as directors’
emoluments, share of results of associates and
joint ventures, gain/loss arising on change in
fair value of financial assets at FVTPL, reversal
of impairment loss recognised on amount
due from a joint venture, impairment loss
recognised on intangible assets which are
allocated to corporate assets and corporate
finance costs. To arrive at reportable segment
profit, the management additionally provides
segment information concerning interest
income, finance costs and major non-cash
items such as depreciation, amortisation and
impairment losses derived from reportable
segments. Unallocated corporate income mainly
comprises amortisation on financial guarantee
contract, interest income, management fee
income from an associate and other sundry
income. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. Taxation is not
allocated to reportable segments.

REEBUHFREERES
RN EFRESMHHRERNE
2ol ER IR EARERZ £
BILERRE BLEH L 2 ERX
BRRAMZENEERZE
MEBH—RZHmE -FLUE

SO AEEZEBEERR
ERBUTEEERERATE
BOBEBEZER EEKRE

(C

7 BB 45 & D BB PR B AN Z
i A o T 48 53 B 1 1T EURE
X (WNEFEME) BEBER
AREEREEREE BATE
RE@mIRZMBEEAFE
BEEL Z W BE B
W —MB5E EERIEREE Z
REBEER MO EERE
BEEZELEERSZHERB
BREEMBRAE - NEER
TERDEEAE > EEE R
IMEHBERZRBERTE®RD
ZF B WA~ 75 A IURe 3T
E-BIERREBRESEIEIF
ReBEZDEER - RDEC
TERAZEZOEHHERS
MEHE - FE WA KB —F
BMENT 2 EEEIRA REM
MEIEUA < IET5 LB TR 0 BC K
KRR EAEBREERRERE
2 5 ERE - IRIAW ) B
ERTEHRDERC
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to
the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than amounts due from associates and
a joint venture, interests in associates and
joint ventures and financial assets at FVTPL.
Unallocated corporate assets mainly include part
of the property, plant and equipment as well
as intangible assets, together with cash and
cash equivalents of the central administration

companies.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than corporate liabilities.
Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly include
financial guarantee contracts, bank loans, loan
from a director and controlling shareholder and
part of other payables borne by the central
administration companies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TRERERMIEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEF (4B)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities () PBEBE -BEREE B)

(continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group's CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and

RAEFEOAEREEZEER
RERHERMEERETER
DEBUDECE R KR E D BB R

assessment of segment performance for the Wz ERENWT !
year is set out below:
Travel Property investment Total
i34 MERE Eh
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEZ=f TZ”C ZEZzE TZTC ZEIZE TZTCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BRI BT
Revenue from external customers ~ RESMIER ZKE R
and reportable segment revenue AR 2R BKE 99,229 112,139 2,668 2,639 101,897 114,778
Reportable segment profit/(loss) AT 2&AEiH/ (58) 4,276 3307 (14172) (15,860) (9.896) (12,553)
Share of results of joint ventures ElEaEhtE2E 518 627
Share of results of associates YN ES 143,717 (42,133)
Gain/(loss) arising on change in fair BATERERTRZ
value of financial assets at FVTPL HREEATEEZY
FEE 2z W/ (658 95,390 (174,113)
Impairment loss recognised on HRVEERIZABESE
intangible assets - (8,529)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised ~ FiFE—FI & B £7E
on amount due from a joint venture B2 AEHEER 3,200 =
Unallocated corporate income FPEEERA 615 2,527
Unallocated corporate expenses ANECERR (37.483) (39.234)
Finance costs B (26,760) (13,664)
Consolidated profit/(loss) IESEER/ (518
before taxation 169,301 (287,072)
Taxation | - -
Consolidated profit/(loss) for the year ~ AEEEEEF/ (18 169,301 (287,072)
Reportable segment assets BAYERANEE 45,368 44,459 211,261 230,047 256,629 274,506
Unallocated corporate assets APMEEEE
— Interests in associates ~REE ARz 678,227 535,404
~ Interests in joint ventures -REELEZ#L 8,468 7,950
— Financial assets at FVTPL —RATERERFIEZ
MBEE 188,453 93,429
— Corporate assets —EEE 256,778 359,868
1,388,555 1,271,157
Reportable segment liabilities AYZHEINEE 18,044 20,119 1,621 1,587 19,665 21,706
Unallocated corporate liabilities APMEEEE
- Corporate liabilities —hEER 481,526 530,086
501,191 551,792
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BERERME (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

= N ==
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEN (B
(CONTINUED)
(b) Other segment information (b) EthpEpER
Travel Property investment  Other corporate entities Total
iigiid MERE Hinh ¥ EiE At
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Z®C=f TSCCF CZBC=f “FCCF CZBCIZf “SCCF ZBIZHF ECCF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT  BETR  EETr  BETR BT BETR  BETx
Bank interest income BITFIB A 105 1Y) - - 256 78 361 120
Fair value loss on investment ~ REWE 2 ATEHE
properties - - (7,300) (9,800) - - (7,300) (9,800)
Depreciation: i
— owned property, plant and -BENE BER
equipment ®fE (297) - - (11361)  (11,623) (11,658  (11,966)
- right-of-use assets —EREEE (520) - - - - (520) (633)
Reversal of allowance for/ R E BRI
(allowance for) expected credit ~ TBHAEESEZ
osses on trade receivables BERE/ (BE) 14 (63) - = - = 14 (63)
Reversal of impairment loss/ NEVEERDZ
(impairment loss) recognised BB/
on intangible assets (REEE) 2,002 2,799 - - - (8,529) 2,002 (5,730)
Reversal of impairment loss HEk—HaErE
recognised on amount due from  FIBHERR Z BI{ERE
ajoint venture & - - - - (3.200) - (3,200) -
Write-down of stock of properties #1577 & s - - (11,700) (10,800) - - (11,700) (10,800)
Finance costs EpION (10) (10) - - (26760) (13664  (26770)  (13,674)
Additions to non-current assets*  REFERBEE* " 228 - - 127 44 138 272

*

additions to property, plant and equipment but
excluded right-of-use assets for both years.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEER (@)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Disaggregation of revenue (o) WmniE
2023 2022
—ET=F —Eq2-
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T
Revenue from contracts KEEERITAZINE :
with customers:
Recognised at a point in time {3 —BF T2 bEST
Travel business: RIFZETS
Sales of air tickets THEME 86,667 102,599
Travel and related service TR 2% Se /B A AR 75 B Ut AL
fee income 12,562 9,540
99,229 112,139
Revenue from other Hthzk Rz Yz .
sources:
Rental income FHEUA 2,668 2,639
Total revenue &y k-t 101,897 114,778
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEWER (B)

(CONTINUED)

(d) Geographical information (d) HEER
The following is an analysis of geographical MTAROEERRBINGE S
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from ZWE ; KR(iAEB Z IERH
external customers; and (ii) the Group’s non- BEZMEME T - ER 2
current assets. The geographical location of (& i BhFE IR (AR TS5 2 Bk o
customers refers to the location at which the KEBZIERBEEDTEY
services were provided. The Group’s non-current X BERRB -REYE &
assets included property, plant and equipment, FEEUMRRBE AR KRGS
investment properties, intangible assets, rEZHEE

interests in associates and joint ventures.

The geographical location of property, plant and ME- -BERZBEUARLEY
equipment and investment properties is based FEzMeMB T UPRE BB E
on the physical location of the asset under ZERMESEE BRI
consideration. In the case of intangible assets, it BECAUZERETLEEED
is based on the location of operations to which oSBT REE BN
these intangibles are allocated. In the case of MERBIREEhEZ R
interests in associates and joint ventures, it is BIUZEME B REEhRE
based on the location of operations of such IS B A A o

associates and joint ventures.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REMIER 2K ERBEE
At 31 December
®+ZB=+—H
2023 2022 2023 2022
B & ZEBE”= BT F

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ABTx BRI BERTr BRI

Hong Kong B

(place of domicile) (FriEth) 2,668 2,639 350,447 368,589
Macau BP - - 678,227 535,404
North America BIES 99,229 112,139 8,699 6,589
The People’s Republic of HEE A R A1

China ("PRC") (THRE)) - - 165 365

101,897 114,778 1,037,538 910,947
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(e) Major customers
Revenue from customers arising from travel
business segment who contribute over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group is set out as

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

SEEE (&)

(e) EEEFR
EARERBEWEI10%U KB
RBEEZ DB R NRET
MmE

follows:

2023 2022

ZEI=HF -

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEFR BT

Customer A ERA 22,968 58,709
Customer B ZFB 32,608 N/A* 38 R *
Customer C ERC 14,145  N/A* RER*
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over e FEME FF B 2 F6 B Y 00 T 15

10% of the total revenue of the Group for the
respective year.

KEFHEUS 75 10% LY _E ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

7. REVENUE 7.

The principal activities of the Group are engaged
in the travel-related and property investment
businesses.

Revenue represents sales of air tickets, service fee
income from provision of travel-related services
and rental income. The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised in revenue during the

W

AEBZ TEXH NS IRERH
EYESSd= ES R

Wy oo 5 5 65 A 3R ~ 4 AR 225 4E A AR
BZRBEWARMBEZWA - E
N RIEBEER KRS ARRDZ T2
il LGl

year is as follows:

2023 2022
—E=H B4
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT T
Revenue from contracts with KEEERITHZWE :
customers:
Recognised at a point in time R —BF R
Sales of air tickets THEME 86,667 102,599
Travel and related service fee TR 2% Se /B A AR 75 B Ut AL
income 12,562 9,540
99,229 112,139
Revenue from other sources: HithzkBE 2z W#s :
Rental income HEWA 2,668 2,639
101,897 114,778
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

OTHER REVENUE AND GAIN

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

8. HftilimKRIA

2023 2022
—ET= =S
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt AT BT T
Other revenue Hth ==
Bank interest income IR1TA B A 361 120
Government grants (note) B RG (H752) - 1,120
Management fee income RE—EBHERAEZ
from an associate BIEEIWA 191 1,085
Other income Hham 3,229 3,118
3,781 5,443
Other gain Hthg A
Amortisation of financial B IER S A
guarantee contract 29 161 322
Total Bt 3,942 5,765

Note: For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recognised government grants of approximately
HK$1,120,000 in respect of COVID-19-related subsidies
which are related to several subsidies schemes provided by
the Canada government and Hong Kong Government to
support the enterprises which are severe disruption caused
by the COVID-19.

Wizt  BE—E - —F+ _F=+—HIiFF
(B KN E B R B F201 975 4 I % %
FEEG G 2 BT A A #9151, 120,000
TG EZ G R I E A TR & BB
FF LS5 201 97T i s 2 /5 ek B T 22
IR E T8t E

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &3 263



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRMAEIEF (E518)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after BRI EIEA . (B518) B30k (Gt
charging/(crediting) as follows: A) TFIER

2023 2022
—EC=H S
HK$'000 HK$'000

BMTT  BETR

(a) Finance costs (a) BAFE R 2=
Interest on bank loans RITERZHE 18,777 9,567
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEZHE 10 10
Interest on loan from a director —HEERERKE
and controlling shareholder ERzHME 7,983 4,097
26,770 13,674
(b) Staff costs (b) B TR 7
Salaries, wages and other e TEREMER
benefits (including directors’ (BREEZEMND)
emoluments) 21,811 21,082
Contributions to defined T ER R FURIRETE
contribution retirement plan Z R 850 844
22,661 21,926
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 9.
(CONTINUED)

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after
charging/(crediting) as follows: (continued)

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

PRISAEF . (BB18) (48)

BrIgAIER, (B518) B0k, (5
A TFIEE (@

2023 2022
—E=F -
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T AT
(c) Other operating expenses () HthREp®
Write-down of stock of MZEFZ SR
properties 11,700 10,800
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ MELEERTZ
impairment loss recognised CRfEEBERD)
on intangible assets, net BEEIEFEE (2,002) 5,730
Reversal of impairment loss MEW—REaEtE
recognised on amount IR Z
due from a joint venture VRN SFi=E{El (3,200) -
(Reversal of allowance for)/ TLIEUWN E SR FIEH
allowance for expected credit TRHAE BB
losses on trade receivables (B E#E) BB (14) 63
6,484 16,593
(d) Other items (d)HMIERH
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEM AN &
— audit services —IZBARTS 900 750
— other services —HMART 400 280
Depreciation e
— owned property, plant and —BEME-BEX
equipment B4l 11,658 11,966
— right-of-use assets —fERESE 520 633
Operating lease rentals KEHEMEE
— short-term lease — AR E 890 781
— low-value assets —BEEBEEE 4 70
Net exchange gain SN 7B U 2 (153) (461)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represents:

10. R SHEmRZIRIE

() RiEREHEmRZIRE

2023 2022
—EC=HF =

HK$’000 HK$'000

AT BT T

Current tax
Deferred tax

Tax charge

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profit for the year. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made for both years as the
Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong.

Canadian subsidiaries are subject to Canadian
Corporate Income Tax which comprises federal
and provincial income taxes. The net federal
income tax is calculated at 15% (2022: 15%)
and the provincial income tax is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant provinces. No
provision for Canadian Corporate Income Tax
has been made as the Group has unutilised tax
loss for the years ended 31 December 2023 and

2022.

PRC subsidiary is subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% (2022: 25%). No provision
for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made
as the Group has no assessable profits arising in
the PRC for the years ended 31 December 2023

and 2022.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant

jurisdictions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED 10. Rz EERRZIRIE (@)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)

(b) BERREHEZRIE

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense

and accounting profit/(loss) at AZEgEN (B8 2
applicable tax rates: AR :
2023 2022
—E-= ="
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRI ERA) (B518) 169,301 (287,072)
National tax on profit/(loss)  ZEARBREEZ G Z
before tax, calculated at METE Z R A
the tax rates applicable to wmA (B518) BxRIE
profit in the countries
concerned 4,573 (40,420)
Tax effect of share of results of FE{LEE AT S
associates MIBFE 23,713 (6,952)
Tax effect of share of results of E{h &= LS
joint ventures RIELE 85 103
Tax effect of non-deductible T_Hﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁiz
expense RIBRE 5,666 42,355
Tax effect of non-taxable BEFHBAZ
income RIBR & (40,465) (331)
Tax effect of unrecognised RIEDRIBEREIE
tax losses MIBFE 6,642 4,587
Utilisation of tax losses FARIEEIE (1,212) (373)
Unrecognised temporary RHEDERER
differences 998 1,031
Tax expense for the year KFEERIEMAZ - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEMBHRRNE &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

11. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS 1. EFME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIEABEFISE3I83(NE A F) (K
383(1) of the Company Ordinance, Part 2 of the BEEMNRER) RE &BENSE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits 622GE) F28 KR LR FLUIRE
of Directors) Regulation (Chapter 622G of the Laws ZEEMWEEIWT :
of Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules are as follows:
Salaries, allowance and Retirement benefit
Directors' fee other benefits scheme contributions Total
EZNg ¢ EMREMERN BIERI IR fit
03 W 03 W0 03 7)) 03 200
CECCE CZ-CF CECZE “Z-CF CECCE O CZICE CECCE O TZCCE
Name HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
4 A¥Tn  BETm  BETm ATz AEfn  EBTx BETR E%Tn
Frecutive Directors HEE
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny BER (2R
(Chairman) - - 892 864 18 18 910 882
Ma Ho Man, Hoffman EEX (E2E)
(Deputy chaiman) - - 633 588 18 18 651 606
Nor-executive Director FHTEE
Choi Kin Pui, Russelle Bz 144 144 - - - - 144 144
Independent Non-executive Directors B 31722
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann R 144 144 - - - - 144 144
Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose ¢ 144 144 - - - - 144 144
Chong Ming Yu (note ) 28 (W) 144 144 - - - - 144 144
576 576 1,525 1452 3% 3 2137 2,064
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(©

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
Directors waived any emoluments and no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the Directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

Director’s material interests in transaction, arrangement or

contract is stated as below:

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1 December 2008 made
between the Company and Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny,
being a Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (“Mr. Yeung”), Mr. Yeung provided a HK$200
million term loan facility to the Company with interest at
the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. The
principal amount of the loan facility was increased up to
HK$290 million on 14 April 2009. The Company paid the
interest of approximately HK$7,983,000 for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: approximately HK$4,097,000) in
relation to this transaction. Other details of the transaction
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

Save for contracts amongst group companies and
the aforementioned transaction, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the
Company was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end

of the year or at any time during the year.

Reference was made to the announcement dated 27 March
2024 issued by the Company regarding, inter alia, changes
of independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Chong Ming
Yu has tendered his resignation as an independent non-
executive Director and Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie (formerly
known as Hon Heung Mui, Jackie) has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director both with effect from 1
April 2024.

e M RERME (@

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE_T_—F+_B=+t—HILEE

1. 5= (@

et -

(@)

(b)

(©

BE_F_-—FR_F__F1_H
= —HIEFE B EEFNRE
M Z K EE I E A EFE X E
IR E » 1E A3 A 2K E BB S IIA 25
FEEF A2/ BUFA BB 1A

BERXG ZHASHHZEARE
m BT -

RIE AR L ] I E FE KL EZERER
BRI E (TBEE) RZEE
NE+ZH—HFTILZ 7 BLE
B A 5] 1E 7B #200,000,0005T.2
BHIEZNME #5785 EZLIRIT
BERAGFIKZ BETEMNRERF
Kt B o PR ZEE/FIIH+UH -
ZERMEZ AT EIEERSEE
290,000,0007; c Bt E - FE - =4F+—
B=+—HIFFE KRG ERIR
ZZ 1 FE#9EN7,983,000T (ZF
T I A9EHE4,097,0007T) c K52
B IS8 & A B IR M £28

BEBREHZEHgUR LTS
Sh o R A BT LB M EA T
KFEAEEFEFIREN > MEF
RETPEZFLEEHEEEA R ZE
ARG BHRER

MR AT ERAR 5 —F
—WFE=F —F+tHZRE  ABEE
EFEaRE) BUFNTEFEZEE) -
HELBALBIEHB FHLIFHITE
F o MEEER L (FIEEEE) AIE
BLEREUIFRITESE mETH
ZE T Er e —HEEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR B ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

12. SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 12. 5
EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS 4554
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a)

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, two (2022: two)
were executive Directors, whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 11. The emoluments of
the remaining three (2022: three) individuals,
included one (2022: one) senior management,
are as follows:

REBEASME K
EEmAL

LamemAL
KEELGATReH ALTH M
% (TEZITF  MA) BAH
TEE HMESERME11R
B-HBpp =% CE2ETH . =
) ANTEFEBE—R(CE
—TF ) EREEAE
HNSARRES 0T -

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries, allowances and e R EMER
other benefits 2,042 1,847
Retirement benefit scheme BRIRBFFT B
contributions 54 54
2,096 1,901
The emoluments of the three (2022: three) Z (CTE—F =) &

individuals with the highest emoluments are
within the following band:

=%
S ALTZMENF TY&EE

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
—E_= —=”C
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T E781%1,000,0007T 3 3

270

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RERME (@

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

12. SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S 12. SREEASMER
EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS Eair AL (@)
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Senior management of the Company (b) xABRSHREEAS
The emoluments of the senior management of KRBIEREEBAEZMEN
the Company are within the following band: FERIESER
Number of individuals
A
2023 2022
—ET=F S
Nil to HK$1,000,000 EZE A M1,000,0007T 1 1
13. DIVIDENDS 13. B2
No interim dividend was paid during the year (2022: FATEKGFHARE (T2
nil). The Directors do not recommend any payment FIE) EETEZNBEZZ
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December =+ -B=1t—HLEFEIRH
2023 (2022: nil). ERIFRBERE CEZZF 1 |) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

14. ERREF (Bi8)

AREIRREEERERER
(B538) TH IR T 8UEst & -

2023 2022
—ET=F - S ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit/(loss): wmH (§518) -
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable Z~A B IR R E(LAREE
to owners of the Company wmA (E518) 169,301 (287,072)
2023 2022
—E=F g
‘000 ‘000
TFhg T
Number of shares: ip&8 :
Weighted average number of STESRELRET
shares for the purpose of basic (B518) 2 B&1p e
earnings/(loss) per share EHE 4,926,491 4,926,491

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022 were the same as
the basic earnings/(loss) per share. There were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both
years presented.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

BE_T__FRITEHF+T
B=+—RHILEE SR#EERA
(B8 MENERELRRH, (B
1B) - REZMmEZREE A RETT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TRERERMIEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_ZT_—F+_B=t+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -BEBRE

Furniture,
fittings and Motor
Land and Leasehold office Motor yacht and Right-of-
building  improvements equipment vehicles equipment use assets Total
i RER
THRET HERE  WARRE RE BRRRE  EREEE a3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI AETT BETT AETT ABTT BRI BRI

Cost 578

At 1 January 2022 R-B-—£—F-H 236,962 6,844 1616 5,392 20,737 1,986 273,537
Additions #E - 73 199 - = 483 755
Written-off/disposals s/ e - (1,483) (29) - - (914) (2,426)
Exchange alignment ERAR (120) (83) (74) - - (95) (377)

At 31 December 2022 and RIBZZE+ZA=+-HK

1 January 2023 R -f§-B-H 236,842 5,346 1,712 5,392 20,737 1,460 271,489
Additions AE - - 138 - - 433 571
Written-off g8 - - - - - (962) (962)
Lease modification TREE:T - - - - - (15) (15
Exchange alignment ERBE 4 30 140 - - 7 24
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=FE+ZA=1+-A 236,889 5,376 1,990 5392 20,737 923 271,307

Accumulated depreciation ZitinE

At 1 January 2022 KZF-"£-A-H 7830 113 708 4190 11,900 1,121 25,862
Charge for the year ERs 7,224 1,730 362 507 2143 633 12,599
Written-off/disposals s/ e = (632) (29) = = (914) (1,575)
Exchange alignment ERER (12) (76) (60) - - (65) 213)

At 31 December 2022 and RIBZZE+ZA=1+-Hk

1 January 2023 “E_-F-B-H 15,042 1135 981 4,697 14,043 775 36,673
Charge for the year FRZH 7222 1,429 358 506 2183 520 12178
Written-off g8 - - - - - (962) (962)
Exchange alignment EREE 35 17 120 - - 5 1
At 31 December 2023 RZIBZ=F+ZRA=+-A 22,299 2,581 1,459 5,203 16,186 338 48,066
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2023 RZB-=%+-A=+-H 214,590 2,795 531 189 4,551 585 23,241
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZE+ZA=1t-H 221,800 4211 731 695 6,694 685 234,816
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

15. Y% BB Rz (&)

At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
i iy
—ET=F =2
+tZA=+—H +t=“A=1+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Freehold land and buildings held ~ R&EALUIINMERFEZ
outside Hong Kong KAFERE T M RIEF 1,805 1,843
Leasehold land and building REAFBEZHEI K
held in Hong Kong BF 212,785 219,957
214,590 221,800

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
has pledged the leasehold land and building with
carrying amount of approximately HK$212.8 million
(2022: approximately HK$220.0 million) to secure
bank loans granted to the Group (note 26).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, additions/
modifications to the right-of-use assets including
capitalised lease payments amounted to
approximately HK$418,000 (2022: approximately
HK$483,000), due to renewal of leases of office.

Details of total cash outflow of leases are set out in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
leases some properties as office. Lease contracts
were entered into for fixed term of one to two
years. Lease terms were negotiated on an individual
basis and contained a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applied the definition of a contract and
determined the period for which the contract was
enforceable.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

HE_ZT_=—F#+"HA=+—H1t
FE 2 AEECIKFREEENEK
212,800,00070 (ZE - —"F 1 4948
#£220,000,0007T) 2 FH & 1 i K 1%
FoEARERERIBTERZE
H e (EE26) ©

BE_Z_=—#+"HF=+—HIL
FE BREERAZETEE A
%/Waﬁz@ﬁﬁr“ BEE (BEEXTL
B 49581418,0007T (&
— T 1 49785483,0007T) ©

HERSREBREMN 2 B EH AR
éfﬁﬁhuiﬁ ®

BE_T_-—F+"RA=+—HL
FE FEBEEETYEFERL
EoMFIIMAEEHNZEEHR
m—EMF-HEHNZRERNEE
WE o WS EZ Z IR AF M o
17 TE A8 B B K T A BT 48 A
ZHIRE > xEBBAGHNZER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. BB E

Crypto-
Trademark Client list currencies Total
i ERLE nEg A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT BT
Cost R
At 1 January 2022 W_E__#—H—H 26,633 7,445 10,177 44,255
Exchange alignment bR R (1,508) (421) 14 (1,915)
At 31 December 2022 and RZEZTHF
1 January 2023 +ZA=1t—Hk
_E_=F—H—H 25,125 7,024 10,191 42,340
Written-off 6] - (7,184) - (7,184)
Exchange alignment ERRE 574 160 (1 733
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=&
+-BA=+—H 25,699 - 10,190 35,889
Accumulated amortisation B iH#E KA ERE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2022 R-_E-"F—H—H 25,269 7,445 1,686 34,400
(Reversal of impairment loss)  (R{{EES &) /
impairment loss (note 9(c)) REEIE (15#9(c) (2,799) - 8,529 5,730
Exchange alignment (R AR (1,322) (421) (24) (1,767)
At 31 December 2022 and RN_E__F
1 January 2023 +ZA=+—H8k
_E_=F—HF—H 21,148 7,024 10,191 38,363
Reversal of impairment loss REE B
(note 9(c)) Ma29c) (2,002) - - (2,002)
Written-off b6z - (7,184) - (7,184)
Exchange alignment b SO A R 451 160 (1 610
At 31 December 2023 RZEBZ=%
+-B=+—H 19,597 - 10,190 29,787
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=f%
+Z-B=+—H 6,102 - - 6,102
At 31 December 2022 RZBE_ &
+ZB=+—H 3,977 - - 3,977
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Trademark

The trademark named as “Jade Tours” is a
well-known travel agency brand registered in
Canada. The Directors assessed that the trademark is
having indefinite useful lives because the trademark
was expected to contribute to net cash inflow
indefinitely and can be renewed by the Group at
minimal cost.

In accordance with HKAS 36, the Group completed
its annual impairment test for the trademark by
comparing its recoverable amount to its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The
Group has conducted a valuation of the trademark
based on the value in use calculations. With reference
to the valuations carried out by the Valuer, the
recoverable amount of the trademark is higher than
its carrying amount. The recoverable amount of
trademark was increased equivalent to approximately
HK$6,102,000 (2022: equivalent to approximately
HK$3,977,000). Therefore, reversal of impairment
loss equivalent to approximately HK$2,002,000 has
been recognised for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: HK$2,799,000). The recognition of
reversal of impairment loss is mainly contributed
by the increase in revenue in profit forecast of the
travel business in Canada. Any adverse change
in the assumptions used in the calculation of the
recoverable amount would result in change in the
amount of impairment.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 6. E-EE (8)

Gk

lade Tours ) EIZZ BT IIE KA
LEEMRERIERE - B EIZTE
MO BRI E RIS M AEER I
OHRAEBUMAREZ NAE
o BME BT EHEIE 2 ol F A EH
AR o

RIEEBETEAFEI6H  ~EH
IEEiE el N2y = ——
+ZB=+—HZz oS rEHEER
EEFLEE BUTEREEIEZZE
EREAR AEBCREERE
Bt BR iAERETHE-BE
HEMETZGE Rz ko
TREERREE FmEz o s
RBIZNEMEER 4B 16,102,000
T (ZEZZEF BERNABE
3,977,0007T) L BE—ZT "=
F+_B=+—HIEFECHERE
ZRAAEE2,002,0007c 2 BB KB
ol (T2 THF [ 12,799,000
7T) Eﬁub,nzﬁéﬁiaﬁff@z;zj@m
SERREEHE RN FBARNZ W
JJDODJrﬁTM&IElé%EB%@%me
WEERAFEE > o] BEEE R
BELRERE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Trademark (continued)

The valuation of the trademark is based on the
relief-from-royalty method and uses cash flow
projections based on financial estimates covering a
five-year period, the expected sales deriving from the
trademark in the travel CGU and a pre-tax discount
rate of approximately 24% (2022: approximately
27%). The cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2022: 3%)
growth rate. This growth rate does not exceed the
long-term average growth rate for travel markets in
which the Group operates. The values assigned to
the above assumptions reflect past experience and
are consistent with management plans for focusing
operations in these markets. Management believes
that the assumption is reasonably achievable.

Client List

The Directors assessed that the client list is having 15
years of useful lives from the date of acquisition. The
carrying amount of the client list was fully impaired in
the year ended 31 December 2014. The recognition
of impairment loss is mainly contributed by the
increase in contributory charge of fixed assets. The
client list is wholly written-off for the year ended 31
December 2023.

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

6. BEZEE (B

iz ()
EmEZMEBEREMENEGEHES
EEEO WHRABRBERERFHRZ
Mt - TBEARBREREESE
Bz EmE 2 HE B MFRR AR
KL924% (ZBEZZF 1 8927%) 18
HZzREREBRAET - BEAF
HzREASNRXABEEREE
3% (ZEBEZF :3%) HEE- A
EREXRTANEAAEBEKSS TR
sz RIAFAERER  Fl(R
R EREE R e & B o B
EEBEINZENGER 2518
MR EEEHEZBRRAIGIEE
B o

ERLE
EETLERRBEZAERAFHRS
BB 1SF -FERREY
REEER&E_ZE—MNE+_"4
=+—HIEFEZEBIE - #EDR
BEERETEZREEEEEZHM
HigM-ERLBRBE_T =
F+RA=T—HLEFEZHM
i o
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Cryptocurrencies

In 2021, the Group purchased an aggregate of
approximately 23.4 units of Bitcoin, a cryptocurrency,
at an aggregate consideration of equivalent to
approximately HK$10.1 million on an open market
cryptocurrency exchange platform. The Directors
consider the economic lives of cryptocurrency are
indefinite as they lack of physical form and there
is no limit to their useful life. The Group accounts
for all cryptocurrencies held as indefinite-lived
intangible assets in accordance with HKAS 38
“Intangible Assets” and adopts the cost model for
the measurement. The cryptocurrencies are initially
recorded at cost and are subsequently remeasured
on the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, net of any impairment losses incurred since
acquisition.

In accordance with HKAS 36, the Group completed
its annual impairment test for the cryptocurrencies
by comparing the carrying amount with the
recoverable amount at the end of each reporting
period. The recoverable amount is determined in
fair value less cost of disposal. In 2022, as FTX,
one of cryptocurrency exchange platform in USA,
("FTX") group entities, including FTX, had filed a
voluntary petition for bankruptcy protection in the
USA on 11 November 2022, the cryptocurrencies
were unlikely to be withdrawn from FTX and thus,
a total impairment loss equivalent to approximately
HK$8,529,000 was recognised on the Group’s
cryptocurrencies for the year ended 31 December
2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 6. E-EE (8)

N

N ZE - —F o AEERAKTES
E2NEEBERSTFaBAEEYN
23 4B Uz NE G LA > 481K
BREFNABEE10,100,0007c° E
ERXRH MEEEHRR I RERE
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B EREISE BT EE BIFE
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BE WERBMAEILFE N
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B BRI R R A 30 BR B W L
REEZAERBEBEENTE-

BIREBGTERFI6T  AEER
BNEZEENEREARZIREAE
BT YR [B] & REVEEE B > 8 LUSE Al
nEE > FERERR T
TREE A TFEBRHENEATMETE
A 8 HPAFTX (TFTX] » 3=
EMEER¥RGTFar—) 2EH
ER (BEFMX) RZE_"_F+—
Bt+—HEZERIRYEBFRERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. KEW=E
Fair value HK$'000
ATE BETT
At 1 January 2022 W2 __%—H—H 138,600
Decrease in fair value recognised in the RiFaBmRANER 2 A FERLD
consolidated statement of profit or loss (9,800)

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 b_\—v——fﬁ—{— B=+—HkK

- =_%#—H—H 128,800

Decrease in fair value recognised in the RiFeBmikNER 2 A FERLD

consolidated statement of profit or loss (7.300)
At 31 December 2023 R-_E_=%+"H=+—H 121,500
A fair value loss on the investment properties of HE_ZT_=F+"HA=+—HI1t
approximately HK$7,300,000 was recognised in the FE REMEZAFEBEBLNE
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year 1#%7,300,0007c X AR & HE @ R AR
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately (ZE & . 49719,800,000
HK$9,800,000). The direct operating expense from 70) *REREYE ZBEKERY
investment properties is amounting to approximately #4578 1336,00070 (ZE -
HK$336,000 (2022: approximately HK$306,000) and #9781£306,0007T) ° 3R E&ﬁ%
the rental income generated from the investment E2HEWAL R AE®2,668,000
properties is approximately HK$2,668,000 (2022: T (ZE " 1 497812,639,000
approximately HK$2,639,000). TT) ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 38 279



280

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s properties interest held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purpose are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for investment
properties. The fair value of the investment properties
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried
out on the respective dates by the Valuers who have
appropriate qualification and recent experience in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The management works closely with
the Valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to model. The management
reports the valuation report and findings to
the Directors half yearly to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the investment
properties. The highest and best use of the
investment properties are its current use in estimating
the fair value of the properties.

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong is determined using combination of
income capitalisation method and direct comparison
method (2022: combination of income capitalization
method and direct comparison method) by reference
to recent sales price of comparable properties on a
price per saleable square foot basis and rental value
per saleable square foot.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
investment properties were classified as level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy (2022: level 3). There were
no transfers into or out of level 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out the fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. I EYE (&)

AEBRIBLESHEFA UEIA
THFEAEBERRZYERER
REAFEERSE LEAKE
MERPBERAR- BE_ZT "=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

17. REWE (@)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the fair value TREANERRENEZ R TFE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment STEEAR
properties:
Fair value at
31 December Fair value Significant Range or
Description 2023  Valuation technique hierarchy unobservable inputs  weighted average
RZZZ=F
+-A=+-H
it ZATE fhERE ATEER EXTURZBAAYE HEIMETH
HK$'000
BETT
Office No. 1001A, 46,500  Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per HK$29,486 to HK$48,460
10th Floor, Tower 1, method and direct saleable square foot
Admiralty Centre comparison method
BE AL IE10HE KABHEERER E=8 HHESTAREBER BH520,48670F B 148,4607T
1001ASRIHAE 97 B
Capitalisation rate 1.9%
B
Monthly rental rate per HK$64
saleable square foot
STAREAERAE Elean
Office No. 1004B, 75,000  Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per HK$26,862 to HK$44,147
10th Floor, Tower 1, method and direct saleable square foot
Admiralty Centre comparison method
BE AL IE10HE KABHEERER E=8 RHESTAREBER BiE26,8627T B 144,147 T
1004BSEHIAE 97 B
Capitalisation rate 1.9%
B
Monthly rental rate per HK$58
saleable square foot
STAREAERAE BT
121,500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. REWE (@)

(CONTINUED)
Fair value at
31 December Fair value Significant Range or
Description 2022 Valuation technique hierarchy unobservable inputs weighted average
RZEZZE
+ZBA=+—H
Bz ZRTE  fERE ATEER BATIBREBAZE BEIMETS
HK$'000
BT
Office No. 1001A, 49,300  Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per HK$36,044 to HK$47,204
10th Floor, Tower 1, method and direct saleable square foot
Admiralty Centre comparison method
BEFLIE0R WABREERER B=M BT ARBEREE HE36,0440EH 47,2040
1001ASEIAZE LEBUE Bt
Capitalisation rate 1.6%
BAEX
Monthly rental rate HK$59
per saleable square foot
BYFREAEBRAT BT
Office No. 10048, 79,500 Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per HK$32,836 to HK$43,003
10th Floor, Tower 1, method and direct saleable square foot
Admiralty Centre comparison method
BEFLIE0R WABREERER B=M BT AREREE Hl32,83670EH43,0037T
1004BSRIFAZE LEBUE Bt
Capitalisation rate 1.6%
BAEX
Monthly rental rate HK$54
per saleable square foot
BEHFREAERAT B4
128,800

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the valuations
of investment properties were based on either the
income capitalisation method which capitalises the
rent receivables from the existing tenancies and the
potential reversionary market rent of the properties
or direct comparison method by reference to

comparable market transactions.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

RIBE =K _ZTE__F+_
B=+—H REMETBEKRA
BEXREZE BPEYMENRTHEERE
WzHERBTERMSEETER
16) B FLEEE BI2E B LR
MBR5) EITHE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

A significant increase/(decrease) in estimated rental
value per saleable square foot in isolation would
result in a significantly higher/(lower) fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase/
(decrease) in the capitalisation rate in isolation would
result in a significantly lower/(higher) fair value of the
investment properties.

A significant increase/(decrease) in selling price
per saleable square foot in isolation would result
in significantly higher/(lower) fair value of the
investment properties.

The Directors believe that any possible changes in
input values would not cause significant change in
fair value of the investment properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
had pledged all (2022: all) of the investment
properties with carrying amount of approximately
HK$121.5 million (2022: approximately HK$128.8
million) to secure bank loans granted to the Group
(note 26).

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

17. REWE (@)

LEtEr T RERERESEEE
BABEM (AL 8<KREY
EZNFEREBLEA (FE) -&
FAEREFAIBIEM, (L) 8%
REMEZATERETRE (£
) o

B¥HREABEEREBARBIE
mn/ GRL) @LRENMEZATE
RIgEF (FF&) o

FEARE WABRE T R
BT R R ANEL AT BB
EPN DR

HE_Z=—F+"“HA=+—H1:
FECAEBECIKFREAENBE
121,500,0007c (ZE——F : 48
1%128,800,0007T) ZFiB (T2 -
F B REYFE FALXERE
RIRTTEMZ KIS (HfsE26) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR B ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. REtE B 2R

7

At At

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

" "

—EC= —ETTF

+-B=+—H +Z-A=+—H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B EE AT AT

Deemed capital contribution ~ fREEREE (b) 103,200 103,200

Goodwill kS (© 19,409 19,409

Share of results of associates  FE{LEE A B A 189,008 45,291

311,617 167,900

Amounts due from associates & UEEE A T TIE (d), 36 366,610 367,504
Amounts shown under ERBEETITEEE

non-current assets 678,227 535,404

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests
in associates recognised in the consolidated financial

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

18. REME QB 2 HEm (48)

EXBIN M BER ARG GRS
BRPAESNBEAR ZEniR
EEZHK:

statements:
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
i i
+-_B=+—H8 +—B=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT BT T
Net liabilities of the associates e AT adERE (105,468) (398,768)
Proportion of the Group’s NEEZ EREER LA
ownership interests 49% 49%
Share of net liabilities of it = NI =K =P =]
the associates (51,679) (195,396)
Goodwill EES 19,409 19,409
Effect of fair value adjustments WHERATERE 2
at acquisition 240,687 240,687
Deemed capital contribution RIEEAHE 103,200 103,200
Amounts due from associates g = /NCTE ]
(note 36) (H1&236) 366,610 367,504
678,227 535,404
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. MEtE B 2w (48)
(CONTINUED)
(a) The following list contains only the particulars (a) TREHIHEAEFBEXEENE

of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate
entities, which principally affected the results or
assets of the Group:

EERIEXEZMENT 2
HB REMEATDEERIF
EWmEANEER

Proportion of ownership interests

BEREERLLH
Particulars of

Place of issued and Group's Held

incorporation/  paid up effective by the Held by a  Principal
Name of associate operations share capital interests ~ Company  subsidiary  activity

ML BETR TEE HAAH H—F
BERRRE ERME BRREHE BREE BE MBRARE IEXE

% % %

Pier 16 - Property Development ~ Macau 100,000 shares of 49 - 49 Investment
Limited ("Pier 16 - Property MOP100 each holding and
Development”) (note) property

development

TRRNEERROERAT R 100,000 G R EE REERE
(+anzER) (W) 100RFI 2 R MEZR

Note: As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, Pier 16 —
Property Development held the equity interests of the
following companies with the details as below:

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

(@) The following list contains only the particulars
of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate
entities, which principally affected the results or
assets of the Group: (continued)

Particulars of

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

18. REWE QAT 2 m (48)

(a) TRESFIHAEEEENE
EBNEEXEZHMEATZ
HB REMEATEIARIE
EHEANERE (@

Place of issued and Proportion of effective

incorporation/ paid up interests held by Pier 16 -
Name of associate operations share capital Property Development Principal activity

MM BETR R+ ENEEREE
BEAE R e BRREFER BRI TERH

2023 2022
—gC= -
% %

Pier 16 — Entertainment ~ Macau 2 shares of MOP24,000 100 100 Provision of
Group Corporation and MOP1,000 promotion of
Limited respectively entertainment

products and
activities

TNAREERERAT HF 285 Rl EfE24,000 RUEREEDR

RPITT R 1,000RF9 7T EEZERE
ZRip
Pier 16 — Management Macau 2 shares of MOP24,000 100 100 Hotel operations
Limited and MOP1,000
respectively
TVEEEARAR BF 2892 5 EE24,000 BEEE
APITTR1,0008 M 7T
ZRip
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

(b) The deemed capital contribution is referenced

(9]

to the financial guarantee contract (note 29)
granted by the Group to the associates.

For the purposes of, among others, refinancing
the loan facilities in the aggregate amounts
of HK$500 million and MOP273 million (the
“Loan Facilities”) made available to Pier 16 —
Property Development by a bank pursuant to
an amended and restated facility agreement
dated 23 June 2021 (the “Loan Agreement”)
and financing the general working capital for
non-gaming operation of Pier 16 — Property
Development, Pier 16 — Property Development
entered into an amended and restated facility
agreement (the “Amended Facility Agreement”)
with a bank as lender on 23 June 2023.
Pursuant to the Amended Facility Agreement,
the maturity date under the Loan Agreement
was extended to 23 June 2025 and the
amounts of the Loan Facilities were revised to
the aggregate amounts of HK$230 million and
MOP273 million (the “Revised Loan Facilities”).
The Revised Loan Facilities are secured by,
among others, a guarantee (note 35) and
a share pledge (note 38(b)) provided by the
Group.

Goodwill

Because goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the interests in associates and is
not separately recognised, it is not tested
for impairment separately by applying the
requirements for impairment testing in HKAS
36. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the
interests in associates is tested for impairment
as set out in note 18(d) below.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

7

18. R E QB 2 m (48)

(b)

(9]

BIEBARLEERER M HE
NEBEZHBERELD (M
£129) o

A7 (HhEE) 5—MiRTT
BiEHHEA_-_SE - —F /58
Tt+=HZzRBIRBIEE
& (TERHEL) M+ 738
MEZRFTIRMBREAR B
500,000,0007T 52273,000,000
BATHNEREE (ERE
B)BRE AT/ NEME
EEMNIFBEEERHE—RE
BEES T/NEAVEZRRRC
T _=FNA-+=HEH—FK
IR1T (EAER) ST —RR&E
SIRESEERGE ((RERIE
EHEl) - RELETTEER
EOERmE TR LR
E_ERAFEAAZ+=8H>
BERGEEZSENTREEE]
A 4BEEAK230,000,0007T K
273,000,000/8F9 5t (M&E:]
BEREE) - KREFTEHREE
MESEmREAEBRHEZ
— 18 ¥ & (5E35) R—IERR
e (15E38(b)) 1EHIEIR

HE

RSB EF AR BB AT
HEEE LEEIRED
4000 S P 5 3 28 2836
o2 R B IR R T B 1A
BRI - AT W T XM S
18(FR B AT 2 M3
> B BT A (B
Hto



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

(d) The amounts due from associates are

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment. Their carrying amounts are not
materially different from their fair value.

The Group completed its annual impairment
test for interests in associates by comparing the
recoverable amount of interests in associates
to its carrying amount as at 31 December
2023 and 2022. The Group has engaged the
Valuer to carry out a valuation of the interests
in associates as at 31 December 2023 based
on the value in use calculations. This valuation
uses cash flow projections based on financial
estimates covering a ten-year period, and a pre-
tax discount rate of approximately 8.3% (2022:
approximately 7.4%). The cash flows beyond
the above mentioned period are extrapolated
using a steady 2.1% (2022: 2.2%) growth rate
for the casino and hotel industries in which are
operated by associates. The values assigned to
the above assumptions reflect past experience
and are consistent with management plans
for focusing operations in these markets.
Management believes that the assumption is
reasonably achievable.

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

18. REWE QAT 2 m (48)

(d) FEUEE AT RIBAEEM

RERLEETEER - %F
MEZREEEA T ETES
RER-

REBRHERBES AR 2K
N _E=_FRZEFEC
+ZB=+—HBZzIKE&%EE
BARMEEFLL 8 FBLUSER Y
REtE Bz R 2 FERE
A AEEBEZEMEME
BEREESAEREZARIE
==t e = e el = B
ENB 2 HERETHE BX
HEERREBERETFHRZH
Bt st KR BRIR A AL IRER498.3%
(ZTEBEZF . 897.4%) 18
Z2IRERETERET - BE L
MFEHRZ RS MEA KBS
NE)TRE RGBS %
ZREEER21% (T2
Fi22%) B LiiBRZ
TEREE R B - I £
BEBEINZENTEER
FEIART  BEEMREZER
EEEE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &3 289



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. Rt E AT 2 #E (B

(CONTINUED)

(e) The following is summary of aggregate amounts (e) xEEHELATA ZEE A
of assets, liabilities, revenue, and results of the B U K B4R EE L A A0
Group's associates: T

At At

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

iy i

—E-= BT F

+ZRA=+—H t-RA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB BT T

Non-current assets FERBEE 582,660 608,314
Current assets MENEE 303,478 37,359
Current liabilities piE A=K (104,638) (296,522)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (886,968) (747,919)
Net liabilities BERE (105,468) (398,768)
2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFR  BETx

Revenue W e 653,743 204,961
Other revenue and gains H e B WA 13,634 11,987
Profit/(loss) for the year KEE @, (518 293,300 (85,985)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REETEZ#ES

At At

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

iy ®

—EC-= =BT F

+-HA=+—H8 +=-A=+—H

HKS$'000 HK$'000

AT BT

Share of net assets EIhE EFE 6,698 6,180
Amount due from a joint venture ~ EW—REI&EBERIB

(note 36) (H1&236) 5,770 8,970

12,468 15,150

Less: Recognised of impairment loss  J& : FESR B {E K518 (4,000) (7,200)

8,468 7,950
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19.

(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests
in a joint venture recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

EERRZ#ED (&)

EXBI M BER ARG GRS
WRPAEINGEEEZ R
EEZHEK:

At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
i i
ZEZ=H k-t - 2
+ZB=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Net assets of the joint venture BErEEESE 18,809 19,104
Less: Non-controlling interests B IR (5,413) (6,745)
Net assets attributable to owners BETERIELEE
of joint venture B 13,396 12,359
Proportion of the Group’s NEEZ R EER LA
ownership interests 50% 50%
Share of net assets of the e ECEESETFE
joint venture 6,698 6,180
Amount due from a joint venture ~ FEUW—ME] & & B ERIE
(note 36) (H15t36) 5,770 8,970
Less: Recognised of impairment loss & : FES0 R K518 (4,000) (7,200)
8,468 7,950
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Details of the Group’s interests in the
joint ventures are as follows:

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

19. REEEFEZEm (&)

() AEERSEEEZ D
HBEWTF

Form of Particulars of Group's
business Place of issued and paid effective  Principal
Name of joint venture structure incorporation up share capital interests  activity
BETREE FEE
BELELE EBRERA Smmtd  RAHE BREEz IEXB
%
Surplus Win Enterprises Incorporated ~ BVI 2 shares of 50  Investment
Limited (note) USD1 each holding
BBCERRAR (72 ZR RBEZEHE 2REKEE REER
(ESiwd 30

Note: As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, Surplus Win
Enterprises Limited held 80% effective interests in
Double Diamond International Limited (“Double
Diamond”, a company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability). The principal activity of Double
Diamond is pier operation in Macau.

(b) Aggregate financial information of the
joint ventures that is not individually

Wi R FEZ=ZFR T 4
+ZHA=+—H BEFrX*E
R 51 ADouble Diamond
International Limited (T Double
DiamondJ » — B 54 28 /8 i X EE
EFMrrz2ERAE) 280%
B 1% o Double DiamondZ -2
TERPTEENG TR, o

(b) BREAERZEEERE
ZMBERER

material:

At At

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

iy S

—E-= BT F

+-BA=+—H8 +=-A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB BET T

Non-current assets FERBEE 29,293 29,293
Current assets MENEE 1,667 8,270
Current liabilities Vi IN=K =] (12,151) (18,459)
Net assets BEFE 18,809 19,104
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR B ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Aggregate financial information of the
joint ventures that is not individually
material: (continued)

19. REEEFEZHEm (&)

(b) ERLEAERZEEEE
ZMBERR ()

2023 2022
—ET= ==

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Revenue & 1,699 1,987
Expenses (53 (404) (419)
Profit before taxation BRIG AR A 1,295 1,568
Taxation =] - _
Profit for the year NEEHF 1,295 1,568

The above amounts of assets and liabilities

tHEERERSEREUATS

include the following: 8¢
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
i N
+ZA=+—B +-BA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEER 1,164 7,912
Amounts due to shareholders — F&1d IR BRRRIE (11,540) (17,940)

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(9]

(d)

The amount due from a joint venture is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms
of repayment.

The Group has advanced HK$12 million to
the joint venture to finance the acquisition of
certain assets. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Group will not demand for repayment
within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and is therefore classified as
non-current assets.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying
amount of amount due from a joint venture
was approximately HK$5.8 million (2022:
approximately HK$9.0 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the accumulated
impairment loss of the interest in a joint
ventures was approximately HK$4.0 million
(2022: approximately HK$7.2 million), which
is considered to be adequate as there are no
indication for further impairment (2022: nil).

20. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

19. it

(9]

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

BEREZHED (B)

B —EaEhERASER
1 e BRI B E R

(d) =&EBEERSERERMBE

12,000,00070 AW EE T &
ERHES -BERA K&
B g ERPABREHRE
+ZEBANER WEFZE
BRDEAIERIEE -

RN_E_=ZF+_B=+—
HrEK—HEaEtERE
Z BREEAY % £ #5,800,000
T (ZE2EZZF B
9,000,0007T) ©

RN_E_=ZF+_B=+—
B ReagtxER2 Rt
BB R 1EA) 2478 14,000,000
T (ZE2EZ2F B
7,200,0007T) > FH 5L M R B R
BTREE—FTIEHRE CZ
TIF R O EREM-

20. MEEFE

HK$'000

BT IT

At 1 January 2022 W_E-—#—-A—H 111,400

Reversal of write-down of stock of properties #2377 S Hfs B [a] (H752£9(c))

(note 9(c)) (10,800)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 A B _F+-HA=+—H

r_E_=F—HF—H 100,600

Write-down of stock of properties (note 9(c) &M (#1529()) (11,700)

At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+"H=+—H 88,900
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

20. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
had pledged one of its stock of properties with a
carrying amount approximately of HK$76.0 million
(2022: approximately HK$86.1 million) to secure the
bank loans granted to the Group (note 26).

20.

MEEFE (&)

BHE_ZT-_=—_F+"HB=+—HL
FE AEECIKF—EBRABY
£ 781£76,000,0007 0 (ZE - —F .
#)781£86,100,0007T) 2 EHFE >
EAREBERETER KRR
(MizE26) ©

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. FEIRE Z IR B Efth FE U
BR X

At At

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

iy iy

+ZA=+—B +-BA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB BT T

Trade receivables FEUL B R TN 10,208 10,796
Less: Allowance for expected B TBHAEEBREBE

credit losses (137) (149)

10,071 10,647

Other receivables HhEUER =R 908 870

Trade and other receivables FEWL B 5 BR R E Ath

FEUWER =X 10,979 11,517

Prepayment and deposits ARIBEREE 4,748 6,842

15,727 18,359

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to
be recovered within one year.

Including in trade receivables, the lease receivables

of approximately HK$441,000 (2022: approximately
HK$407,000) arise from properties rental income.

296 SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B/EIZEkARAT)

PR A FE & 5 BR AU ELAth i U BR 7R
TRHAR —F k(e -

EWE SR EERBYERES I
A2 EWFE &4 781441,00070 (Z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

Aging analysis

Included in trade and other receivables, the aging
analysis for trade receivables, based on the due date
and net of allowance for expected credit losses, is as
follows:

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

21. RIS E 5 IR B H R Uk

ARTR ()

BRET O A
SRR E Z R A H MR UER
M EUE Z AR (ZEIAI R K40
RIEMEEBEZEE) ZRED
T -

At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
iy iy

—E=F S
+ZA=+—B +ZA=+-8
HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT ABTT

Current BDEA 9,077 10,152
31 to 60 days 31£E60H 144 35
61 to 90 days 61290H 258 460
Over 90 days #B84890H 592 -

10,071 10,647

The Group normally allows an average credit period
of 30 days to customers of travel business (2022:
average credit period of 30 days). For the customers
of property investment business, no credit period was
granted.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 4(b).

NEE KRB TIRFEEFEEFF30H

ZFHEEHR(CE-__F:30HZ

FHEER -MMERBEBRRR
S UEBFEER-

3 458 380 HA 2L B 2 FE U BR AR TS B3
M R BNz SRR R
=1k

FEUR B 5 ARk B EL M B UK AR RRURL B
sHE S BRI sE4(D) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

22. BATFERBEmYIRZ
MBEE

At At

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

® iy

—BC=E B F

+ZH=+—H +ZB=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Listed equity securities in the USA R EE_EHRAEH 188,453 93,429
Analysed for reporting MRS ENEL R -

purposes as:
— Current assets —RENEE 188,453 93,429

The fair value of the listed securities is determined
based on the closing prices quoted in active market
in the USA. At the reporting date, the share price of
the listed equity securities dropped significantly by
approximately 28%. The management of the Group

will closely monitor the movement.

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31

the operations of the Group.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

December 2023, bank balance of
approximately HK$549,000 (2022: approximately
HK$549,000) are restricted as banking facilities for
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

24. RERREZFEHIER

At At

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

iy i

—EC-= BT F

+-A=+—H +-8B=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT BT

Cash and bank balances B® KIR1T4E R 57,388 147,273
Cash and cash equivalents in the REMBRARKEGS
consolidated statements of financial R&EREXRZITEK

position and cash flows REFEEE 57,388 147,273

Deposits with banks carry interest at market rates
which is approximately 0.001% to 4.3% per annum
for current year (2022: approximately 0.001% to
3.5% per annum).

Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December 2023, there has an amount denominated
in Renminbi ("RMB”) of approximately RMB115,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$128,000)
(2022: approximately RMB267,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$307,000)). Remittance of RMB out
of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed
by the PRC government.

REEE RITERIETIHENX
#90.001%E4.3% (CE__F . &
FIZF40.001%E3.5%) 5t 8.

R_E_=%+"B=+—HZ
RekReEEEE+R OF—%
MAE® (TARY)) stEZHIE
#HANERH115,00070 FEERL B
128,00070) (ZE-_"F  HARKE
267,0007t (HHE R A A ®307,000
70)) oI AR MEHPRIBEINES
o B B 28 e =2 1B )RR PR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BTSRRI (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_—HF+_B=t+—HIFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24. RERIFEEFEMFEIER (B)

(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing MEESFMELEZBEHER .
activities:
Interest Loan from
payables a director and
(included in Bank Lease controlling
other payables) loans liabilities shareholder Total
EAFIE
(F A A —LESHE
MRS RTER fEER ZRRRER =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BETT BETT BETT
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(M3£26) (Mizk27) (Hi3828)
At 1 January 2022 R_E__F—-F—H 350 302,500 920 60,000 363,770
Changes in financing MERERELE .

cash flows:

Repayment of loans BEER - (144,000) - (86,000) (230,000)
New loans raised MEER - 154,000 - 242,000 396,000
Payment of lease rentals YHERE - - (657) - (657)
Interest paid BEfFIE (13,520) - - - (13,520)
Total changes in financing MERSRELHAE

cash flows (13,520) 10,000 (657) 156,000 151,823
Other changes: Hitrgg) .

New leases entered MEAE - - 483 - 483
Finance costs recognised ERBHABMAE (17293)

(note 9(3)) 13,664 - 10 - 13,674
Exchange alignment ERHEE - = (32) - 32)
Total other changes HvE g 13,664 = 461 = 14,125
At 31 December 2022 S

+-B=+-H 494 312,500 724 216,000 529,718

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. HERRELXEER (B)
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing METHMELEZERYHR . (B

activities: (continued)

Interest Loan from

payables a director and

(included in Bank Lease controlling
other payables) loans liabilities ~ shareholder Total

FEffE

(st AEfth —REER
FETERR) RITER HEaR ERRREN &t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

BT AR BT BT BT
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(Fff3k26) (Htsk27) (fff3k28)

At 31 December 2022 and S

At 1 January 2023 +ZA=1+—-Ak
RZE-=F—F—H 494 312,500 724 216,000 529,718
Changes in financing MERERELE .

cash flows:

Repayment of loans BERED - (150,000) - (137,000) (287,000)
New loans raised MEEA - 144,000 - 94,000 238,000
Payment of lease rentals YHERE - - (559) - (559)
Interest paid BRAFNE (26,755) - - - (26,755)
Total changes in financing MERSRELHAE

cash flows (26,755) (6,000) (559) (43,000) (76,314)
Other changes: Hitrgg) .

New leases entered HEIUME - - 433 - 433
Lease modification HEE:] - - (15) - (15)
Finance costs recognised BB BMA (1729a)

(note 9(3)) 26,760 - 10 - 26,770
Exchange alignment ERHE - - 2 - 2
Total other changes HvE g 26,760 - 430 - 27,190
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=%

+-A=+-H 499 306,500 595 173,000 480,59
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEMBHRRNE &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. BT B S IR R H (T
BRFX
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
i S
—E=FE BT &
+ZH=+—H +ZB=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Trade payables eI B SR 9,981 13,462
Accrued charges and other payables P&t F s EL M FE (T BR RN 10,313 8214
20,294 21,676
Aging analysis IRES
Included in trade and other payables, the aging BREENEZ R REMENIER
analysis of trade payables, based on the due date, is M BN EZERM (EHE) 2
as follows: RRECDMTANT -
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
i i
ZEZZHF _E-F
+-A=+—H +=-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Current BIHA 8,975 12,483
31 to 60 days 31E60H 268 398
61 to 90 days 61£290H 74 134
Over 90 days HBiE90H 664 447
9,981 13,462

302 SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BB{EIZEKARAT)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26. BANK LOANS

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

26. SRITE™M

At At

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

" i

—E”= BT HF

+=ZB=+—H +=ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Bank loans, secured BIRFERITEN 306,500 312,500

Carrying amount repayable: AR TIHEER
ARMEE -

On demand or within one year BRERHI—FR 306,500 312,500
Less: Amount shown under e =N e

current liabilities (306,500) (312,500)

Amounts shown under JEREEBIIREEE

non-current liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had pledged all
of its investment properties (note 17), the leasehold
land and building (note 15) as well as one of its stock
of properties (note 20) (2022: all of its investment
properties, leasehold land and building as well as one
of its stock of properties) to secure the bank loans
granted to the Group. The bank loans are carrying an
interest rate at HIBOR plus 1.7% to 2.0% per annum
(2022: 1.7% to 2.0% per annum). The weighted
average effective interest rate on the bank loans was
approximately 6.2% per annum for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: approximately 3.3% per
annum).

A TEBE_=—F+-"HB=1+—H'=&K
EECEIKIFEMAEREYE (=
17) “HAE T M XREF FFsE15) U
k—IEYMELFE (f:F20) (ZF
“TH  HEHmMEREME-HEL
MEREBFUR—BENEEFS) 5
KEBERT/NBAYEZERER
IRITERZIRF R -BITERES
BRITEAZERFREMENEITRE
20% (CEZ—F EFMFKI1TRE
20%) st - BE_Z_=ZF+_
B=+—BHLFE RITERZMN
REHBERFEHNERNR62% (ZF
TTF FREDYN33%) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HE&E

The Group's lease liabilities arise from lease properties
in Canada and PRC for fixed term of one to three
years. Interest rates underlying the leases are fixed at
respective contract rates from 2.95% to 5.57% per
annum (2022: 2.95% to 4.93% per annum).

At 31 December 2023, the Group had lease liabilities
repayable as follows:

AREBZHAEEEKENEARF
HEEEHRA—E=-FE2HEY
X -HEZFEXEBETEABRESHNF
KEFE2.95%FE5.57% (ZE -
F I EF2.95%F4.93%) ©

RIEBE_=F+"_H=+—H’"»7&
EEEEEHESRBNT

At 31 December 2023 At 31 December 2022
RZEZ=F+ZA=+—-H RIZZZF+ZHA=+—H
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHRE RIEHE REHRE RERE
fIRRE (E7EE YHIRE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT BT BETT
Within 1 year —FR 311 320 554 562
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREBMER 147 151 170 172
After 2 year but within 5 years MERBRLER 137 138 = -
595 609 724 734
Less: total future interest expenses 7, - AR ZEA BRI 4848 (14) (10)
Present value of lease liabilities HESRRE

304 SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B/EIZEkAR/AT)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TRERERMIEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 27. HE&E (@)
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies MT5E8sHEZHEEEIHW
are set out below: T

At At

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

iy "

= B

+-HA=+—H8 +=-A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT T BT T

CAD s 480 434

RMB AR 115 290

595 724
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

28. LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR AND 28. —AEEHIERIEEEMN

At At

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

iy i

—E”= —EFETF

+ZA=+-B +ZA=+-8

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFT  BETR

Loan from Mr. Yeung BREER 173,000 216,000

On 1 December 2008, Mr. Yeung provided a HK$200
million term loan facility to the Company which is
unsecured and charged with interest at the prime
rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited. The principal amount of the loan facility was
increased up to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009
(the “Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility”) and the
final repayment date of the loan and all other sums
owing to Mr. Yeung under the Revised Mr. Yeung's
Loan Facility was further extended from 31 October
2024 to 31 October 2026 by a supplemental letter of
agreement dated 29 September 2023.

In the opinion of the Directors, the borrowing of the
said loan from Mr. Yeung was for the benefit of the
Company and on normal commercial terms where no
security over the assets of the Company was granted.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

S _EENE+__B—H B
TEBAALABIRHEAHEEBE
200,000,000tz EHIERBHE » %
EXMEAEIRE BREELE
EERITERABMBZETEMN
BEEMNEXRFRE R _EEHEN
B+HHH ZERME 2 A& EEE
1= 5 57%81290,000,0007T (M4
FIZBEEZERRE]) @S
AfAZE-_=FABZ+AHZ
R TR RIBTZGREZ
EXRMBEZERMFB&ERIBRE
ZHMHRENRRERBH B
ETMFE+B=+—HE—FILEE
EZZETRE+HA=1+—H-

EERR LB REERETZ
BERNERRABZMm IHiE—*&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

29. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT 29. IR IEREN

At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
i iy

—EZ= B
+ZB=+-8 +=A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$°000

BMTT  BETR

Carrying amount REE
At the beginning of the year REH] 161 483
Amortisation for the year (note 8) Z<EE#TH (#1528) (161) (322)
At the end of the year RER - 161
Current liabilities mEaE - 161
Non-current liabilities JERBER - -
- 161
The Company gave a corporate guarantee (the RIE—tH > RXABMT/EY
“Guarantee”) to a bank in respect of the loan *xERERZEFEEQ—BIRT
facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property Development. REEEER ((ZERFR) - AAF
The maximum guarantee amount borne by the RIBZERAEZRERETES
Company under the Guarantee was HK$490 million. 7 15490,000,0007T ©
The outstanding loan under the Revised Loan RIE_=F+"HA=+—H" %
Facilities as at 31 December 2023 was approximately KETEREERERZERNS
HK$180.0 million (2022: the outstanding loan under A 1£180,000,00070 (ZE - " :
the Loan Facilities was approximately HK$230.0 MEMEERERZERNRBE
million). The contingent liabilities were disclosed in 230,000,0007T) e A BB M zE
note 34. 34¥Z 5z ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &3 307



308

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

29. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT
(CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of the financial guarantee
contract recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position is in accordance with
HKFRS 9 and is carried at amortised cost.

Pursuant to the Amended Facility Agreement, the
maturity date under the Loan Agreement was
extended from 23 June 2023 to 23 June 2025.
The Group has engaged the Valuer to carry out a
valuation to measure the fair value of the financial
guarantee contract for the changes of terms and
conditions under the Amended Facility Agreement
as at the signing date of the Amended Facility
Agreement (i.e. 23 June 2023). No provision for
financial guarantee contract has been made at 23
June 2023 as the fair value is lower than the carrying
amount of the financial guarantee contract.

No provision for financial guarantee contracts has
been made at 31 December 2023 and 2022 as the
Directors considered the default risk is low.

. MBHEEEH (@)

RIEEBMBREERFEN > M5
ERENZREEENFTERZER
BB R P RESS o 4 5 A
A58k o

BELEBIIEEmZE EXRWET
2 % HHEEE_V__E/\E +=
HItBE _ZE _HAF B _-_+=
HeAEBEEZBGEMETH
B UM EEBETEERR IR AE
HZEHMAEMHERFSNNLE
FIEEwESEHEE GBI ZE 2=
FARBZ+=8) 2AF¥E -HIRH
BERENZ AFTEEREEE
WRZE_=FB+=HI®E
SHEM B RAREAEE-

AREEIREBORRK QN
TECI=FRIZEITHEFZA

= +—HUIERPHREERGOEL
Bt o

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. 89&1E
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
iy i
—E=F =
+-BA=+—H +-—B=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT T
Contract liabilities arising from: FTHIEBELZSHNEE:
Travel business: RIFZETS
Travel and related service hiR 4% Kz AE A R 75 802 731
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount FESHBESH 2 HEMRIER

of contract liabilities are as follows:

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

me:



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

30. BERE (&)

(i) Travel and related service (i) e 3kE B vE A AR 7%
Contract liabilities represent advance payments BHEEENERAE P RM
received from customers for services that have ZRBH TR EERAER TR
not yet been performed to the customers or FZEmBERWINZEMN
the control of the products have not been o
transferred to the customers.
The Group expects to deliver the goods or REBFERN —FFrRE
services to satisfy the remaining obligations of RIYERARTE > UBITZ
these contract liabilities within one year or less. EEHNBEBZEBRTEE.
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
i N
—E=F BT F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
At the beginning of i)
the year 731 823
Decrease in contract liabilities & BERATEERIZ
as a result of recognising WHBESTARENZ
revenue during the year sHaEmED
that was included in the
contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (731) (823)
Increase in contract liabilities & %98 & XKk K&
as a result of billing in TR TR R B2
advance of travel and Mg A0
related services 802 731
At the end of the year RER 802 731
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through utilisation against future
taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2023,
the Group had tax losses of approximately HK$283.9
million (2022: approximately HK$269.6 million)
that are available to carry forward indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Estimated tax
losses of approximately HK$5.1 million and HK$38.4
million will expire within 5 years and over 5 years
respectively (2022: approximately HK$6.5 million and
HK$39.0 million will expire within 5 years and over 5
years respectively).

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future tax profit streams.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

31. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED

1. FEMBRRARAZHIE

ﬁ”ﬁ%ﬁﬁi‘“ﬂ# BB ﬁﬁﬁ"%&

,\D%Z%ﬁﬁiﬁaﬁﬁ LL%ﬁIEfi
E-R_E_=ZF+"B=+—
B> zk%l%z%ﬁlé}éﬂ,a KA B
283,900,0007 (ZE - —"F : {948
#269,600,0007z) » B i # R HR45
DI I R AR E SR B m ) o (5T HR
T8 E518 72 B 497815,100,00070 & 78
#%38,400,000 T D AR AFE AN K
hFRBREB(CEI2F  NBK
6,500,0007T & & 1&39,000,0007T#F
DRREEFERNRAFERE

FR 7 2R B A 755 02 A R R A BT TR -
B SR LR B R IR B S IR FE SRR
IESETRIAE BE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. ig#
Number Nominal
of shares value
RHEE H{E
‘000 HK$'000
FB BT T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SRREEATE0.01752
=)

At 1 January 2022, 31 December A —_E_-__F—H—H*

2022, 1 January 2023 and “E"F+ZAH
31 December 2023 =+—B-ZZ2Z=
—B—BRZE_=F
+-—B=+—H 160,000,000 1,600,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEBH0.017T2
Ziae

At 1 January 2022, 31 December R —_E__&F—HF—H~-

2022, 1 January 2023 and “E"F+ZAH
31 December 2023 =+—H-ZZ==
—B—BR-E_=F
+=-B=+—H 4,926,491 49,265
The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive ERERSEBEANARESTREIRZ
dividends as declared from time to time and are RERBERALNEIRERE L
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of —R—EBZAABE-FIESERK
the Company. All ordinary shares rank pari passu in ®UIEEEF EEIE B AR

all respects among themselves.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(a) Defined contribution retirement plan
The Group participates in a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
effective from 1 June 2014. Contributions to

the plan vest immediately.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant
authorities in the PRC, the Group participates in
the relevant social retirement benefit schemes
(the “PRC Schemes”) whereby the Group is
required to contribute to the PRC Schemes
to fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the PRC
Schemes are calculated based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the
PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC are
responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the
PRC Schemes is to pay the ongoing required

contributions under the PRC Schemes.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

33. EEEBAKEFR

(a) EFEHEFRAKSE

AEERBETERFMELARE
S ENEG AR EEBRERREK
flEEHERAREZEES
Hoadl Mt et (Mafk
5t cRBETEATEE
HIGRAREE HBILEFEA
B REABEEHE  EE
RERBEZBEBATE(EH
H®HR cEAREFRBAZ
5% BABAMKBAZ LIRBE
“E—OENA—HIEABK
30,0007z © 51 & 14 7 BD B 53
Eo

RIFREAREFI 2 A R &<
B2 EERL T RINER
& (ThElErE)) @RIt A&
E 7R m R E A B R U A
BEREEZEBKEN - R
Rl ZRRE o A B 5t &I 1F
MRBBEBRIEERZETH
D EEEHE - EIA B £ B 86 F]
BEMRINEESZ AR
ToAEENRPEFE ZME—
BERRETE 8 FES N

PREBIHERR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution retirement plan
(continued)

The employees of the Group in Canada are
members of the Canada Pension Plan operated
by the Canada government. The Group is
required to contribute 5.95% (2022: 5.7%) of
payroll costs to a retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution
represents gross contributions by the Group
to the PRC Schemes operated by the relevant
authorities of the PRC.

Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme
on 5 June 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme")
which became effective on 10 June 2014.
Unless early termination by the Company in
general meeting or by the board of Directors
(the "Board”), the Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of its adoption.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution to the Group or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest and any subsidiary of such entity
("Invested Entity”).

33. E&

(a)

(b)

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

BRIAEF (48)

EFRIHFR AR (B

REBRNEAZEEANZE
ABRFER 2 MEARKES
BB AEBEBAMRKE
MBI TEMA2595%
(ZBEZZF:57%) ' AE
FIRME S c KEBER BT
Bz —STAEHIEEM

o

It

RNEN ST HERIEREED
HPEAEREESMEEZH
B 5t 8P F 2 kA8 EE

fBRg T EI

RABNR ZZE—NENBAH
wrm—IaEREst e (TERE
stEL) W ZE—MERA
THEM -BRIFAEATNEK
RARELIHEFE (TESF
T RER L BRIBRES
ZR ERMBREREEM T
o

BRESTE SR SB R R
B THAERNAER TN
BRAEHKAEEAREZEMNE
RRUKRZEBREZEMNNE QT
(MREEER)) (FHEMZE
B AL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors
are authorised at their absolute discretion to
invite eligible persons to take up options to
subscribe for shares. Eligible persons under the
Share Option Scheme include (i) any employee
(whether full time or part time and including
executive director) of any member(s) of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (ii) any non-
executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (iii) any consultant,
adviser or agent engaged by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity, who is eligible
to participate in a share option scheme of the
Company; and (iv) any vendor, supplier of goods
or services or customer of or to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity, who is eligible
to participate in a share option scheme of the

Company.

There is no provision in the Share Option
Scheme to require a grantee to fulfill any
performance target or to hold the option for a
certain period before exercising the option, but
the Board may at its absolute discretion from
time to time provide such requirements in the
offer of grant of options.
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33. BEERAKEF (&)

(b) FEARHESTE (3B)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT 33. EERAKREF (B)

(CONTINUED)
(b) FERR#EStE (B)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares available for
issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company
is 492,649,119 shares (being not more than
10% of the total number of shares in issue as
at the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme (the “Scheme Limit”), representing
approximately 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

The Company may seek approval of its
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing
the Scheme Limit save that the total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company under the Scheme
Limit so refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date
of such approval (the “New Scheme Limit”).
Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance
with the respective provisions of the scheme(s)
of the Company or exercised options) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the
New Scheme Limit.

RIFERES B R A A EEM
HMEREA SR 2 BR
A FRTZRORESHES
492,649,1198% (BI-F BB
ST B IR E HEE1TARD 4R
B 210% (T518) EfRY)) » 48
ERAFRAIPEETRIDLE
F4910% o

AABAIRKRRAG ESRHE
ARERHL B st 8 LFR - 1ETE
stE| LIREM%E  AREBER
ST B A A B E R E MR
s8R FIRHZ 2B E
ETEMA FHTZRMNE
B M EEBAHEENE £
[REBE#EITRMDEHZ10%
(THr st 8 LFR) - mist B
T8I EIRME @ AR IRIEER
8 A A B EREMBR
Bt ERbZBRE (B85
BIRAA B AR R EF 8 R SCiE R
T B BRUAET
EzBEBRB) B EER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)
Notwithstanding aforesaid in above, the
maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from

time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme(s)
adopted by the Company (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) to each eligible person
in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of offer shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue on the date
of offer, unless such grant is approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting at which such eligible person and his or
her associates shall abstain from voting.

The exercise price in respect of any option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the
option is offered; and (iii) the nominal value of a

share.
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(b) FEARHESTE (3B)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)
The offer of a grant of share option must be
accepted not later than 28 days after the date
of offer, upon payment of a consideration of
HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share option granted is determined by the
Board, save that such period shall not exceed
a period of 10 years commencing on the date
upon which the share option is granted.

No share options had been granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption and up
to 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

34. COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2023, the Group had contracted
with the tenants for the following future minimum
lease receivables:

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

33. EEEKEF (B)

(b) FERR#EStE (B)
RUBREZZNREANE
MEHBER -+ /N\HARBRER
ANBBZ BB 1Tz NER
e PR MBI Z 1T HA E
EFXTET EZBBEBEER
EEHEHEAFASBET
o

B ER 40 BE AR 5 B LUk R &L
E-S-=F+"_H=+—
HiE SEREREREEIR
HERMBRE (CET -4

) ©

34. i

RIBZ=ZF+"R=+—H"=
EEEEPFTOZRRRERIE
W

The Group as lessor EEEASHBEA
At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
i N
—E-= TETF
+ZRA=+—H t-RA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT
Within one year — &R 3,280 4,050
After one year but within —FBRERFERN
two years 1,173 847
4,453 4,897
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

34. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

35.

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$5,888,000 (2022: approximately
HK$5,692,000). All of the Group's investment
properties are held for rental purpose and two of
its stock of properties is rented. It is expected to
generate rent yield of approximately 2.8% (2022:
approximately 2.4%) on an ongoing basis. The
Group’s rental property has committed tenant for the
next one to two years.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company gave the Guarantee to a bank in
respect of the loan facilities granted to Pier 16 —
Property Development. The maximum guarantee
amount borne by the Company under the Guarantee
was HK$490.0 million (notes 18 and 29).

The outstanding loan under the Revised Loan
Facilities as at 31 December 2023 was HK$180.0
million (2022: the outstanding loan under the Loan
Facilities was HK$230.0 million).
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34. KiE (48)

35.

FARBRYERSWANR B
5,888,00070 (& - — & : 49818
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

36. RAHKTT 325

In addition to the transactions and balances detail PR EMBIRREMM G EFR 2
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, 5 R AR BRI 0 A< B2 B X £ P9 A o
the Group had the following material transactions FAEMUTEARRS !

with related parties during the year:

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) ZEERF LR &
TUTRS :

(@) The Group had the following
transactions with the related parties
during the year:

2023 2022
—EC=H S
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 AT T BT T
Interest expenses EN—R%EERER
paid to a director R HIEHE
and controlling
shareholder 9(a), 28 7,983 4,097
Rental income received B WK B REARE A B
and receivable from ZHEEUWA
related companies (e) to (h) 2,607 2,515
Management fee B FE IR — B
income received and NElZEBEBERWRA
receivable from an
associate 8, (i) 191 1,085
Note: Hiat
) The management fee was charged on actual cost (i) EEE AN EE G IEHEE

R B MRS FTELEZ BIERH A
YER o

incurred by the Group for provision of management
and technical services.
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(CONTINUED)

(b) The outstanding balances with related
parties at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEMBHRRNE &

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

PR R 5 (48)

(b) MEREHARERIM S 2K

EEGEFNT -

At At
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
iy S
B =HF =
+—-B=+—H +—B=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BT BT T
Amounts due from JFE IS Bt e R B R IE
associates 18 366,610 367,504
Amount due from a E—HEa=1it%E
joint venture FRIE 19 5,770 8,970
Loan from a director —LEERETRRKRE
and controlling 6N
shareholder 28 173,000 216,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Key management personnel
compensation
Compensation for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Directors as
disclosed in note 11, senior management of
the Company and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 12 is as follows:

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

36. RNt A X5 (&)

(0 FEEEASHE

TEEBABZHE (BFER
MK BN ESEMIEK
MENRKREZBENERAT SR
BEABRETREHMEREZ
IR W

The Group
TEE

2023 2022

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

Bt 5 BT BT T
Salaries, allowance and e RMK

other benefits Hinsg#] 855 3,299
Retirement scheme RIRETEIHRR

contributions 30 50
Total emoluments are IRENARZESI A

included in “staff costs” M8 T2 9(b) 885 3,349

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &3 321



322

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR e IS ERRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE_ZT_=

F+A=+—HLEE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(d)

On 1 December 2008, the Company entered
into a letter of agreement with Mr. Yeung
regarding a term loan facility of up to HK$200
million, the loan is unsecured and charged with
interest at the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong
dollars loans by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. The principal
amount of the loan facility was increased up
to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009 and the
final repayment date of the loan and all other
sums owing to Mr. Yeung under the Revised
Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility was further extended
from 31 October 2024 to 31 October 2026
by a supplemental letter of agreement dated
29 September 2023. The said loan from Mr.
Yeung constitutes a connected transaction for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, but is fully exempt from shareholders’
approval and all disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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36. RNt A X5 (18)

(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

In June 2021, the Group entered into two
tenancy agreements (the “2021 Tenancy
Agreements”) for a term of two years to
renew the tenancy agreements which were
signed in June 2019 in respect of the leasing
of all investment properties of the Group to
a company which is wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Yeung, the tenant is therefore
a connected person of the Company. The
rentals chargeable under the 2021 Tenancy
Agreements were determined after taking
into account of the opinion letters issued by
the Valuer in connection with the fairness and
reasonableness of the rentals chargeable under
the 2021 Tenancy Agreements in respect of
the said properties. The entering into the 2021
Tenancy Agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules as all
the applicable percentage ratios calculated on
an annual basis pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules are less than 5% and annual cap is
below HK$3,000,000.

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

36. RNt A X5 (&)

(e)

N _E_—F B AEHE
STUMMpAEMEZ B ERE
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S REANTEELEEZERE
MmEE - 1R#E LHRAIE14A
B U_E SRS
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MR EHRAIZE14.071%31%
FHEZMBEREDEEY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_S_=—#£+-B=+—HLEE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(f)

In April 2022, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement (the “2022 Tenancy Agreement”)
for a term of one year in respect of the leasing
of one of the Group's stock of properties to a
company (the “Tenant”), which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung and Mr. Ma
Ho Man, Hoffman, being the Deputy Chairman
of the Board and an executive Director, is a
director of the Tenant. The Tenant is therefore a
connected person of the Company. The rental
chargeable under the 2022 Tenancy Agreement
was determined after taking into account of
the rental valuation report issued by the Valuer
in connection with the market rent of the said
property in April 2022. The entering into of the
2022 Tenancy Agreement constitutes continuing
connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but is fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules as all
the applicable percentage ratios calculated on
an annual basis pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules are less than 5% and the annual
caps are below HK$3,000,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. Bt H X5 (4&)

(CONTINUED)

(g) In April 2023, the Group entered into a tenancy (9 RZEZ=FWA x£H

agreement (the “2023 Tenancy Agreement
I") for a term of one year to renew the 2022
Tenancy Agreement. The rental chargeable
under the 2023 Tenancy Agreement I was
determined after taking into account of the
rental valuation report issued by the Valuer in
connection with the market rent of the said
property in April 2023.

The entering into of the 2023 Tenancy
Agreement I constitutes a continuing connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and should be
aggregate with the continuing connected
transactions mentioned in this notes 36(e)
and 36(f) according to the Listing Rules.
After aggregation, the continuing connected
transaction relating to the 2023 Tenancy
Agreement I is fully exempt from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of
the Listing Rules as all the applicable percentage
ratios calculated on an annual basis pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules are less than 5%
and the annual caps are below HK$3,000,000.

SRS HEwE
(T2 =FHEH=z1) >
MEEB-ZS__FHEWZ-
BEZEZ=—FHEHRIY
WEY 2 A& TH A 2 BB L E ML
FMER_E_=FHAZ
miEHEH A ZHASTHERE
EE-

R EHRAFE14AE > 5T
TR EHRERBIERAE
RNEIZ —BRFERERS I
JT’&ET??:H”LFE%EEIJLMXBH%B6(e)
36Nt 2 I@ERER =
EtE -KREEHERB BHR
RiE EHRAIE14.07182F
STEZFMEBERABE DRGSR
5% BFEE LRER B
3,000,0007c B -~ =4
HMEGZRIBRZIFERER
ZiR#E EmARAI S 14A.76(1)(c)
REZEBREBTRERE
FEBEZKMPMARERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE_ZT_=

F+A=+—HLEE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(h)

In June 2023, the Group entered into two
tenancy agreements (the “2023 Tenancy
Agreements II"”) for a term of two years
in respect of the leasing of all investment
properties of the Group to the Tenant. The
rental chargeable under the 2023 Tenancy
Agreements II were determined after taking
into account of the opinion letters issued by
the Valuer in connection with the fairness and
reasonableness of the rentals chargeable under
the 2023 Tenancy Agreements II in respect of
the said properties.

The entering into of the 2023 Tenancy
Agreements II constitutes continuing
connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
should be aggregate with the continuing
connected transactions mentioned in this
note 36(e) and 36(g) according to the Listing
Rules. After aggregation, the continuing
connected transactions relating to the 2023
Tenancy Agreements II are fully exempt from
shareholders’ approval, annual review and
all disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules as all the
applicable percentage ratios calculated on an
annual basis pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules are less than 5% and the annual
caps are below HK$3,000,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher level of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines debt as total borrowings which are bearing
variable interest rate such as bank loans (note 26),
lease liabilities (note 27) together with loan from a
director and controlling shareholder (note 28), and
net of cash and cash equivalents (note 24). Capital
represents total equity attributable to owners of the
Company in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group's strategy was to maintain the debt-to-
capital ratio as low as feasible. In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt. As at 31 December 2023, the debt-to-capital
ratio is approximately 54% (2021: approximately
53%).

37.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has pledged the
following assets:

(a

the Group’s all of investment properties, the
leasehold land and building as well as one of its
stock of properties totally with carrying amount
of approximately HK$410.3 million (2022:
approximately HK$434.9 million) were pledged
to secure against bank loans (note 26) and a
standby letter of credit granted to the Group;
and

World Fortune Limited (“World Fortune”)
pledged all (2022: all) of its shares in Pier 16 —
Property Development to a bank in respect of
the loan facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property
Development.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  39. KA B ZBATEHR R R R (15
44

AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE ESEH
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AR ZHAFEIKAR
Company
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
® i
—EZ= _ECCF
+ZA=+—-B +-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RWB AR ZIRE 1,206,408 1,195,024
Current assets MEEE
Deposits, prepayments and other 3% & FEI AR
receivables HAthE RN 953 800
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEMBEER 33,969 125,575
34,922 126,375
Current liabilities mEaRE
Other payables and accruals HMEM IR
FEEtER 1,642 1,103
Bank loans RITEM 144,000 150,000
Financial guarantee contract MBEREN - 161
145,642 151,264
Net current liabilities mEaEEE (110,720) (24,839)
Total asset less current liabilities & E A E R GBI A& 1,095,688 1,170,135

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &3 329



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEMBHRRNEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  39. xA R Z AR R R R EHE

AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE 85 (8)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) ERTZEHFHRRE @)
Company (continued)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
i i
—ECIZE S
+-B=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT
Non-current liabilities EREBER
Loan from a director and IBIEREHN—RES
controlling shareholder RIEBBHREMN 173,000 216,000
Net assets BEFE 922,688 954,135
Capital and reserves BARKi#E
Share capital EEEN 49,265 49,265
Reserves (note 39(b)) 1% (B7a2390)) 873,423 904,870
Total equity BEERE 922,688 954,135
Approved and authorised for issue by the board BEEEgER S NFE=R=+t
of directors on 27 March 2024. HH#LE R IR T EE o
On behalf of the board RKEREEFS
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
oy =107 BiEX
Director Director
BE BFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  39. KA B ZBATEHR R R R (15

AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE EE (48)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) AT ZEEES
Share  Accumulated
premium losses Total
R iR(E Rt =1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2022 RWZE-_F#—HF—H 1,418,963 (444,870) 974,093
Loss and other comprehensive A< EE 518 K
loss for the year Hith2mEEE - (69,223) (69,223)
At 31 December 2022 and RIEZZTHF
1 January 2023 +ZB=+—HkK
—_E-_=%—F—H 1,418,963 (514,093) 904,870
Loss and other comprehensive ~ ZAEEE5E K
loss for the year Hit=mE1E - (31,447) (31,447)
At 31 December 2023 NRZB_=F
+-B=+—H 1,418,963 (545,540) 873,423
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_E_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(a) The following list contains only the particulars
of subsidiaries which principally affected the
results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as
defined under note 2(c) and have been
consolidated into the consolidated financial

40. T EME AT

(a) TREHFIIHEEREE B
ENEFEBNEEZTEZNE
NEFFIFFRFAHIEIN B
RN \ERSEEEK-

FREZERBEHERME2()M
REZREMB AT > 1B
GBS AREBZEGHMBR

statements of the Group. Ko
Proportion of ownership interests
EHERELE)
Particulars of
Place of issued shares Group's Held
incorporation/ and paid up effective by the Held by a
Name of subsidiary operations share capital interests Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
AL BERTRMK TERE B
WEAERE B BRRFHE BERiEE HERAEARE WEADRE TEXH
% % %
Macau Success (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong 10,000,000 shares/ 100 100 - Investment holding
Limited &A HK$1,076,000 REEZR
BPEE (B8 BRAT 10,000,008 8215,/
71,076,0007T
Macau Success Management  Hong Kong 100 shares/HK$100 100 - 100 Provision of
Services Limited B 1008217/ B #1007 administration
services
RETERSE
World Fortune Hong Kong 1,000 shares/HK$1,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
K &8 1,000 213 /71,0007 REZR
Jade Travel Ltd. Canada 15,000 class “A" non- 100 - 100 Wholesale and retail
MEX voting special shares of business of selling
CAD1,500,000 and 7 airline tickets and
common shares without tour packages
par value HERERIKTESR
##01,500,000M0702 ZHBERBELH
15,0000 T AL EL F1E
RARRIBRLREEZ
Lidk
Good Sun Development Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100 - 100 Property investment
Limited B 1RERR 1R/ A1 7T MERE

BEZRERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) (continued)

e MBS RRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ZE_=—F+_B=+—HLFE

40. T EMB AT (&)

(@ &

Proportion of ownership interests

EAERELE)
Particulars of

Place of issued shares Group's Held

incorporation/ and paid up effective by the Held by a
Name of subsidiary operations share capital interests Company  subsidiary  Principal activities

AL BETRMK TER H—fA
WEAERME BRI BRRTHE B HERAEARE WEADRE TEXRH

% % %
Total Gain Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100 - 100 Property investment
Eit=l NG &8 1RMR/ BT MERE
Powerful Concept Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100 - 100 Property investment
ERIBRAT &8 1RMR/ BT MERE
Famous Capital International ~ BVI/Hong Kong 1,000 shares/USD1,000 100 = 100 Property investment
Limited HREYHS 1,00088(3,/1,000% 7T MERE
/EB
Perfect Top Property BVI/Hong Kong 1 share/USD 1 100 - 100 Property investment
Investment Limited HBETES 1R85/ 1%E7 WERE
V&

Better Talent Limited BVI 1 share/USD 1 100 - 100 Investment holding

HERETHS (L VAES REER

(b) Significant Restriction (b) E KPR

Cash of RMB held in the PRC are subject to
local exchange control regulations. These
local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC,
other than through normal dividends.

41. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform to the current year's presentation.

RARFEUARBSHEZR
AR E 1 IINE S F R B PR
BR o 2 3 & 51 B B 15 451 FR
flhEmHE A HEBIE
FIREERIN

41. Lt =F

ETHEBREFEEMOE UGS
TEEZEFHGH e
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T FHATEHEE
RESULTS e
Year ended 31 December
HE+-BA=+—-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZfC=f ZCCF TEBC-F  ZZIZE ZENA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T BT T BT T
Revenue Wi 101,897 114,778 151,130 363,831 1,147,371
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRIRENET/ (58 169,301 (287,072) 4,859 (141,936) 74,194
Taxation R - - - - -
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEER/ (519 169,301 (287,072) 4,859 (141,936) 74,194
Profit/(loss) for the year TEERT/ (5B
attributable to owners of the
Company 169,301 (287,072) 4,859 (141,936) 74,194
Earnings/(loss) per share VNG R
attributable to owners B/ (8B548):
of the Company:
— Basic and diluted —ExR#E 3.44 (5.83) 0.10 (2.88) 1.51
HK cents 3l HK cents 1l HK cents B{ll  HK cents Bl HK cents 1l
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEKRERE
As at 31 December
®+ZB=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
-t =t S-S S - S
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT BT T BT T BT T
Total assets BEEE 1,388,555 1,271,157 1,388,830 1,387,114 1,385,035
Total liabilities aEeE (501,191) (551,792) (381,185) (384,758) (240,776)
Net assets BEFE 887,364 719,365 1,007,645 1,002,356 1,144,259
Total equity fERaE 887,364 719,365 1,007,645 1,002,356 1,144,259

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Particulars of the properties held by the Group at the end

of the reporting year are as follows:

Particulars of Properties

Y EEE I

RBREER FEREFANYEFBEN

A. Investment properties KrREWME
Attributable
interest of
Location Use/Status Tenure the group
EE
gL B& R 6 FA & HA FEAEHE
1 Office No. 1001A Rental Commercial Medium term 100%
on the 10th Floor of lease
Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong
HHEERIE 18 aalicl FRHAZZAY
BE RO EE1068
1001ASRIFAZE
2 Office No. 1004B Rental Commercial Medium term 100%
on the 10th Floor of lease
Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong
HHEERIE 18 alicl FRHAZZAY
BE RO EE1018
1004BSR I A ZE
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Particulars of Properties (Continued)

15 (&
B. Stock of properties B. MEESE
Tenure/ Attributable
Gross interest of
Location Use/Status Type Floor Area the group
HAEH/ FEE
12k BE MR g BIEEER FEfh#E =
1 34th Floor and Store Room On Sale Commercial Medium term 100%
of Sunshine Plaza, building lease/
No. 353 Lockhart Road, Approximately
Hong Kong 5,134 square feet
BERE3535% HE EE ERERL
SHAREMBRENE #95,134 1R
2 Flat C and Flat D (now known as ~ On Sale Commercial Medium term 100%
offices 1905 and 1906) building lease/
on the 19th Floor of Approximately
Eastern Commercial Centre, 1,532 square feet
395-399 Hennessy Road,
Hong Kong
BB H B FIE3952399%% HE A L/

BHEBEANMECERDE
(FRFB190558 2 19065 A E)

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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